Building a
Great Company.

Pinnacle Entertainment Annual Report 2004
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Company's performance in 2004 demonstrated the benefits of both

diversification and a carefully executed development strategy.

IN MILLIONS 2002 2003 2004
TOTAL REVENUES $514.0 $530.4 $553.3
EBITDA BEFORE NON-ROUTINE ITEMS $86.3 $91.7 $101.6
OPERATING INCOME $28.4 $38.0 $81.6
CASH FLOW FROM QPERATIONS $39.0 $55.4 $30.4
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS $147.5 $229.0 $287.8
TOTAL ASSETS $840.4 $954.9 $1,208.8
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY $248.5 $200.9 $415.2
SHARES QUTSTANDING 25.8 259 36.2
TOTAL REVENUES CONSOLIDATED EBITDA
(EXCLUDING SOLD PROPERTIES) (BEFORE NON-ROUTINE ITEMS)
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DEAR FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS

E'RE BUILDING A GREAT COMPANY.

We've assembled a top-flight management

team and implemented programs both to

recruit promising executives, and to train

and promote from within. We've honed our ability to
design and build unique, exciting and profitable casinos
and are doing so in Louisiana, Missouri and Argentina.
We've built a great balance sheet with enough leverage
to maximize shareholder returns, but also with great
flexibility and ample cash flow to meet our commitments.
® We are building a great company at a time when
merger and acquisition activity in our industry is
at an all-time high. We prefer to build versus buyv.
At current prices, we think the returns are higher.
We hope to achieve a minimum 15% cash-on-cash
return on our new projects. That’s a multiple of about
6.5 times on current anticipated cash flow (EBITDA).
We estimate that most of the recent acquisitions
have been at multiples of eight to 10 times EBITDA.
® New construction also results in a building that is
at the beginning of its economic life. Accountants
require buildings to be depreciated over 40 years or
less for a reason; the actual building has a finite life.
The plumbing wears out, the electrical systems become
dated, the physical appearance deteriorates. Think
of the great implosions in Las Vegas over the years—
the Dunes, the Hacienda, the Landmark,
the Castaways, the Aladdin. Almost all were between
30 and 40 years old when they were demolished for
the construction of new resorts, or in the case of the
Landmark, a parking lot. Hence, when one buys a casino
that is 10 to 15 years old, the acquired facility is already
well into its anticipated economic life.

® There's an important tax aspect as
well. Nearly all of the acquisitions in
recent years have been purchases
of the equity of a parent company.
The acquirer inherits the tax
basis of the seller, which is
typically much lower than the
purchase price. So, half a billion
dollars spent acquiring an existing
company results in far less than half
a billion dollars of tax depreciation
benefits. Conversely, construction of a

new building for half a billion dollars results in tax
depreciation on most of the expenditure, thereby
sheltering a great deal of the company’s income.

® This is not meant as a criticism of some of our
competitors that have been aggressive acquirers. Some
of those companies have very low borrowing costs;
their acquisitions have characteristics similar to a
traditional leveraged buyout. Some of our competitors
are too large to find enough projects to reinvest their
retained cash flow and the borrowing capacity created
by that cash flow. They too may prefer to build versus
buy, but their sheer size overwhelms the build option.
® Finally, not all companies have the talent, the
imagination, the patience and the courage to build.
Building is hard work. It requires finding the opportunity,
winning the right to build it, and then the unique risks
and challenges of building and opening a new property.
We know how to do this. We are willing to put in the
hard work it entails, precisely because we believe it
results in higher long-term returns for our shareholders.

OUR ACHIEVEMENTS THIS PAST YEAR DOCUMENT OUR
ONGOING SUCCESS IN BUILDING THIS GREAT COMPANY:

® Qur existing properties performed well, with
operating cash flows (EBITDA®) increasing

10.8%. Our EBITDA margin rose to 18.4%.
B We opened our new hotel tower,
pool area and other amenities at
Belterra in May. It has performed
extremely well and made our
Indiana property the largest
contributor today to our
overall revenues and cash flow.

® Our project in Lake Charles,
Louisiana went from the pile-driving
stage to the current finishing touches on
the interior. L Auberge du Lac is on schedule

and on budget to open in May 2005 as our largest property.
® We won a competitive process to build a major
casino-hotel complex in downtown St. Louis.
We negotiated a development agreement with the
City of St. Louis; won several key approvals from
the Missouri Gaming Commission; and agreed to
buy an adjoining Embassy Suites® Hotel and other
land that will be incorporated into the new project.
® The County of St. Louis also selected our
company to build a major mixed-use facility in
the community of Lemay. We have negotiated a
lease/development agreement with the County.

® We have been selected by the Missouri Gaming
Commission for priority investigation for both of our
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Missouri projects, allowing the developments to proceed.
® We began construction on a new, larger casino
facility in Neuquén, Argentina, which is scheduled
to open in mid-2005 at a cost of approximately
$14 million, replacing our current Neuquén property.
® We negotiated an agreement to operate-a casino at
the Four Seasons Resort Great Exuma at Emerald Bay
in the Bahamas. The 5,000-square-foot casino will
require an investment of approximately $5 million,
and is expected to open in late 2005 contingent
on receipt of various approvals and agreements.
® We've broadened and strengthened our management
structure. Wade Hundley was promoted to President,
overseeing all development, construction and
operations. Alain Uboldi, who has served as Regional

Vice President and General Manager
of L'Auberge, is succeeding Wade
as Chief Operating Officer.

WE BACKED OUR OPERATING
AND DEVELOPMENT GAINS WITH
STRATEGIC FINANCIAL STEPS:

& We refinanced our debt with two
new bond offerings, each of which
was less expensive and more
flexible than the debt it replaced.
® We refinanced our bank credit
facility twice, each time making

it bigger, cheaper and more flexible.

® We strengthened our balance sheet
through two equity offerings, resulting in
$200 million in net proceeds to the company.
THE MARKET CLEARLY HAS RECOGNIZED OUR
GROWTH. OUR STOCK HAS APPROXIMATELY
DOUBLED SINCE OUR MANAGEMENT TEAM
JOINED THE COMPANY THREE YEARS AGO.

® We recognize that our plans for future expansion rely
on our current operating strength. As I mentioned,
Belterra has become our top performer, with
revenues up 16.3% for the year and EBITDA
increasing 36.7%. Our perennially popular
Boomtown New Orleans casino generated another
outstanding performance, with EBITDA rising
9.8% and EBITDA margin reaching a healthy 29.0%.
® Qur Bossier City property showed once again that
we know how to play in a tough competitive
environment. Despite expansions at nearby

competitors and pressure from Native American

casinos in Oklahoma, Boomtown Bossier City
generated a 25.3% improvement in EBITDA.
® Over the years, our card clubs in California

have felt the competitive effects of
Native American casinos. We sought
to gain fair treatment by seeking
an initiative that would allow
the state’s card clubs to offer
more forms of gaming. Although
the measure failed, costing us
about $3 million, we believe
it was a worthwhile effort that
could have substantially benefited
our clubs and our shareholders.
® In Nevada, were moving ahead on plans

to enhance Boomtown Reno, which also has been
hard hit by new competition from Native American
gaming in California. We recently agreed to sell a
site to Cabela’s for construction of a large sporting
goods store near our casino. Cabela’s stores in
similar locations generate millions of visits per vear.
® Our Argentine operations, while relatively small, are
quite profitable. Construction costs in Argentina are low,
and the current exchange rates favor our investment.
The new $14 million facility would cost perhaps
$50 million or more in the United States. It is being built
using the retained cash flows of our Argentine opera-
tions. We believe the new facility will raise our Argentine
operations to a new level of visibility and profitability.
® In the course of building a great company, we've
made a lot of promises. We work every day to honor
them. We have a commitment to our customers,
who deserve a great experience on every visit. Our
employees deserve fair treatment, good wages and
benefits, and the opportunity to advance. Our lenders
need to know we will try very hard to meet or exceed
our financial projections. Our shareholders expect and
deserve high returns. Our communities are entitled
to good jobs, stable tax revenues and a partner that
is a good corporate citizen and neighbor. We strive
to be forthright and to always operate with integrity.

Thank you for your support. We will not disappoint you.

SINCERELY,
DANIEL R. LEE - CHAIRMAN / CEO
MARCH 15TH, 2005
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HOTEL & CASINO

LAKE CHARLES,
LOUISTANA

n May 2005, L'Auberge du Lac will open as the premier

gaming, hospitality and dining experience in the Southwest

Louisiana/East Texas market. Pinnacles newest property,
located in Lake Charles, Louisiana, will attract guests from

the Houston-area population of 5 million,

as well as from Dallas, Austin

and San Antonio. = L'Auberge

will feature the only single-
LAKE

, o CHARLES g
! deck riverboat casino in :

Louisiana, as well as a
26-story hotel complex with B SuLE oF MExiCO
approximately 750 guestrooms
and spacious suites. An elegant private

villa complex overlooks the lush pool area and the bayou, and

[

offers private courtyards and spas to the most discriminating

guests. « In addition to nonstop gaming, L'Auberge will feature

|
a host of amenities designed to attract a broad array of leisure
'R and business travelers. Our Contraband Bayou Golf Club,
g
1%
1 an 18-hole championship course designed by renowned golf

architect Tom Fazio, embraces the natural features of the

Louisiana lowlands. Resort attractions also will include a pool

and lazy river, and a full-service spa, salon and exercise facility.
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A meeting and events center will feature a ballroom that can accommodate

up to 1,500 guests, as well as a variety of smaller spaces for hosting

business and social functions. High-quality restaurants and retail

shops will complement the experience. L’Auberge marks a new level of

achievement for Pinnacle as our largest and most ambitious project to date.
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26-STORY TOWER WITH APPROXIMATELY 750 GUEST ROOMS AND SUITES

60 TABLE GAMES, 1,600 SLOT MACHINES

TOM FAZIO-DESIGNED 18-HOLE CHAMPIONSHIP GOLF COURSE

MEETING AND EVENTS CENTER

POOL, "LAZY RIVER” AND BEACH CLUB

SPA, SALON AND FITNESS FACILITY

FIVE RESTAURANTS

LIVE ENTERTAINMENT

RETAIL SHOPS

COFFEE BAR, ICE CREAM PARLOR AND VIDEO ARCADE
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St. Louis

LACLEDE'S LANDING
AND LEMAY

innacle has major plans to expand to the
“Center of America” with two casino properties in
the St. Louis metropolitan area. We see the area’s
gaming market as underserved and believe our projects can

bring new energy and vitality to the greater

St. Louis area. We intend to create

landmark attractions that will " 8s oy

&

7
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generate substantial benefits UNIVERSITY 611V

L.ACLEDE’Sz.
. LANDING b |
for both the region and for

- ST. LOUIS
| comne vmenee

|

Pinnacle. = We have proposed

a $208 million project on LEMAY | N

Laclede’s Landing, near the iconic e s
Gateway Arch, convention center and
main business district. The project includes

a 75,000-square-foot casino, a luxury hotel, retail space and a
large parking structure. Pinnacle also has agreed to build
an additional $50 million of residential, retail, or mixed-use
development in the city within five vears of the opening of the casino
and hotel, potentially with one or more development partners.
Recently, Pinnacle entered into agreements securing additional
acreage next to the project site, including an adjacent 297-suite

Embassy Suites® Hotel. Pinnacle currently plans to open the first

phase of this complex, including the hotel and casino, in early 2007.
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In the community of Lemay, approximately 10 miles south of downtown
St. Louis, we plan to build a $300 million gaming and mixed-use complex. The
planned development will be situated on approximately 56 acres leased from
the St. Louis County Port Authority and will include a 90,000-square-foot casino,
a 100-guestroom hotel, and extensive retail and entertainment space. An adjoining
24 acres will be developed into a public park, and will include recreational and
community facilities to be built by Pinnacle. We currently expect the Lemay

complex to open approximately one vear after our project at Laclede’s Landing.

LACLEDE’S LANDING
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* “The expansion marked

Belterra’S'transition to a full

destination resort for business,
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BELTERRA, INDIANA

elterra set new standards for quality, elegance and
financial performance in 2004, driven by the success of
its $37 million expansion that opened in May. The project,

which was completed on time and on budget, doubled the room

base to 608 guestrooms, added meeting and conference space,

and a luxurious swimming pool. s The expansion

marked Belterra’s transition to a full-

service destination resort for |

TNIDIARAZGL 16
business, leisure and gaming.
With its championship golf

course designed by Tom Fazio,

1,750-seat showroom, spa,

salon and other features, Belterra RARKORT

is one of the region’s largest and

most appealing resorts. » Located on

the Ohio River in Switzerland County, Belterra is located
within easy driving distance of nearly 5 million people in a

100-mile radius. The resort is less than 45 minutes away

from Cincinnati, and just over one hour away from
Louisville, Kentucky. With its full complement of amenities,

Belterra is now ideally equipped to host midweek business

conferences, weekday and weekend social events, and year-
round gaming and leisure guests. Belterra truly captures

the essence of the “beautiful land” for which it is named.

2004 ANNUAL REPORT



BOOMTOWN NEW ORLEANS

ew Orleans enjoys a worldwide
reputation as a tourists’ party town.
Still, The Big Easy also is home to more
than 1.3 million residents, and more than
4.3 million people live within a 150-mile radius.
Boomtown New Orleans, the only casino located
on the West Bank area of the Mississippi River,
has been a favorite with locals for a decade.

» The dockside riverboat gaming complex features

a 30,000-square-foot casino, three restaurants, an
entertainment venue, a fun center, and meeting and
conference space. Boomtown’s excellent location
and fun atmosphere again helped the property

generate excellent operating results in 2004.

LAKE :
PONTCHARTRA

PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT




Y'Y= = TN
g m

BOBSIER CITY. LOUISIANA

WL _ L

[ e e

S

%]

BOOMTOWN BOSSIER

oomtown Bossier City, located off of 2002, is well positioned to attract guests seeking casual
Interstate 20 in Bossier City, Louisiana, fun and nonstop gaming in a relaxed atmosphere. [
serves a regional clientele with one of the = Although the Shreveport/Bossier City gaming i

most exciting casinos in the Shreveport/Bossier City =~ market has felt the competitive effects of Native

. . _y . . . T
market. More than 9.2 million people live within a ~ American casinos in Oklahoma and slot machines © ~1.: |l
! |

|
200-mile radius of the area, which is convenient at a regional racetrack, Boomtown Bossier: !
1
It

Loz =1
to the Dallas/Ft.Worth metropolitan area.  City has performed very well, again achieving T

» Boomtown Bossier City features a dockside riverboat ~ improved operating results and operating margins. ._______

casino, a 188-guestroom hotel, four restaurants,

meeting space, ample parking and other amenities.

The property, which was renamed and expanded in

2004 ANNUAL REPORT



CASINO MAGIC BILOXI

his 16-acre gaming destination is ideally

located in the heart of “Casino Row” in

Biloxi, Mississippi. Casino Magic Biloxi,
which was the first AAA “Four Diamond”-rated hotel
in the Gulf Coast region, attracts customers from
New Orleans; Mobile, Alabama; Pensacola and
Tallahassee, Florida; and Atlanta and surrounding
areas. = The property features approximately
50,000-square-feet of dockside casino, as well as
378 well-appointed guestrooms, three restaurants,
meeting and conference space, an indoor pool,
a spa and fitness center, and other amenities.

Its high levels of service help to distinguish

Casino Magic Biloxi in the highly competitive
Biloxi/Gulfport gaming market. = Pinnacle has
invested regularly to help keep Casino Magic Biloxi
at the top of its game. Currently, the property is in the
midst of an $11 million casino enhancement project
that is scheduled for completion in Spring of
2005. Management has focused on enhancing
operating results in the face of revenue pressures
caused by regional competition, and posted

slightly improved operating results for the year.

PINNAGLE ENTERTAINMENT

“NEW ORLEANS

CHILF OF MEXICOQ
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RENO, NEVADA

BOOMTOWN RENO

or decades, Boomtown Reno has been known

as a comfortable gaming destination for

locals and drive-in visitors from northern
California. Located along Interstate 80, one of the
nation’s busiest highways, Boomtown Reno attracts
a substantial portion of its customers from the more
than 10 million vehicles that pass by each year.
= Boomtown Reno sits on an expansive tract of
569 acres in the foothills in the Sierra Nevada Mountains,
and offers a range of amenities to motorists and truckers.
Its current 61-acre complex includes a 318-room hotel
and exciting casino, four restaurants, an RV park, two
large service stations, a truckers’ annex, and a mini-mart.
It also offers an indoor pool, meeting and conference
space, and other amenities. = The Reno market in

recent years has been affected by competition from

Native American casinos in California. To offset this and
to reestablish Boomtown Reno as a source of growth,
Pinnacle intends to develop the 500 acres surrounding
the property in ways that will benefit the casino.

s A major step was Pinnacles recent agreement to sell to

Cabela’s Retail, Inc. a 38.5-acre site for construction of ™~

a major Cabelas outdoor sporting goods store. Similar

Cabela’s stores in other regions attract millions of - - [

visitors per year. To be able to locate the Cabela’s store

near the Boomtown casino, Pinnacle has agreed to -

replace the existing Boomtown truck stop with a new~

NED: T
and better facility elsewhere on company-owned land:”~,

2004

ANNUAL REPORT



Casino  Magic!

CASINO MAGIC ARGENTINA

asino Magic Argentina combines the best

of Las Vegas-style casino gaming and

South American flair. The principal
property of this subsidiary is located in
Neuquén, a city of approximately 350,000 in
the Patagonia region of Argentina. A second,
smaller facility serves vacationers and travelers to
San Martin de Los Andes, with a third facility located
in the fly-fishing destination of Junin de Los Andes.
» Results for Casino Magic Argentina improved

sharply in 2004, helped by an improving economy

and favorable exchange rates. Pinnacle is
building a replacement for its current, leased
Casino Magic Neuquén property. The new facility,
which will be owned by the company, will
include a larger, nicer casino, restaurant, and
an entertainment venue. All will be located in a
highly visible location along a national
highway. The project remains on budget at

$14 million, and scheduled to open in mid-2005.

PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT




Financial Overview

PERATING AND FINANCIAL RESULTS
Pinnacle’s EBITDA before non-routine items
was $101.6 million, up 10.8% from $91.7 million
in 2003". Belterra’s results reflected the opening of a
$37 million expansion that doubled the number of

guestrooms, with EBITDA

increasing more than 36%
to $31.8 million in 2004
from $23.2 million in 2003.
Boomtown Bossier City
reflected a disciplined
operating strategy,
producing EBITDA of
$20.7 million in 2004,
up more than 25% from
$16.5 million in 2003,

are proliferating in California. Unfortunately, we
were unable to match the political and economic
muscle of the tribal casinos, and the initiative failed.
® Highly competitive markets continue to affect
certain of our properties. Boomtown Reno felt a full
year’s impact from the
increased Native American
gaming in Northern
California. EBITDA fell to
$10.2 million from
$13.7 million in 2003,
down more than 25%.
Low-margin fuel sales
drove higher revenue,
while results again

reflect increased Nevada

Lefl 1o right: John A. Godfrey, Executive VE General Counsel & Secretary;

even with a slight

Stephen H. Capp, Executive VE Chief Financtal Officer

gaming taxes. Our recent

decline in revenue.
® Boomtown New Orleans
again produced a solid
year by delivering EBITDA
of $32.2 million, up almost
10% from $29.3 million
in 2003. Our Argentine
operations also posted
strong gains again,
with EBITDA up 33%
at $6.9 million versus
$5.2 million in the
prior year. Although
our operations in

Argentina are small,

Left to right: Cliff” Kortman, St VE Construction & Development;
Alain Ubolds, Chief* Operating Officer; Wade W, Hundley, President

agreement with Cabela’s
is a major step in our
long-term strategy of
developing the large
am%mnt of land we own
surrounding Boomtown
in ways that will benefit
our core business.
Casino Magic Biloxi held
its ground in 2004 despite
the adverse effect of
Hurricane Ivan in
September. Full-year
revenue was down

3.7% and EBITDA

we are looking forward

to the mid-year opening of our new casino
facility in the city of Neuquén, Argentina.
® We received lease payments of approximately
$6.0 million from the two card clubs we lease to a
third-party operator in Southern California. We spent
$3 million attempting to broaden the gaming that
can be offered at card clubs so we would compete

better with the new Native American casinos that

was essentially flat at
$16.2 million year-over-year. This property is in the midst
of an $11.0 million casino refurbishment that we believe will
firmly establish its position as a quality leader in the market.
8 The required implementation of Sarbanes-Oxley
legislation last year was very expensive for us.
It forced the diversion of significant internal resources
from other productive uses, and we believe the

internal control benefits derived by the Company
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

were very limited. Unfortunately, much of the cost
and effort will continue. We can only hope there is no
additional legislation that might exacerbate this trend.
8 Our goals remain simple: to double and perhaps triple
our Company's EBITDA over the next five years. We are
a builder, not a buyer, and for the very specific goal of

value creation. Our multi-year growth plans are clear: the

NUMBER OF GUESTROOMS
AND SLOT MACHINES
16,000 (ACTUAL AND EXPECTED) H’ 8000
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“ Inciudes the anticipated opering of L' Auberge and the Neuquen reglacemant casing in 2005,
St. Louts City in 2007, and St. Louis County in 2008.

recently opened expansion at Belterra, the announced
opening of LAuberge in May 2005, the planned opening
of our new casino in Neuquén, Argentina this summer,
the estimated two-year development and opening
of our project in downtown St. Louis, the estimated
three-year development and opening of our project in
St. Louis County, and other smaller projects along the way
(e.g., our planned casino project in Great Exuma, Bahamas).
We believe we can develop and build such projects for a
total cost of about six times the expected EBITDA. Existing
operating properties throughout our industry are being
purchased for as much as 10 times EBITDA. In addition,
upon opening, we have a new property; a purchased
property is older, and possibly very old. Finally, a new
property delivers important depreciation tax benefits

that result in real cash flow versus an equity purchase.

IN 2004, WE CONTINUED TO MAINTAIN A SIGNIFICANT
PRE-FUNDED POSITION FOR MUCH OF OUR ANTICIPATED
CONSTRUCTION EXPENDITURES. At December 31, 2004 we
had $288 million in cash and cash equivalents, including
restricted cash dedicated to future construction. Perhaps
$45 million of this reflects the operating cash. The balance
is invested conservatively, and earns less per annum than
we pay for our debt. We choose to incur this cost of carry
because it enables us to undertake development projects
that we believe will generate strong returns and further
improve our financial strength, while minimizing the risk
of raising future capital. Of course, in the absence of our
development strategy, we could have simply paid down
debt and reduced our interest expense considerably.
We believe our financial strategy best supports our
goals of long-term development and value creation.
® Net cash provided by operating activities, as reported
in our statements of cash flows, was $30.4 million and
$55.4 million in 2004 and 2003, respectively. The big

swing vear-over-year is due primarily to the favorable

EBITDA BY PROPERTY
YEAR-OVER-YEAR COMPARISON*

$35.0 T

$30.0

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS

BOOMTOWN BELTERRA BOOMTOWR CASIND MAGIC BODMTOWN CASINO MAGIC
iLox: RENO

MEW ORLEANS ~ CASINO RESORT  BOSSIER CITY

2003 2004 H

* Excludes corporate overhead ang non-routing items

ARGENTINA AND
CARD CLUBS

income tax and working capital changes in 2003 that
were not duplicated in 2004. Although we paid no federal
income taxes in 2004, in 2003 we benefited from receipt

of a $10.5 million tax refund that resulted from net




» <

li

~

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

operating loss carrybacks to prior years of positive
tax payments. Also, at the end of 2004, due to the
growth of our business, we used approximately
$22 million more in certain working capital accounts
than at the end of 2003. Before changes in working
capital, the net cash provided by operating activities
was $41.8 million in 2004 versus $38.7 million in 2003.
@ In 2004, while we continued to generate substantial cash
flow from operations, we also continued to avoid paying
current federal income taxes. In fact, our tax returns
showed federal tax losses in the year of approximately
$3 million, and we ended 2004 with a balance of approximately
$53 million in federal net operating losses. We intend
to carry such losses forward to offset anticipated future
taxable income. In 2004, we also filed an amended tax
return for the year 2000 to capture tax benefits not
previously taken and expect to receive a tax refund of
$4.7 million. Our favorable tax position results from large
tax deductions of interest expense and depreciation
charges. These, of course, stem from the leverage we maintain
to fund (or pre-fund) our construction projects, and from

the new projects themselves upon opening, respectively.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

We used 2004 to significantly strengthen our capital
structure. We raised equity twice, increased our
borrowing capacity, and through several refinancings
lowered our average cost of borrowing, extended
our maturity profile and improved our covenants.
O In February 2004, we issued 11.5 million shares at
$11.15 per share, resulting in net proceeds of
$120 million. We believe the timing and success of that
capital raise proved critical to our selection for the two very
exciting casino project development opportunities in the
St. Louis area. Both projects are under way as we write
this report. That equity issuance also offset the exercise in
December 2002 of our option to purchase 2.0 million shares
at $10.00 per share from the company’s former chairman
and a related entity. In December 2004, we raised another
880 million in net proceeds of equity, by issuing

4.6 million shares at $18.25 per share, bringing the total

equity raised for the year to $200 million.
We believe the second equity offering provided
the capital cushion for our growing Company,
particularly as we undertake the purchase of the
Embassy Suites - St. Louis and an adjoining parcel of land.
o In March, we issued $200 million of new 8.25% senior

subordinated bonds, due 2012, in order to refinance a

NET REVENUE BY PROPERTY

$180.0 4
$160.0 —
$140.0 =

$120.0 —

$106.4

VNSNS N NS s

$104.3

NS h
b NSNS N N 5908

$100.0 =

$83.6
$80.5
$83.6
$84.5

$80.0 =

$60.0 —

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS

$40.0—

18.8
$21.8

13 o

HOOMTOWN CASIND MAGIC BOOMTOWN
BOSSIER CITY BILOXI REND

$20.0 —

FNANSNINSNSSN N o585

7_\_ AVAVAVAVAN Y

w
|

X

50.0 b

BOOMTOWN
NEW ORLEANS.

BELTERRA
CASIND RESORT

2003 D 2004 D

CASING MAGIC
ARGENTINA AND
CARD CLUBS

portion of the $350 million of 9.25% bonds due 2007.
We continued that effort and refinanced another portion
of the 9.25% bonds in December with a $100 million
add-on to the 8.25% bonds. We just completed the
refinancing of the 9.25% bonds in February 2005 with
proceeds from our larger bank financing. In August, we
amended our bank financing: we increased the amount,
extended the maturity, reduced the pricing and improved
the covenants to better accommodate our strategic
plan. Today our debt capital structure is fairly simple:
it consists of the $300 million of 8.25% bonds due 2012,
$135 million of 8.75% bonds due 2013, and a $380 million
bank facility. The bank facility is comprised of a $125 million
revolving credit line that matures in December 2008 and
a $255 million term loan that matures in August 2010. We have
no material principal payments due prior to December 2008.
o Two years ago, our balance sheet was unprepared

for the development prospects we envisioned for this
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

Company. We have aggressively retooled our capital
structure, and exploited very favorable conditions in the
financial markets. As we enter 2005, much of this work
is complete. However, we are always looking to improve
our capital structure. Our longer-term financial goals
remain consistent: to deleverage the Company and

deliver strong returns for shareholders through growth.

LIQUIDITY

Our liquidity position remains very strong. We finished
the year with $288 million of cash, cash equivalents, and
restricted cash dedicated to our current construction
projects. We also had available $115 million of our
$125 million revolving line of credit and a $130 million
delayed-draw term loan. That left our available liquidity
at December 31, 2004 at $533 million. This amount

does not include any future cash flow from operations.

The remaining cost to complete L'Auberge as of
December 31, 2004 is estimated at $160 million.
We believe we have sufficient liquidity today to complete
our St. Louis City project, currently estimated at

$200 million. Finally, we have substantial and growing

cash flows from operations. We estimate that
such cash flows over the next few years will be
sufficient to fund a portion of the St. Louis County

project, currently estimated at $300 million.

It takes financial strength to build a great company.
Pinnacle emerged from 2004 with higher returns on existing
operations, a much larger base of equity capital, and more
liquidity than ever before. We look forward to building

our future growth on this solid financial foundation.

Pro Forma Liquidity: ($ millions)
© Asof12/31/04:
. Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash $288
. Availability under credit facilities $245
? $533
' Asof12/31/04:
i Estimated cash costs to complete L Auberge (3160)
Total pro forma liquidity after opening 1. Auberge
and before operating cash flow for the St. Louis
projects and other growth opportunities $373

*THE OBLIGATORY EBITDA TO NET INCOME RECONCILIATION

We use EBITDA as a helpful measure of our performance at the property and corporate levels and as one of several tools to help

evaluate our ability to service debt. Calculation of EBITDA and description of non-routine items can be found beginning on Page 17 of our

Form 10-K. The following is a reconciliation of EBITDA before non-routine items to net income (loss).

Twelve months ended

($ MILLIONS) 12/31/2001 12/31/2002 12/31/2003 12/31/2004
EBITDA before non-routine items $64.8 $86.3 $91.7 $101.6
Non-routine items (21.1) (12.9) (6.8) 28.2
Depreciation and amortization (49.5) (44.9) (46.8) (48.2)
Interest expense, net (44.8) (47.5) (52.8) (49.0)
Loss on early extinguishment of debt 0.0 0.0 (19.9) (14.9)
[ncome tax (expense) benefit 219 6.1 6.4 (8.6)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle 0.0 (56.7) 0.0 0.0
Net income (loss) ($28.6) ($69.6) (528.2) $9.2
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PARTI

Item 1. Description of Business

Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. (the “Company” or “Pinnacle”) is a leading diversified, multi-jurisdictional
owner and operator of gaming entertainment facilities that owns and operates five properties in the United States.
Such properties are located in southeastern Indiana; Reno, Nevada; Bossier City, Louisiana; New Orleans,
Louisiana; and Biloxi, Mississippi. The Company is also building L’ Auberge du Lac, a major casino resort in
Lake Charles, Louisiana. In addition, the Company is developing a major casino in downtown St. Louis,
Missouri and a major casino in south St. Louis County, Missouri. Internationally, the Company is building a
replacement casino for the larger of the three casinos it operates in Argentina and has signed a letter of intent to
operate a casino adjoining the Four Seasons Resort Great Exuma at Emerald Bay in the Bahamas. The Company
also receives lease income from two card clubs in Southern California. All of the Company’s current casinos
cater primarily to customers who live within driving distance of the properties. ’

Pinnacle is the successor to the Hollywood Park Turf Club, organized in 1938. It was incorporated in 1981
under the name Hollywood Park Realty Enterprises, Inc. In 1992, as part of a restructuring, the Company
changed its name to Hollywood Park, Inc. In February 2000, the Company changed its name to Pinnacle
Entertainment, Inc.

The Company plans to grow profitability three ways: first, through the strategic development of new gaming
properties in attractive gaming markets; second, through a disciplined capital expenditure program at its existing
locations; and finally, through ongoing cost-reduction initiatives.

In May 2004, the Company opened its new 300-guestroom tower at Belterra Casino Resort, the centerpiece
of a $37 million expansion project. In addition to increasing the guestroom base to a total of 608 guestrooms, the
expansion project added approximately 33,000 square feet of meeting and conference space, a year-round
swimming pool and other amenities.

Pinnacle is currently building L’ Auberge du Lac Hotel & Casino, a $365 million casino resort in Lake
Charles, Louisiana. The Company believes this resort will be the premier casino in the Lake Charles area upon its
scheduled opening in May 2005. Lake Charles is the closest significant gaming jurisdiction to the Houston,
Austin and San Antonio metropolitan areas. L’ Auberge is located on 227 acres and will feature approximately
745 guestrooms, several restaurants, approximately 28,000 square feet of meeting space, a championship golf
course designed by Tom Fazio, an expansive pool area, retail shops and a full-service spa. Unlike most other
riverboat casinos, all of the public areas at L’ Auberge (except the parking garage), and in particular the casino,
will be situated entirely on one level. The casino will be surrounded on three sides by the hotel facility and other
guest amenities, providing convenient access to approximately 1,600 slot machines and 60 table games. The
Company believes L’ Auberge will be larger, and offer more amenities, than any other resort in the southwest
Louisiana/east Texas market.

The Company is also building a replacement casino in Neuquen, Argentina, which facility will include a
casino, a restaurant and an entertainment venue. The new and larger casino replaces a leased facility that is in an
inferior location and is over 20 years old.

In January 2004, the City of St. Louis (through affiliated entities) selected the Company to develop a $258
million casino, luxury hotel and entertainment complex in downtown St. Louis near Laclede’s Landing north of
the Gateway Arch. In February 2004, St. Louis County (through an affiliated entity) selected the Company to
develop a $300 million casino and mixed-use complex in St. Louis County, approximately 10 miles south of
downtown St. Louis. In September 2004, the Missouri Gaming Commission selected the Company for priority
investigation, thereby enabling it to proceed with both St. Louis development projects.

In December 2004, the Company signed a letter of intent to sublease premises from Emerald Bay Resort
Hotel Limited to operate a casino adjacent to the Four Seasons Resort Great Exuma at Emerald Bay in the
Bahamas, which letter of intent was extended in March to May 1, 2005.
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opportunities grow and demand warrants. The Company has entered into agreements to sell
approximately 39 acres of its excess Reno land to Cabela’s Retail, Inc. for construction of an outdoor
sporting goods store adjacent to its Boomtown Reno hotel casino facility.

»  Experienced Management Team The Company’s executive and property-level management teams,
led by Daniel R. Lee and Wade W. Hundley, have extensive industry experience and an established
record of developing, acquiring, integrating and operating gaming facilities. Mr. Lee, formerly the
Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President of Development at Mirage Resorts, became the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board in April 2002. Mr. Hundley, formerly
the Executive Vice President in the Office of the CEO of Harveys Casino Resorts, joined Pinnacle in
September 2001 as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer and became President of the
Company in February 2005. Prior to his position at Harveys, Mr. Hundley was a principal at Colony
Capital, which then owned Harveys. John A. Godfrey joined the Company in 2002 as Senior Vice
President and General Counsel and became Executive Vice President in February 2005. Mr. Godfrey
has had extensive experience in gaming law, having served as a name partner in two firms since 1984
and senior positions in the Gaming Division of the Nevada Attorney General’s Office from 1981 to
1984. In January 2003, Stephen H. Capp became the Company’s Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer. Mr. Capp has extensive experience in the financial services industry, and was most
recently a Managing Director at Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc. from 1999 to January 2003. Additionally, in
February 2005, Alain Uboldi was promoted to Chief Operating Officer from the position of Regional
Vice President and General Manager of L’ Auberge. Prior to joining the Company in 2001, Mr. Uboldi
was President and COO of Lady Luck Gaming Corporation.

Since joining Pinnacle, the management team has focused on improving operations and reducing
overhead, as evidenced by the recent improvements in operating margins. The Company also continues
to improve its balance sheet through various capital financing transactions. In addition, the Company
has been actively seeking growth opportunities, including L’Auberge, the St. Louis development
projects and the Argentina casino developments. Its management team is continuously evaluating
opportunities to increase efficiency and productivity, to improve its capitalization, and to seize upon
growth opportunities.

Current Operations

Boomtown New Orleans is a locals-oriented dockside riverboat casino. The riverboat features a casino
containing approximately 1,532 slot machines and 47 table games and an approximately 88,000-square-foot
adjoining building with two restaurants, a delicatessen, a 350-seat nightclub, 21,000 square feet of meeting space,
an amusement center and 1,729 parking spaces. The property opened in 1994 and is located on 54 acres in
Harvey, Louisiana, approximately 10 miles from downtown New Orleans and across the Mississippi River in the
“West Bank” suburban area.

Boomtown New Orleans competes with two other dockside riverboat casinos and a large land-based casino
and entertainment facility in downtown New Orleans. During 2004, according to the Louisiana Gaming Control
Board, gaming revenues grew 7.7% to $608 million in the New Orleans market, of which 52.6% was accounted
for by the land-based casino and 19.2% by Boomtown New Orleans. Boomtown New Orleans is the only casino
on the west bank of the Mississippi River and there are a limited number of bridges across the river, which the
Company believes provides it with a competitive advantage amongst West Bank residents. Legislation passed in
2004 permits, subject to a local referendum, the introduction of 400 slot machines at a racetrack located on the
east side of the river and approximately 20 miles from the Boomtown New Orleans property.

Belterra Casino Resort (“Belterra”) is a regional resort adjoining a dockside riverboat casino. It opened in
October 2000 and is located on 315 acres of land along the Ohio River near Vevay, Indiana, approximately 50
miles southwest of downtown Cincinnati, Ohio, and 65 miles northeast of Louisville, Kentucky. The total
population within 300 miles of Belterra is approximately 39 million people. By comparison, some 26 million
people live within 300 miles of Las Vegas.
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Company Overview

The following is an overview of the Company’s gaming operations as of December 31, 2004:

Number of
Slot Table  Hotel
Property Type of Facility Principal Markets Machines Games Rooms
Operating Properties:
Boomtown New Orleans, LA ... Dockside Local 1,532 47 —
Belterra Casino Resort, IN ... .. Dockside Cincinnati, Ohio and
Louisville, Kentucky 1,598 44 608
Boomtown Bossier City, LA . ... Dockside Dallas/Ft. Worth and Local 1,206 35 188
Casino Magic Biloxi, MS ...... Dockside Alabama, North Florida,
Georgia 1,166 32 378
Boomtown Reno, NV .. ....... Land-based Northern California and
Local 1,229 30 318
Casino Magic Argentina(a): .... Land-based Local and Regional Tourists 653 —
Operating Property Total . . ... 7,384 232 1,492
Card Clubs Leased(b):
Hollywood Park & Crystal Park ... Land-based Local — 120 238
Properties Under Construction:
L’Auberge duLac, LA .......... Boat-in-moat (¢) Houston, San Antonio,
Austin, Southwest
Louisiana 1,600 60 745
Development Proposals:
City of St. Louis, MO(d) ......... Boat-in-moat (¢) Missouri and [llinois 2,000 40 200
St. Louis County, MO(@d) ......... Boat-in-moat (¢) Missouri and Illinois 3,000 60 100
Great Exuma, Bahamas(e) ........ Land-based In-house Tourists 65 8 —
Proposed Acquisition:
Embassy Suites
St. Louis-Downtown(f) ........ Hotel Regional Travelers — — 297

(@)

(b)

(c)
(@

(e)

®

Data present the combined operations of the casinos the Company operates in Argentina. Upon the
completion of the Company’s replacement casino in Neuquen, the Company expects the total number of slot
machines and table games will increase to 836 and 57, respectively.

Data present the combined operations of two card clubs in Southern California that the Company leases on a
year-to-year basis to a third-party operator.

A “boat-in-moat” is a floating, single-level dockside casino in a controlled body of water.

In early 2004, the St. Louis authorities selected our downtown St. Louis and St. Louis County development
proposals, subject to the final approval of the Missouri Gaming Commission.

In December 2004, the Company signed a letter of intent to sublease premises from Emerald Bay Resort
Hotel Limited to operate a casino adjacent to the Four Seasons Resort Great Exuma at Emerald Bay in the
Bahamas, which letter of intent was extended to May 1, 2005. The casino is expected to open in late 2005,
contingent upon the Company receiving approvals from governmental authorities in the Bahamas and
execution of a final lease agreement.

The Embassy Suites purchase is subject to various conditions and is expected to close in the first half of
2005.

Business Strategy and Competitive Strengths

Pinnacle’s strategy is to grow profitability in three ways: first, through the strategic development of new

gaming properties in attractive gaming markets; second, through a disciplined capital expenditure program at its



existing locations; and finally, through ongoing cost-reduction initiatives. Management believes that the
following key competitive strengths will contribute to the successful implementation of its strategy:

High-Quality Properties in Attractive Locations Pinnacle owns high-quality casino properties in
attractive locations. The Company is committed to maintaining the quality of its properties by offering
an up-to-date slot machine product, presenting fresh entertainment offerings and renovating and
improving its facilities where necessary to remain competitive and enhance its customers’ gaming
experience. Most of the Company’s properties have either opened or been extensively refurbished
within the past five years, including the 2004 opening of the new 300-guestroom tower at Belterra. The
Company believes the expansion at Belterra enabled it to build on the improvement in operating
performance at the property and to more efficiently take advantage of the existing facilities built in
2000.

Geographically Diversified Portfolio The Company owns and operates five U.S. properties and is
scheduled to open a sixth U.S. location in May 2005, each in a distinct market. This diversification
reduces dependence on any one market, while providing the Company an opportunity to build a
diversified base of gaming customers. This diversification would be further enhanced through the
Company’s two St. Louis projects upon their opening.

Significant Development Plans The Company believes L’Auberge will contribute substantial
revenues, cash flow and earnings. Further, management expects that, upon its completion, L’ Auberge
will be the premier property in the Lake Charles market. For the year ended December 31, 2004, the
three existing casino properties in Lake Charles generated $462.1 million in gaming revenue in the
aggregate, which does not include the significant gaming revenues of Native American gaming
facilities located approximately one hour’s drive east of the Lake Charles area. The site of L’ Auberge
is approximately a two-hour’s drive east from Houston, Texas, which it believes will be the principal
feeder market for its resort.

Significant Opportunities for Further Development Local St. Louis authorities selected Pinnacle’s
proposals early in 2004 to develop an approximately $258 million casino, luxury hotel and
entertainment complex in downtown St. Louis and an approximately $300 million casino complex in
south St. Louis County, respectively. The Company has since entered into a redevelopment agreement
with the City of St. Louis and a lease and development agreement with St. Louis County. In September
2004, the Missouri Gaming Commission selected the Company for priority investigation, thereby
enabling it to proceed with both St. Louis development projects.

In November 2004, the Company entered into an agreement to purchase the Embassy Suites
Hotel—St. Louis-Downtown for approximately $38 million. This 297-suite hotel adjoins the site on
which the Company intends to build the St. Louis City casino and luxury hotel. The transaction is
expected to close in the first half of 2005. In addition, in February 2005, the Company entered into an
agreement to purchase an additional 4.9 acres of vacant land immediately adjacent to the 7.3 acres
owned by the Company and the Embassy Suites. Combined with an option the Company holds to lease
an additional 4.3 acres adjacent to the other downtown parcels, the Company owns, has agreed to
purchase, or has an option to lease approximately 18 contiguous acres of real estate in downtown St.
Louis.

The Missouri Gaming Commission will determine in its discretion whether to issue gaming licenses to
the Company for either or both projects, based on its ongoing licensing investigation of the Company
and its key individuals and other factors. Among other factors, the Missouri Gaming Commission has
indicated, as a condition of potential future licensing, that the Company should attain a fixed charge
coverage ratio (as defined by the Missouri Gaming Commission) of 2.0x by September 30, 2005 and
maintain such ratio. Management’s projections anticipate meeting such requirement.

Several of the Company’s properties occupy only a portion of their sites, allowing the Company ample
opportunity to add casino capacity, guestrooms, and entertainment and other facilities, as its market
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opportunities grow and demand warrants. The Company has entered into agreements to sell
approximately 39 acres of its excess Reno land to Cabela’s Retail, Inc. for construction of an outdoor
sporting goods store adjacent to its Boomtown Reno hotel casino facility.

*  Experienced Management Team The Company’s executive and property-level management teams,
led by Daniel R. Lee and Wade W. Hundley, have extensive industry experience and an established
record of developing, acquiring, integrating and operating gaming facilities. Mr. Lee, formerly the
Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President of Development at Mirage Resorts, became the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board in April 2002. Mr. Hundley, formerly
the Executive Vice President in the Office of the CEO of Harveys Casino Resorts, joined Pinnacle in
September 2001 as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer and became President of the
Company in February 2005. Prior to his position at Harveys, Mr. Hundley was a principal at Colony
Capital, which then owned Harveys. John A. Godfrey joined the Company in 2002 as Senior Vice
President and General Counsel and became Executive Vice President in February 2005. Mr. Godfrey
has had extensive experience in gaming law, having served as a name partner in two firms since 1984
and senior positions in the Gaming Division of the Nevada Attorney General’s Office from 1981 to
1984. In January 2003, Stephen H. Capp became the Company’s Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer. Mr. Capp has extensive experience in the financial services industry, and was most
recently a Managing Director at Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc. from 1999 to January 2003. Additionally, in
February 2005, Alain Uboldi was promoted to Chief Operating Officer from the position of Regional
Vice President and General Manager of L’ Auberge. Prior to joining the Company in 2001, Mr. Uboldi
was President and COO of Lady Luck Gaming Corporation.

Since joining Pinnacle, the management team has focused on improving operations and reducing
overhead, as evidenced by the recent improvements in operating margins. The Company also continues
to improve its balance sheet through various capital financing transactions. In addition, the Company
has been actively seeking growth opportunities, including L'Auberge, the St. Louis development
projects and the Argentina casino developments. Its management team is continuously evaluating
opportunities to increase efficiency and productivity, to improve its capitalization, and to seize upon
growth opportunities.

Current Operations

Boomtown New Orleans is a locals-oriented dockside riverboat casino. The riverboat features a casino
containing approximately 1,532 slot machines and 47 table games and an approximately 88,000-square-foot
adjoining building with two restaurants, a delicatessen, a 350-seat nightclub, 21,000 square feet of meeting space,
an amusement center and 1,729 parking spaces. The property opened in 1994 and is located on 54 acres in
Harvey, Louisiana, approximately 10 miles from downtown New Orleans and across the Mississippi River in the
“West Bank” suburban area.

Boomtown New Orleans competes with two other dockside riverboat casinos and a large land-based casino
and entertainment facility in downtown New Orleans. During 2004, according to the Louisiana Gaming Control
Board, gaming revenues grew 7.7% to $608 million in the New Orleans market, of which 52.6% was accounted
for by the land-based casino and 19.2% by Boomtown New Orleans. Boomtown New Orleans is the only casino
on the west bank of the Mississippi River and there are a limited number of bridges across the river, which the
Company believes provides it with a competitive advantage amongst West Bank residents. Legislation passed in
2004 permits, subject to a local referendum, the introduction of 400 slot machines at a racetrack located on the
east side of the river and approximately 20 miles from the Boomtown New Orleans property.

Belterra Casino Resort (“Belterra”) is a regional resort adjoining a dockside riverboat casino. It opened in
October 2000 and is located on 315 acres of land along the Ohio River near Vevay, Indiana, approximately 50
miles southwest of downtown Cincinnati, Ohio, and 65 miles northeast of Louisville, Kentucky. The total
population within 300 miles of Belterra is approximately 39 million people. By comparison, some 26 million
people live within 300 miles of Las Vegas.



In early May 2004, the Company completed and opened a $37 million hotel tower expansion. Today, the
resort features a riverboat casino with 38,000 square feet of casino space, approximately 1,598 slot machines and
44 table games. It also features a 15-story, 608-guestroom hotel with 11 suites, six restaurants, 33,000 square feet
of meeting and conference space, a retail shopping pavilion, a 1,750-seat entertainment showroom, a year-round
swimming pool, a spa and an 18-hole championship golf course designed by Tom Fazio. The resort provides
2,000 parking spaces, most of which are in a multi-level parking structure. Indiana law was revised to permit
dockside gaming operations as of August 1, 2002, with a new graduated tax structure. Customers strongly prefer
dockside operations due to the convenience of being able to enter and leave the casino at any time, as well as the
reduction of customer surges and the resultant lines at the facility’s restaurants, valet parking and other services
that may occur with cruising riverboat casino operations.

Belterra competes with four other dockside riverboats. According to the Indiana Gaming Commission, 2004
gross gaming revenues from the five riverboats in this market grew 7.0% over the prior year, to approximately
$1.2 billion. Belterra grew its gaming revenues by 12.9% during the same period. Current Indiana law does not
permit any additional casinos to be built along the Ohio River, although there are no legal limitations as to the
size of the riverboats operated by each licensee. A major competitor has indicated its intent to replace its current
casino riverboat with a larger one. State law was also amended in 2004 to permit a casino operation in the town
of French Lick, Indiana, which is between Louisville and Indianapolis, approximately 95 miles from Belterra.

Boomtown Bossier City is a regional hotel property built around a dockside riverboat casino. The property
opened in October 1996 on a site directly adjacent to, and highly visible from, Interstate 20. The Bossier City/
Shreveport region offers the closest casinos to the Dallas/Fort Worth metropolitan area, which is a three-hour
drive to the west along Interstate 20. Boomtown Bossier City offers approximately 1,206 slot machines and 35
table games. The property also includes a 188-guestroom hotel, with four master suites and 88 junior suites, four
restaurants and 1,867 parking spaces.

In November 2002, the Company completed a $24 million renovation of the Boomtown Bossier City
property. This renovation included re-branding the facility to the Boomtown name, adding new restaurants and
re-designing the hotel lobby and porte-cochere.

According to the Louisiana Gaming Control Board, gaming revenues in the Bossier City/Shreveport region
were $835.5 million in 2004, up 2.3% compared to the prior year. Revenues at Boomtown Bossier City declined
4.1% for the same period. The market currently consists of five dockside riverboat casino hotels, including
Boomtown, and a racetrack slot operation located approximately eight miles east of Boomtown Bossier City. The
racetrack slot parlor opened with approximately 900 slot machines in mid-2003. The racetrack opened a larger,
free-standing slot-only casino with approximately 1,400 slot machines in May 2004 and accounted for essentially
all of the market growth in the period. Current state regulations do not permit table games at the racetrack. In
mid-2003, a Native American casino opened in Oklahoma, approximately one hour north of Dallas, providing
competition for the Bossier City/Shreveport casinos. Other Native American casinos have also opened in
Oklahoma, and racetracks in that state have installed slot machines.

Casino Magic Biloxi is a regional property on the Mississippi Gulf Coast that features a dockside riverboat
casino and hotel tower. The property, which began operations in 1993, is situated in the center of a cluster of
three casinos known as “Casino Row.” In 1998, the Company opened a 378-guestroom hotel, including 86 suites,
at the property. The property features a 48,920-square-foot dockside riverboat casino containing approximately
1,166 slot machines and 32 table games. The facility also features three restaurants, 6,600 square feet of
convention space, a health club and 1,315 parking spaces.

The property is smaller than some of the other area casinos, but offers superior quality guestrooms and
facilities. Since the end of 2001, the property has enjoyed a “Four-Diamond” rating from AAA, the first hotel/
casino in Mississippi to receive such a designation. In late 2004, Casino Magic commenced an $11 million
casino enhancement project, which includes substantially refurbishing the existing showroom and casino, and
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The Hollywood Park-Casino and the Crystal Park Casino face significant competition from other card club
casinos in neighboring cities, as well as competition from other forms of gaming around southern California,
including horse racing and Native American gaming. Although the Company does not operate these card club
casinos, the operator, who is its lessee, is affected by local market conditions.

New Developments and Expansion Plans

L’Auberge du Lac: In early September 2003, the Company commenced construction of L’ Auberge du
Lac, which management believes will be the premier casino in the Lake Charles, Louisiana area. L’ Auberge is
located on 227 acres of land, and is expected to offer approximately 745 guestrooms, several restaurants,
approximately 28,000 square feet of meeting space, a championship golf course designed by Tom Fazio, an
expansive outdoor pool area, retail shops and a full-service spa. Unlike most other riverboat casinos, all of the
public areas at L’ Auberge (except the parking garage), and in particular the casino, will be situated entirely on
one level. The casino will be surrounded on three sides by the hotel facility and other guest amenities, providing
convenient access to approximately 1,600 slot machines and 60 table games.

In July 2004, the Company announced an increase in the scope and budget of L’ Auberge, including, among
other items, increasing the number of guestrooms to approximately 745 from approximately 700. Overall, the
budget was increased to $365 million from $325 million to reflect these and other changes. Through December
31, 2004, the Company has invested approximately $193 million in the form of construction and other costs.

L’Auberge remains on schedule for an opening in May 2005 and in accord with its agreement with the
Louisiana Gaming Control Board that calls for construction of certain facilities to be completed by June 13,
2005, which date was extended on March 15 from the prior May 12, 2005 date. After completion and an
employee training period, L’ Auberge is expected to officially open to the public on May 26, 2005. Issuance of
the gaming license from the Louisiana Gaming Control Board is subject to continued compliance with gaming
regulations and other conditions.

St. Louis City Project: In January 2004, the City of St. Louis (through affiliated entities) selected the
Company to develop its St. Louis City project, a $258 million casino, luxury hotel and entertainment complex
near Laclede’s Landing north of the Gateway Arch. A redevelopment agreement was executed in April. As
proposed, the project includes a 75,000-square-foot casino, 200 luxury guestrooms, restaurants and retail space
on approximately 7.3 acres of land currently owned by the Company.

In April 2004, the Company executed a letter of intent under which the luxury hotel and some of the food,
beverage and spa facilities would be operated by Four Seasons Hotels Limited under the Four Seasons brand.
Such letter of intent anticipates a binding management agreement, which the Company hopes to execute in the
second quarter of 2005.

In May 2004, the Company executed an 18-month option to lease for 99 years 4.3 acres of additional land
near Laclede’s Landing which is owned or subject to ongoing condemnation proceedings by a city agency. In
November, the Company entered into an agreement to purchase the Embassy Suites Hotel—St. Louis-Downtown
(“Embassy Suites”), a 297-suite hotel that adjoins the site on which the Company intends to build the St. Louis
City facility. Anticipated to cost approximately $38 million, the Company expects to close the transaction in the
first half of 2005 and intends to continue the hotel’s affiliation with the Embassy Suites brand. The Company
also intends to refurbish the Embassy Suites and connect it to the planned casino complex. Finally, in February
2005, the Company entered into an agreement to acquire an additional 4.9 acre land parcel immediately adjacent
to the proposed casino site and Embassy Suites hotel for approximately $7.5 million, which is expected to close
in March 2005. Cumulatively, the Company owns, has agreed to purchase, or has under option to lease,
approximately 18 acres of contiguous land for the development of its St. Louis City project.

In September, the Company was selected by the Missouri Gaming Commission (“MGC”) for priority
investigation, and in January 2005 received several key approvals from the MGC for the St. Louis City project.
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In early May 2004, the Company completed and opened a $37 million hotel tower expansion. Today, the
resort features a riverboat casino with 38,000 square feet of casino space, approximately 1,598 slot machines and
44 table games. It also features a 15-story, 608-guestroom hotel with 11 suites, six restaurants, 33,000 square feet
of meeting and conference space, a retail shopping pavilion, a 1,750-seat entertainment showroom, a year-round
swimming pool, a spa and an 18-hole championship goif course designed by Tom Fazio. The resort provides
2,000 parking spaces, most of which are in a multi-level parking structure. Indiana law was revised to permit
dockside gaming operations as of August 1, 2002, with a new graduated tax structure. Customers strongly prefer
dockside operations due to the convenience of being able to enter and leave the casino at any time, as well as the
reduction of customer surges and the resultant lines at the facility’s restaurants, valet parking and other services
that may occur with cruising riverboat casino operations.

Belterra competes with four other dockside riverboats. According to the Indiana Gaming Commission, 2004
gross gaming revenues from the five riverboats in this market grew 7.0% over the prior year, to approximately
$1.2 billion. Belterra grew its gaming revenues by 12.9% during the same period. Current Indiana law does not
permit any additional casinos to be built along the Ohio River, although there are no legal limitations as to the
size of the riverboats operated by each licensee. A major competitor has indicated its intent to replace its current
casino riverboat with a larger one. State law was also amended in 2004 to permit a casino operation in the town
of French Lick, Indiana, which is between Louisville and Indianapolis, approximately 95 miles from Belterra.

Boomtown Bossier City is a regional hotel property built around a dockside riverboat casino. The property
opened in October 1996 on a site directly adjacent to, and highly visible from, Interstate 20. The Bossier City/
Shreveport region offers the closest casinos to the Dallas/Fort Worth metropolitan area, which is a three-hour
drive to the west along Interstate 20. Boomtown Bossier City offers approximately 1,206 slot machines and 35
table games. The property also includes a 188-guestroom hotel, with four master suites and 88 junior suites, four
restaurants and 1,867 parking spaces.

In November 2002, the Company completed a $24 million renovation of the Boomtown Bossier City
property. This renovation included re-branding the facility to the Boomtown name, adding new restaurants and
re-designing the hotel lobby and porte-cochere.

According to the Louisiana Gaming Control Board, gaming revenues in the Bossier City/Shreveport region
were $835.5 million in 2004, up 2.3% compared to the prior year. Revenues at Boomtown Bossier City declined
4.1% for the same period. The market currently consists of five dockside riverboat casino hotels, including
Boomtown, and a racetrack slot operation located approximately eight miles east of Boomtown Bossier City. The
racetrack slot parlor opened with approximately 900 slot machines in mid-2003. The racetrack opened a larger,
free-standing slot-only casino with approximately 1,400 slot machines in May 2004 and accounted for essentially
all of the market growth in the period. Current state regulations do not permit table games at the racetrack. In
mid-2003, a Native American casino opened in Oklahoma, approximately one hour north of Dallas, providing
competition for the Bossier City/Shreveport casinos. Other Native American casinos have also opened in
Oklahoma, and racetracks in that state have installed slot machines.

Casino Magic Biloxi is a regional property on the Mississippi Gulf Coast that features a dockside riverboat
casino and hotel tower. The property, which began operations in 1993, is situated in the center of a cluster of
three casinos known as “Casino Row.” In 1998, the Company opened a 378-guestroom hotel, including 86 suites,
at the property. The property features a 48,920-square-foot dockside riverboat casino containing approximately
1,166 slot machines and 32 table games. The facility also features three restaurants, 6,600 square feet of
convention space, a health club and 1,315 parking spaces.

The property is smaller than some of the other area casinos, but offers superior quality guestrooms and
facilities. Since the end of 2001, the property has enjoyed a “Four-Diamond” rating from AAA, the first hotel/
casino in Mississippi to receive such a designation. In late 2004, Casino Magic commenced an $11 million
casino enhancement project, which includes substantially refurbishing the existing showroom and casino, and
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updating the existing slot product. The Company expects the project to be completed in Spring 2005. In June
2003, a renovation of the property’s high-roller area and casino entrance was completed at a cost of
approximately $1.2 million.

The principal markets for the Mississippi Gulf Coast region are the nearby cities of Mobile, Alabama;
Pensacola and Tallahassee, Florida; the interior areas of the South, whose residents visit the Mississippi Gulf
Coast to escape the summer heat; and the numerous other cities of central and northern Florida, for whom the
Mississippi Gulf Coast also often offers the closest casinos. According to the Mississippi Gaming Commission,
the Gulf Coast market generated gaming revenues of $1.2 billion during 2004, a 4.8% increase over the prior
year. Casino Magic’s gaming revenue fell by approximately 3.7% in the same period. A competing casino
located near the Casino Magic Biloxi property has announced an expansion project, including guestrooms, a
restaurant and other amenities, and the construction of a new casino barge. Completion of the hotel expansion is
expected in Spring 2005, and the new casino barge is expected in late 2005. In addition, another competitor
commenced construction of a new facility during 2004, with an opening date announced for Summer 2005.

The nearby city of New Orleans is also a significant market for the Mississippi Gulf Coast, even though
New Orleans has its own casinos. The State of Mississippi opted to legalize casinos in a fashion similar to
Nevada and New Jersey, where tax rates are lower, but there is no limit as to the number of casinos. Such states
therefore have a greater number of casinos, with most of such casinos offering more extensive accommodations
and food, beverage, entertainment and other amenities than many of the casinos in jurisdictions where tax rates
are high and the number of casinos is limited. Many New Orleans residents prefer to drive the short distance to
Mississippi to enjoy the greater amenities offered along the Mississippi Gulf Coast as an alternative to the
casinos available in New Orleans proper.

Boomtown Reno is a land-based casino hotel that has been operating for more than 35 years and is located
on a portion of the Company’s 569 acres approximately 11 miles west of downtown Reno, Nevada. This location
is directly adjacent to Interstate 80, which is the primary east-west interstate highway into northern California
from northern Nevada.

The property features 318 guestrooms and a 45,000-square-foot casino containing approximately 1,117 slot
machines and 30 table games. The property features four restaurants, an 80-seat lounge, a 30,000-square-foot
amusement center and an indoor pool. In addition to the main casino/hotel, the property also includes a full-
service truck stop with a satellite casino containing approximately 112 slot machines, a gas station and mini-
mart, a 203-space recreational vehicle park and 1,548 parking spaces.

On March 7, 2005, the Company entered into an agreement with Cabela’s Retail, Inc. to sell a total of
37.4 acres adjacent to its Boomtown Reno hotel and casino facility for an aggregate price of approximately
$7.8 million. The Company has entered into a separate agreement with the purchaser to sell the approximately
1.1 acres of existing truck stop land for $10,000 following the receipt of certain environmental clearances. The
purchaser intends to build a Cabela’s outdoor sporting goods store on the land. A portion of the cost needed to
improve the road accessing the site and other related improvements would be financed through the issuance of
sales tax bonds through local or state governmental authorities. The bonds will be serviced by a portion of the
sales taxes generated by the new retail facilities. The Company has agreed to purchase, if necessary, half of the
bonds that would be used to finance a new loop road and utility work, and half of the bonds used to finance
certain interchange work supporting the developments if the interchange work is financed with sales tax bonds.
The Company estimates that it would purchase approximately $4 million to $10 million of these bonds, and
believes such bonds could be resold to other investors, particularly after the new facilities have opened. In
connection with the sale, the Company intends to build a new truck stop (together with a satellite casino) at
another location on the Boomtown Reno property it owns for approximately $12 million and will continue to
operate the existing truck stop and satellite casino during the construction period. The agreements are subject to
various conditions and are expected to close in the second half of 2005.
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Reno’s gaming market is primarily a drive-in market that attracts visitors from northern California. In
March 2000, California voters passed Proposition 1A, a ballot initiative that allows Native American groups to
conduct various gaming activities, including slot machines, card games and lotteries. Each Native American
group in California may operate slot machines, and up to two gaming facilities may be operated on any one
reservation. The number of machines each group is allowed to operate is subject to change pursuant to
negotiations which have been initiated between the tribes and the State of California.

In mid-2003 and 2004, new Native American casino developments opened in California that compete with
the Reno gaming properties. These casino developments are significantly closer to several primary feeder
markets than is the Boomtown Reno property and had an adverse impact on Boomtown Reno’s performance
when compared to pre-2003 levels. The Company believes the impact of the recent growth in Native American
gaming has been substantially absorbed by the Reno gaming market, including its Boomtown Reno property,
although the market will continue to be very competitive. Additionally, numerous Native American groups are at
various stages of planning new or significantly expanded facilities in the northern California area. During 2004,
revenues at Boomtown Reno increased approximately 1.0% versus the prior year, primarily due to an increase in
fuel sales offset by a decline in gaming revenue.

Casino Magic Argentina: The Company operates three casinos in the Patagonia region of Argentina. It is
building a replacement casino for the largest of the three (see “New Developments and Expansion Plans—Casino
Magic Argentina” below). The largest facility is located in the city of Neuqtien and contains approximately 500
slot machines, 31 table games and a 384-seat bingo facility. The second largest facility, located in San Martin de
los Andes, has 107 slot machines and 13 table games. The Company began operating the smallest of the three
facilities in November 2003, which is located in Junin de los Andes and has 46 slot machines. The Company
does not own any real property at these sites, but does own approximately 20 acres of land in the city of
Neuqden, where the Company is building a replacement casino facility expected to open in Spring 2005.

The first two casinos opened in 1995 and the Company began operating the third casino in November 2003.
All three casinos are operated under a 12-year concession agreement with the Province of Neuqtien that
originally was scheduled to expire in December 2006. This agreement was modified in 2003 in connection with
the expansion activities discussed below at “New Developments and Expansion Plans—Casino Magic Argentina”
and is expected to be extended to 2016 upon the opening of the new facility.

The Company’s current concession agreement with the Province of Neuquen provides for the Company’s
exclusive operation of casinos within approximately 33 miles of its facilities. In the Province of Rio Negro,
immediately adjacent to the Province of Neuquen, there is a casino approximately 10 miles from the Company’s
Neugquen operations.

California Card Club Leases: The Company receives lease income from two card clubs in Los Angeles
County: the Hollywood Park-Casino and the Crystal Park Casino. The Company leases the Hollywood Park-
Casino under a long-term lease agreement that, including a 10-year renewal option, expires in 2019. The
Hollywood Park-Casino is then subleased to an unaffiliated third-party operator under a year-to-year lease. The
Company owns the furniture, fixtures, equipment and leasehold improvements within the Hollywood Park-
Casino. The Company owns the Crystal Park Casino and leases it to the same card club operator that leases and
operates the Hollywood Park-Casino. The third-party operator is not believed to have substantial assets other
than the two card clubs. The lease payments under the year-to-year leases are believed to constitute a substantial
portion of the income at the card clubs.

The Hollywood Park-Casino opened in 1994. The facility contains approximately 30,000 square feet of card
club gaming space with 102 gaming tables and 21,000 square feet of retail and restaurant space.

The Crystal Park Casino opened in October 1996. The Crystal Park Casino contains approximately 40,000
square feet of gaming and banquet space with 18 gaming tables. The adjoining hotel contains 238 rooms,
including 36 suites.



The Hollywood Park-Casino and the Crystal Park Casino face significant competition from other card club
casinos in neighboring cities, as well as competition from other forms of gaming around southern California,
including horse racing and Native American gaming. Although the Company does not operate these card club
casinos, the operator, who is its lessee, is affected by local market conditions.

New Developments and Expansion Plans

L’Auberge du Lac: In early September 2003, the Company commenced construction of L’Auberge du
Lac, which management believes will be the premier casino in the Lake Charles, Louisiana area. L’ Auberge is
located on 227 acres of land, and is expected to offer approximately 745 guestrooms, several restaurants,
approximately 28.000 square feet of meeting space, a championship golf course designed by Tom Fazio, an
expansive outdoor pool area, retail shops and a full-service spa. Unlike most other riverboat casinos, all of the
public areas at L.’ Auberge (except the parking garage), and in particular the casino, will be situated entirely on
one level. The casino will be surrounded on three sides by the hotel facility and other guest amenities, providing
convenient access to approximately 1,600 slot machines and 60 table games.

In July 2004, the Company announced an increase in the scope and budget of L’ Auberge, including, among
other items, increasing the number of guestrooms to approximately 745 from approximately 700. Overall, the
budget was increased to $363 miilion from $325 million to reflect these and other changes. Through December
31, 2004, the Company has invested approximately $193 million in the form of construction and other costs.

L’Auberge remains on schedule for an opening in May 2005 and in accord with its agreement with the
Louisiana Gaming Control Board that calls for construction of certain facilities to be completed by June 13,
2005, which date was extended on March 15 from the prior May 12, 2005 date. After completion and an
employee training period, L’ Auberge is expected to officially open to the public on May 26, 2005. Issuance of
the gaming license from the Louisiana Gaming Control Board is subject to continued compliance with gaming
regulations and other conditions.

St. Louis City Project: In January 2004, the City of St. Louis (through affiliated entities) selected the
Company to develop its St. Louis City project, a $258 million casino, luxury hotel and entertainment complex
near Laclede’s Landing north of the Gateway Arch. A redevelopment agreement was executed in April. As
proposed, the project includes a 75,000-square-foot casino, 200 luxury guestrooms, restaurants and retail space
on approximately 7.3 acres of land currently owned by the Company.

In April 2004, the Company executed a letter of intent under which the luxury hotel and some of the food,
beverage and spa facilities would be operated by Four Seasons Hotels Limited under the Four Seasons brand.
Such letter of intent anticipates a binding management agreement, which the Company hopes to execute in the
second quarter of 2005.

In May 2004, the Company executed an 18-month option to lease for 99 years 4.3 acres of additional land
near Laclede’s Landing which is owned or subject to ongoing condemnation proceedings by a city agency. In
November, the Company entered into an agreement to purchase the Embassy Suites Hotel—St. Louis-Downtown
(“Embassy Suites™), a 297-suite hotel that adjoins the site on which the Company intends to build the St. Louis
City facility. Anticipated to cost approximately $38 million, the Company expects to close the transaction in the
first half of 2005 and intends to continue the hotel’s affiliation with the Embassy Suites brand. The Company
also intends to refurbish the Embassy Suites and connect it to the planned casino complex. Finally, in February
2005, the Company entered into an agreement to acquire an additional 4.9 acre land parcel immediately adjacent
to the proposed casino site and Embassy Suites hotel for approximately $7.5 million, which is expected to close
in March 2005. Cumulatively, the Company owns, has agreed to purchase, or has under option to lease,
approximately 18 acres of contiguous land for the development of its St. Louis City project.

In September, the Company was selected by the Missouri Gaming Commission (“MGC”) for priority
investigation, and in January 2005 received several key approvals from the MGC for the St. Louis City project.
8



The Company anticipates beginning construction shortly after receiving the necessary building and land-use
permiits, which it expects to receive in mid-2005. The St. Louis City project is expected to open 18 months
thereafter, in early 2007.

St. Louis County Project: In February 2004, St. Louis County (through an affiliated entity) selected the
Company to develop its St. Louis County project, a $300 million casino complex in the community of Lemay. A
lease and development agreement was executed in August 2004. Located approximately 10 miles south of
downtown St. Louis, the south St. Louis County development will be situated on 80 acres of land and will
include a 90,000-square-foot casino, 100-guestroom hotel, retail space, multiplex movie theater and bowling
alley. According to the terms of the agreement, Pinnacle will lease approximately 80 acres of land from the Port
Authority, 56 of such acres for its gaming and commercial facilities, and the remaining 24 acres will become a
public park and include additional community and recreational facilities.

The MGC also selected the Company for priority investigation for the St. Louis County project in
September 2004. The Company anticipates obtaining the required site approvals from the MGC in the first half
of 2005. Development of the St. Louis County site requires extensive environmental remediation and
construction of a new road to the site, which costs have been factored into the estimated project cost.
Management estimates that full development of the St. Louis County project will take approximately one year
longer than the St. Louis City project. Both of the projects are subject to MGC approval and licensing.

Casino Magic Argentina: In May 2004, construction began for a replacement facility for the existing
Neugquen casino, the principal Casino Magic Argentina property. The new facility is expected to open in the
Spring of 2005 and will include a casino, a restaurant and an entertainment venue on land owned by the
Company approximately one mile from the existing facility at an estimated cost of approximately US$14 million.
The Company is funding the expansion project utilizing Casino Magic Argentina’s existing cash resources and its
retained earnings through 2006. Depending on the subsidiary’s profitability through 2006, the Company intends
to develop additional phases of the planned expansion. Under the Company’s concession agreement with the
Province of Neugquen, either construction of certain minimum facilities or reinvestment of Casino Magic
Argentina’s financial resources (existing cash and retained earnings through 2006) will extend the existing
concession agreement from December 2006 to December 2016. An incremental investment of 5 million pesos (or
approximately US$1.7 million based on exchange rates as of December 31, 2004) to build a hotel facility with a
minimum of 10 guestrooms and three-star rating will further extend the agreement to December 2021.

Development of Casino in Great Exuma, Bahamas: The Company has signed a letter of intent to sublease
premises from Emerald Bay Resort Hotel Limited, a Bahamian corporation, to operate a casino adjoining the
existing Four Seasons Resort Great Exuma in the Bahamas. The casino is expected to be approximately 5,000
square feet in size and require an investment of approximately US$5 million. The casino is expected to open in
late 2005, contingent on receiving approvals from governmental authorities in the Bahamas and execution of a
final lease agreement.

Competition

The Company faces significant competition in each of the jurisdictions in which it has established gaming
operations. Such competition may intensify in some of these jurisdictions as new gaming operations enter these
markets and existing competitors expand their operations. The Company’s properties compete directly with other
gaming properties in Indiana, Louisiana, Mississippi, Nevada, and Argentina, as well as in states adjacent to the
Company’s properties. The Company also competes for customers with other casino operators in other markets,
including casinos located on Native American reservations, and other forms of gaming, such as lotteries and
Internet gaming. Many of the Company’s competitors are larger and have substantially greater name recognition
and marketing resources, as well as access to lower cost sources of financing, and sometimes, particularly for
Native American casinos, lower or non-existent tax rates. The Company believes that increased legalized gaming
in other states, particularly in areas close to its existing gaming properties, such as Alabama, Arkansas,
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California, Florida, Kentucky, Ohio, Oklahoma or Texas, or the expansion of Native American gaming in or near
the states in which the Company operates, could create additional competition for the Company and could
adversely affect its operations.

Government Regulation and Gaming Issues

The ownership and operation of gaming facilities are subject to extensive state and local regulation. The
states and localities in which the Company and its subsidiaries conduct gaming operations require the Company
to hold various licenses, findings of suitability, registrations, permits and approvals. The various regulatory
authorities, including the Indiana Gaming Commission, the Louisiana Gaming Control Board, the Mississippi
Gaming Commission, the Missouri Gaming Commission, the Nevada State Gaming Control Board and the
Nevada Gaming Commission, may, among other things, limit, condition, suspend, revoke or fail to renew a
license or approval to own any of the gaming subsidiaries for any cause deemed reasonable by such licensing
authorities. Substantial fines or forfeitures of assets for violations of gaming laws or regulations may be levied
against the Company, its subsidiaries and the persons involved. Holders of the Company’s securities are also
subject to additional requirements regarding the ownership and disposition of their securities, including possibly
being called forward by applicable gaming authorities to be licensed or found suitable to be the beneficial owner
of the Company’s securities.

To date, the Company and its subsidiaries have obtained all governmental licenses, findings of suitability,
registrations, permits and approvals necessary for the operation of its gaming facilities. However, there can be no
assurance that the Company and its subsidiaries will be able to obtain any new licenses, findings of suitability,
registrations, permits and approvals that may be required in the future or that existing ones will be renewed or
will not be suspended or revoked. Any expansion of gaming operations in the existing jurisdictions or into new
jurisdictions, including Missouri and the Bahamas, will require various additional licenses, findings of suitability,
registrations, permits and approvals of the gaming authorities. The approval process can be time-consuming and
costly and has no assurance of success.

For a more detailed description of gaming regulations to which the Company is subject, see Exhibit 99.1 to
this Annual Report on Form 10-K, “Government Regulation and Gaming Issues”, which is incorporated herein
by reference.

Employees

The following is a summary of the Company’s employees by property at December 31, 2004, some of
which are part-time:

Employees

Property (approx.)
Boomtown New Orleans ............. ... i, e 927
Belterra Casino Resort . ....... ... i i 1,146
Boomtown Bossier City . .................... e 980
CasinoMagic Biloxi .. ..., i 966
Boomtown Reno . ... ... . 845
Casino Magic Argentina . .. .......... .ttt 371
LDAuberge dulac . ... ..o e 95
COTPOTALE . . oottt e e e et et e 88
Total L. e e 5,418

The Company does not employ the staff at the Hollywood Park-Casino or the Crystal Park Casino.
Additionally, during busier months, each casino property supplements its permanent staff with seasonal
employees.
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Other Information

Compliance with federal, state and local provisions which have been enacted or adopted regulating the
discharge of materials into the environment or otherwise relating to the protection of the environment have not
had a material effect upon capital expenditures, earnings or the competitive position of the Company.

Pinnacle pays significant taxes in the communities in which it operates. In 2004, Pinnacle paid or accrued
$117.7 million in gaming taxes, $11.6 million in payroll taxes, $5.5 million in property taxes, and $3.0 million in
sales taxes during the year. Setting aside income taxes, Pinnacle paid or accrued $137.8 million for taxes paid to
state and local authorities in 2004.

Available Information

The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form
8-K and amendments to those reports are available free of charge as soon as reasonably practicable after they are
filed or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), through its Internet website,
www.pnkinc.com. The Company’s filings also are available through a database maintained by the SEC at
WWW.Sec.gov.

Item 2. Properties

The following describes the Company’s principal real estate properties:

Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc.: The Company leases approximately 19,000 square feet for its corporate
offices in Las Vegas, Nevada under lease agreements that expire in October 2005, with renewal options through
2011.

Boomtown New Orleans: The Company owns approximately 54 acres in Harvey, Louisiana that are
utilized by Boomtown New Orleans. The Company owns the facilities and associated improvements at the
property, including the riverboat casino.

Belterra Casino Resort: The Company owns 167 acres and leases 148 acres that are utilized by Belterra
Casino Resort. The Company owns the facilities and associated improvements at the property, including the
dockside riverboat. In addition, the Company owns the Ogle Haus Inn, a 54-room hotel operation in Vevay,
Indiana, approximately 10 miles from the Belterra Casino Resort. The Ogle Haus is used primarily for overflow
capacity during peak visitation periods.

Boomtown Bossier City: The Company owns 23 acres on the banks of the Red River in Bossier City,
Louisiana. The property contains a dockside riverboat casino, hotel, parking structure and other land-based
facilities, all of which are owned by the Company. The Company also leases approximately one acre of water
bottoms from the State of Louisiana. The current lease term expires in September 2006. The Company has
options to extend the lease for eight additional 5-year periods.

Casino Magic Biloxi: Casino Magic Biloxi is located on approximately 10.6 acres, of which 5.5 acres are
owned and approximately 5.1 acres are leased. The leases expire in June 2008. The Company has options to
extend the terms of each lease for 15 additional five-year periods. The Company also leases approximately 6.4
acres of submerged tidelands from the State of Mississippi. The tidelands are under a lease that expires in May
2008. The Company has the right of first refusal to re-lease the tidelands at the expiration of the lease. The
Company expects the rent for the new lease will be based on an appraisal methodology approved by the
Mississippi Secretary of State. The Company owns the dockside casino and all of the land-based facilities,
including the hotel.

Boomtown Reno: The Company owns 569 acres in Reno, Nevada, approximately 11 miles west of
downtown Reno, with current operations presently utilizing approximately 61 acres. The Company owns all of
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the improvements and facilities at the property, including the casino, hotel, truck stop, recreational vehicle park
and service station, along with the related water rights and sewage treatment plant. As described above, the
Company has entered into agreements to sell approximately 39 acres to Cabela’s Retail, Inc.

During 2002, the property was annexed into the City of Reno, Nevada, which will allow the facility to be
connected to the City of Reno’s municipal sewer system. Currently, development of the additional acreage is
restricted due to insufficient sewage treatment facilities. It is anticipated that the sewer line connection will be
completed in 2005.

The Company also owns 290 acres in the mountains outside Reno, Nevada, which are surrounded by federal
land.

Casino Magic Argentina: The Company operates casinos in southern Argentina, in the cities of Neuquen,
San Martin de los Andes and Junin de los Andes. All three casinos are currently in leased facilities. In 2001, the
Company acquired approximately 20 acres in the City of Neuquen, which Pinnacle is using as the site for the
new casino facility. At the San Martin de los Andes location, the lease is scheduled to expire in December 2006.
The Company is currently evaluating whether to renew the lease, move to another leased facility, or build or
acquire a replacement location.

Hollywood Park-Casino: The Company leases the Hollywood Park-Casino under a long-term lease
agreement that, including a 10-year renewal option, expires in 2019. The Hollywood Park-Casino is then
subleased to an unaffiliated third-party operator under a year-to-year lease.

Crystal Park Casino: The Company owns the approximately 20 acres on which the casino facility,
adjoining hotel and parking is located, and leases the facility to an unaffiliated third-party operator under a year-
to-year lease.

Lake Charles, Louisiana: The Company leases 227 acres of unimproved land from the Lake Charles
Harbor and Terminal District upon which the Lake Charles resort development is being constructed. The lease
calls for annual payments of $835,600 commencing upon opening of the resort complex with increases for
inflation thereafter, subject to a maximum annual increase of 5%. The lease has an initial term of 10 years,
commencing on the opening of the resort casino, with six renewal options of 10 years each. In addition, the
Company entered into a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement with the City of Lake Charles, Calcasieu Parish and
the District requiring Pinnacle to make infrastructure improvements, including, among other things, a road
extension and utility improvements, and pay non-specific impact fees, which, collectively, are expected to
approximate $11.4 million. The Company has included such obligations in the $365 million project budget. The
Company also has an option to lease an additional 75 acres of unimproved land adjacent to the 227 acres. The
lease option currently expires on August 19, 2003, with one remaining one-year renewal option. The terms of the
lease, if the option is exercised, would be substantially similar on a per acre basis to the terms of the lease for the
227 acres.

City of St. Louis, Missouri: The Company owns approximately 7.3 acres of contiguous land in downtown
St. Louis, Missouri near Laclede’s Landing. The Company has also executed an option to lease an additional 4.3
acres near Laclede’s Landing, has agreed to purchase the Embassy Suites hotel that adjoins the 7.3 acre site
owned by the Company and has agreed to purchase another 4.9 acres adjacent to the 7.3 acre site and Embassy
Suites hotel. Cumulatively, the Company owns, has agreed to purchase, or has under option to lease,
approximately 18 acres of contiguous land for development of the City of St. Louis project.

St. Louis County, Missouri: The Company entered into a lease and development agreement in August
2004 for an 80-acre site in south St. Louis County located approximately 10 miles south of downtown St. Louis.
According to the terms of the agreement, Pinnacle will lease approximately 80 acres of land from the Port
Authority, 56 of such acres for its gaming and commercial facilities, and the remaining 24 acres will become a
public park and include additional community and recreational facilities.
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Warehouse Leases: The Company leases warehouse space at various locations close to its operating
properties for various operating purposes.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Astoria Entertainment Litigation: In November 1998, Astoria Entertainment, Inc. filed a complaint in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of Louisiana. Astoria, an unsuccessful applicant for a license
to operate a riverboat casino in Louisiana, attempted to assert a claim under the Racketeer Influenced and
Corrupt Organizations Act (“RICO”), seeking damages allegedly resulting from its failure to obtain a license.
Astoria named several companies and individuals as defendants, including Hollywood Park, Inc. (the predecessor
to Pinnacle Entertainment), Louisiana Gaming Enterprises, Inc. (“LGE”), then a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Pinnacle Entertainment, and an employee of Boomtown, Inc.

On March 1, 2001, Astoria amended its complaint, adding new claims and renaming Boomtown, Inc. and
LGE as defendants. Pursuant to a settlement agreement executed on February 3, 2005, Astoria has dismissed its
claims with prejudice and has released the Company and all of its subsidiaries, affiliates, and other released
parties described in the agreement from any act or omission, including, but not limited to, those relating to or
arising from the Louisiana riverboat gaming licensing process or the operation of the Company’s Louisiana
casinos. The cost of such settlement was fully reserved for as of December 31, 2004,

Poulos Lawsuit: A class-action lawsuit was filed on April 26, 1994, in the United States District Court,
Middle District of Florida (the “Poulos Lawsuit”), naming as defendants 41 manufacturers, distributors and
casino operators of video poker and electronic slot machines, including Casino Magic. The lawsuit alleges that
the defendants have engaged in a course of fraudulent and misleading conduct intended to induce people to play
such games based on false beliefs concerning the operation of the gaming machines and the extent to which there
is an opportunity to win. The suit alleges violations of RICO, as well as claims of common law fraud, unjust
enrichment and negligent misrepresentation, and seeks damages in excess of $6 billion. On May 10, 1994, a
second class-action lawsuit was filed in the United States District Court, Middle District of Florida (the “Ahearn
Lawsuit”), naming as defendants the same defendants who were named in the Poulos Lawsuit and adding as
defendants the owners of certain casino operations in Puerto Rico and the Bahamas, who were not named as
defendants in the Poulos Lawsuit. The claims in the Ahearn Lawsuit are identical to the claims in the Poulos
Lawsuit. Because of the similarity of parties and claims, the Poulos Lawsuit and Ahearn Lawsuit were
consolidated into one case file (the “Poulos/Ahearn Lawsuit™) in the United States District Court, Middle District
of Florida. On December 9, 1994 a motion by the defendants for change of venue was granted, transferring the
case to the United States District Court for the District of Nevada, in Las Vegas. In an order dated April 17, 1996,
the court granted motions to dismiss filed by Casino Magic and other defendants and dismissed the complaint
without prejudice. The plaintiffs then filed an amended complaint on May 31, 1996 seeking damages against
Casino Magic and other defendants in excess of $1 billion and punitive damages for violations of RICO and for
state common law claims for fraud, unjust enrichment and negligent misrepresentation.

At a December 13, 1996 status conference, the Poulos/Ahearn Lawsuit was consolidated with two other
class-action lawsuits (one on behalf of a smaller, more defined class of plaintiffs and one against additional
defendants) involving allegations substantially identical to those in the Poulos/Ahearn Lawsuit (collectively, the
“Consolidated Lawsuits™) and all pending motions in the Consolidated Lawsuits were deemed withdrawn without
prejudice. The plaintiffs in the Consolidated Lawsuits filed a consolidated amended complaint on February 14,
1997, which the defendants moved to dismiss. On December 19, 1997, the court granted the defendants’ motion
to dismiss certain allegations in the RICO claim, but denied the motion as to the remainder of such claim; granted
the defendants’ motion to strike certain parts of the consolidated amended complaint; denied the defendants’
remaining motions to dismiss and to stay or abstain; and permitted the plaintiffs to substitute one of the class
representatives. On January 9, 1998, the plaintiffs filed a second consolidated amended complaint containing
claims nearly identical to those in the previously dismissed complaints. The defendants answered, denying the
substantive allegations of the second consolidated amended complaint. On June 21, 2002, the court denied
plaintiffs’ motion for class certification. On July 11, 2002, the plaintiffs filed a petition for permission to appeal
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the court’s denial of the plaintiffs’ motion for class certification. On August 15, 2002, the United States Court of
Appeals for the Ninth Circuit granted plaintiffs’ petition. On August 23, 2002, the plaintiffs filed their notice of
appeal with the U.S. District Court for the District of Nevada. On or about April 30, 2003, the plaintiffs filed
their opening brief on appeal. Defendants’ answering brief was filed on September 18, 2003, The plaintiffs’ reply
brief was filed on October 20, 2003. Oral argument on the appeal of the order denying class certification was
heard on January 15, 2004. On August 10, 2004, the Ninth Circuit affirmed the district court’s denial of
plaintiffs’ class certification motion. This case is again before the district court.

On January 20, 2003, plaintiffs’ counsel advised the Court that the two (2) remaining plaintiffs, Poulos and
McElmore, have agreed to dismiss Casino Magic and the other defendants in whose casino the plaintiffs did not
play. The terms of a stipulation for dismissal of these claims have not yet been finalized. On March 4, 2005, the
claims of Ahearn and Schreier against all defendants were dismissed with prejudice.

The claims may not be covered under the Company’s insurance policies. While the Company cannot predict
the outcome of this action, management intends to defend it vigorously.

Casino Magic Biloxi Patron Incident: In January 2001, three Casino Magic Biloxi patrons sustained
injuries as a result of an assault by another Casino Magic Biloxi patron. In August 2001, two of the casino
patrons injured during the January 2001 incident filed a complaint in the Circuit Court of Harrison County,
Mississippi, Second Judicial District, which complaint was subsequently amended. In February 2004, Casino
Magic Biloxi settled the complaint that was originally filed in August 2001 with respect to the two injured
patrons. An Order of Dismissal with prejudice was entered on February 20, 2004. The settlement has been paid
by the Company’s applicable insurance carriers.

On February 13, 2002, a third injured victim and her husband filed a subsequent complaint in the Circuit
Court of Harrison County, Mississippi, Second Judicial District. The allegations in the complaint are
substantially similar to those contained in the original August 2001 lawsuit. No trial date has been set for the
subsequent suit.

While the Company cannot predict the outcome of this action, the Company, together with its applicable
insurers, intends to defend it vigorously.

Indiana State Tax Dispute: The State of Indiana conducted a sales and use tax audit at the Company’s
Belterra entity in 2001. In October 2002, the Company received a proposed assessment in the amount of $3.1
million with respect to the Miss Belterra casino riverboat, including interest and a penalty. A protest was filed by
the Company in December of 2002. On June 16, 2003, the Indiana Tax Court issued two favorable rulings for
other taxpayers with claims similar to the Company’s. On September 21, 2004, the Indiana Supreme Court
reversed the Tax Court’s ruling with respect to one of those taxpayers. The other taxpayer settled its assessment
with the State. The Company believes that these recent cases may not apply to its case because of the different
facts involved and intends to pursue this matter vigorously.

Hubbard Litigation: In connection with the resignation of R.D. Hubbard as the Company’s Chairman in
2002 (“former Chairman”), the Company agreed to extend the exercise period for stock options (“subject
options”) covering 322,000 shares held by the former Chairman with a weighted average exercise price of $10.60
per share provided that the Indiana Gaming Commission approved his exercise of these options as so extended.
In December 2004, the former Chairman sought to exercise stock options (“specific options”) covering an
aggregate of 185,000 of these shares (“requested option shares”). On January 21, 2005, the Indiana Gaming
Commission advised the Company that it did not approve the former Chairman’s option exercise. In order to
avoid exposure to either the Indiana Gaming Commission or to the former Chairman, on January 25, 2005, the
Company filed an action seeking a declaratory judgment in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of
Indiana (“Indiana Action), naming the former Chairman and the Indiana Gaming Commission as defendants,
and requesting an order from the court determining whether the former Chairman is entitled to exercise the
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subject options and whether the Company is obligated to sell the former Chairman the requested option shares.
On or about January 26, 2005, the Company’s former Chairman commenced litigation against the Company and
its current Chairman and CEO by filing a Complaint in the Superior Court of the County of Riverside, California
(“California Action™). The former Chairman, in that action, has asserted claims for breach of contract, breach of
the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing, fraud and equitable estoppel. The former Chairman seeks
compensatory damages in an amount greater than $5 million and punitive damages based on the Company’s
allegedly wrongful failure to sell to the former Chairman the requested option shares pursuant to the former
Chairman’s attempted exercise of the specific options. In the California Action, the Company has removed the
action from the state court in California to the United States District Court for the Central District of California.
The Company has also, in the California Action, filed a motion to dismiss the former Chairman’s suit, or, in the
alternative to (i) transfer the action to the Southern District of Indiana or (ii) stay the action until the resolution of
the prior-filed action in the Southern District of Indiana. Due to the uncertainty surrounding the extension of the
subject options, the Company continues to include the subject options in the balance of its outstanding options.

Columbia Sussex Litigation. On January 26, 2005, Columbia Sussex Corporation and three other plaintiffs
filed a petition against the Missouri Gaming Commission and Casino One Corporation, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, in the Circuit Court of Cole County, Missouri. In addition to Columbia Sussex,
named plaintiffs are Wimar Tahoe Corporation, as an owner of property near the proposed Casino One site,
President of Columbia Sussex, William J. Yung, as a Missouri taxpayer, and Fred Dehner, a resident of Osage
Beach, Missouri, as a registered Missouri voter and taxpayer. The plaintiffs seek to undo the Missouri Gaming
Commission’s approval of Casino One’s docking site on the St. Louis riverfront under a claim for judicial review
by original writ, declaratory judgment, and writ of prohibition. The factual allegations for each claim are that the
Commission could not grant approval to Casino One because the facility’s planned gaming floor is allegedly not
within 1,000 feet of the main channel of the Mississippi River, as required under the Missouri constitution.

While the Company cannot predict the outcome of this litigation, management intends to defend it vigorously.

Other: In September 2004, the Company learned that an attorney who had previously represented it in
connection with regulatory matters in Louisiana may have billed the Company for services which had not been
rendered and had misappropriated from his law firm fees that the Company had paid for those and other services.
The Company understands that other gaming companies which utilized this attorney had similar experiences. The
Company has conducted an internal investigation into this matter and intends to seek recoupment of those fees
for which the law firm cannot provide adequate documentation that the services were performed and that the fees
charged for such services were reasonable.

The Company is party to a number of other pending legal proceedings, though management does not expect

that the outcome of such proceedings, either individually or in the aggregate, will have a material effect on the
Company’s financial position, cash flows or results of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None
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PARTII

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases
of Equity Securities

The Company’s common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and is traded under the name
Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc., identified by the symbol “PNK”. Prior to February 28, 2000, the Company’s
common stock was traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the name Hollywood Park, Inc., identified by
the symbol “HPK.”

The following table sets forth the high and low closing sales prices per common share of the Company’s
common stock on the New York Stock Exchange:

Price Range

High __L_ow_
2004
Fourth QUAarter . ... ...ttt e e e e $20.32 $13.18
Third QUarter . . . ..o e e 14.15 1071
Second QUArtEr . . ... .t e e e 14.30 11.00
Farst QUAIter . .o e e e 14.84 9.44
2003
Fourth QUarter . .. .. e e $ 964 § 721
Third QUarter . .. ... e 7.94 6.00
Second Quarter .......................... S P 6.80 4.80
Bt QUarter . ..ttt e e e 6.91 3.97

As of March 10, 2005, there were 2,853 stockholders of record of the Company’s common stock.

Dividends: The Company did not pay any dividends in 2004 or 2003. The Company’s 8.25% Notes and
8.75% Notes (each as defined below) and existing credit facility limit the amount of dividends that the Company
is permitted to pay. The Board of Directors does not anticipate paying any cash dividends on the Company’s
common stock in the foreseeable future, as its financial resources are being reinvested into its business, including
L’ Auberge du Lac Hotel & Casino and the St. Louis development proposals.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial information for the years 2000 through 2004 was derived from the
consolidated financial statements of the Company. The information set forth below should be read in conjunction
with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”, the

consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto.

For the years ended December 31,

2004(a) 2003(b) 2002(c) 2001(d) 2000(e)
(in thousands, except per share data)
Statement of Operations Data:
Revenues............. ... ... ... ... .. .. $ 553,311 $530,402 $514,001 $508,043 $ 549,602
Operating income (10SS) . ...........oovnunn.. 81,631 38,042 28,411 (5,723) 171,904
Income (loss) before minority interest, income
taxes, change in accounting principle .. .. ... .. 17,756 (34,636) (19,071) (50,555) 127,742
Income (loss) before change in accounting
principle ... ... ... .. 9,161 (28,242)  (12,925) (28,649) 76,839
Netincome (10SS) ..., 9,161 (28,242)  (69,629) (28,649) 76,839
Net income (loss) per common share:
Basic ... ... ... .. $ 026 $ (1.09) § (2700 § (1.11) $ 2.92
Diluted ....... .. ... 0.25 (1.09) (2.70) (1.11) 2.80
Other Data:
EBITDA (f), (g)
Continuing properties ................... $ 129,818 $ 84,875 $ 73,340 $ 40,659 $ 71,092
Sold properties ........... ... ..., 0 0 0 3,068 146,914
EBITDA(M),(g) ................... $ 129818 § 84,875 $ 73,340 $ 43,727 $ 218,006
Capital expenditures ........................ $ 209,597 $ 82931 $ 48,506 $ 52,264 $ 202,775
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges (h) ......... 1.21x — — — 2.94x
Cash flows provided by (used in):
Operating activities . ... ........ovverinnnn... $ 30,374 $ 55,386 $ 39,030 $ 39,517 $ (28,824)
Investing activities ......................... (109,094) (181,575) (77,037) (43,304) 193,277
Financing activities . ........................ 181,387 109,097 826  (12,442) (114,947)
Balance Sheet Data (at December 31):
Cash, restricted cash and equivalents . .......... $ 287,788 $ 229,036 $147,541 $156,639 $ 172,868
Totalassets ............ccoovirininininn .. 1,208,768 954,936 840,438 919,349 961,475
Notespayable ............................. 640,488 645,935 493,498 497,147 500,594
Stockholders’ equity . .......... ... ..., 415,190 200,859 248,486 319,516 361,176
(a) The results of 2004 include $42,410,000 for a gain on sale of assets (net of other items), $14,921,000 for

losses on the early extinguishment of debt and $14,399,000 for pre-opening and development costs.

(®)

The results of 2003 include benefits of $2,255,000 for Indiana regulatory, corporate relocation and

derivative action matters, $7,832,000 for a non-cash goodwill impairment charge, $19,908,000 for losses on
the early extinguishment of debt, $1,261,000 for pre-opening and development costs and $4,248,000 for

certain non-cash tax charges.

(©

The results of 2002 include $2,753,000 for asset write-offs, $6,609,000 for Indiana regulatory and related

costs, $1,601,000 for relocating corporate offices and $1,948,000 for pre-opening and development costs. In
addition, 2002 includes a $56,704,000 charge, net of tax benefit, related to the cumulative effect of a change
in accounting principle upon the adoption of SFAS No. 142 (defined below).

(d)
development costs.

(e)

The results of 2001 include $23,530,000 of asset impairment charges and $1,068,000 for pre-opening and

The results of 2000 include the financial results of Belterra Casino Resort from its October 2000 opening;

and exclude the financial results of two casinos beginning August 2000 and a racetrack beginning June 2000
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in connection with the sale of those operations. The revenue reflected in the financial results from the sold
operations is $106,622,000. The operating income reflected from sold operations is $141,324,000, the
majority of which was the gain on sale of $118,816,000. In addition, the 2000 results include $15,030,000
for pre-opening and development costs and $5,727,000 of terminated merger costs.

The Company defines EBITDA as earnings before interest expense and interest income, income taxes,
depreciation, amortization, loss on early extinguishment of debt and cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle. There are non-routine items included in EBITDA which are set forth in note (g)
below. Management uses EBITDA adjusted for the non-routine items noted below as a relevant and useful
measure to compare operating results among its properties and between accounting periods. The
presentation of EBITDA has economic substance because it is used by the Company as a performance
measure to analyze the performance of its business segments. EBITDA is specifically relevant in evaluating
large, long-lived hotel casino projects, because EBITDA provides a perspective on the current effects of
operating decisions separated from the substantial, non-operational depreciation charges and financing costs
of such projects. Additionally, management believes some investors consider EBITDA to be a useful
measure in determining a company’s apparent ability to service or incur indebtedness and for estimating a
company’s underlying cash flow from operations before capital costs, taxes and capital expenditures.
EBITDA, subject to certain adjustments, is also a measure used in debt covenants in the Company’s debt
agreements. Unlike net income, EBITDA does not include depreciation or interest expense, and therefore
does not reflect current or future capital expenditures or the cost of capital. Management compensates for
these limitations by using EBITDA as only one of several comparative tools, together with the common
GAAP measurements, to assist in the evaluation of operating performance and to measure cash flow
generated by ongoing operations. Such GAAP measurements include operating income (loss), net income
(loss), cash flows from operations and cash flow data. EBITDA is not calculated in the same manner by all
companies and accordingly, may not be an appropriate measure of comparing performance amongst
different companies. For an additional explanation of matters concerning EBITDA, see “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Other Supplemental Data.” A
reconciliation from net income (loss) to EBITDA is as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(in thousands)
Netincome (I0ss) ..., $ 9,161 $(28,242) $(69,629) $(28,649) $ 76,839
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle, net of income taxes ................ 0 0 56,704 0 0
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle .. .......... 9,161  (28,242) (12,925)  (28.,649) 76,839
Income tax expense (benefit) ................... 8,595 (6,394) (6,146) (21,906) 50,903
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle and income
BAXES .+ttt e 17,756  (34,636) (19,071) (50,555) 127,742
Loss on early extinguishment ofdebt ............ 14,921 19,908 0 0 4,146
Interest expense, net of capitalized interest and
interestinCcome . ...t 48,954 52,770 47,482 44,832 40,016
Operating income (loss) ............... 81,631 38,042 28,411 (5,723) 171,904
Depreciation and amortization .................. 48,187 46,833 44,929 49,450 46,102
EBITDA ... $129,818 $ 84,875 $73,340 $43,727  $218,006
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(g) “Operating income (loss)” and “EBITDA” disclosed above include the following non-routine items:

For the years ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(in thousands)

Gain on sale of assets, net of other items . ... $(42,410) $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 3 0
Pre-opening and development costs ........ 14,399 1,261 1,948 1,068 15,030
Indiana regulatory and related costs

(benefit) ..... ... . ... ... ... (194) (2,056) 6,609 0 0
Goodwill and other asset impairment

charges ........... ... ... ... 0 7,832 2,753 23,530 0
Corporate relocation costs (benefit) ........ 0 (199) 1,601 0 0
Terminated merger costs (benefit) ......... 0 0 0 464) 5,727
Gain on disposition of assets, sold

OPETAtIONS . .ttt ve e iieenieieennns 0 0 0 (500) (118,816)
Total Net Non-Routine Items . ............ $(28,205) $6,838 $12911  $23,634 $ (98,059)

(h) In computing the ratio of earnings to fixed charges: (x) earnings were the income from continuing
operations before income taxes and fixed charges and excluding capitalized interest; and (y) fixed charges
were the sum of interest expense, amortization of debt issuance costs, capitalized interest and the estimated
interest included in rental expense. Due principally to the Company’s large non-cash charges deducted to
compute such earnings, earnings so calculated were insufficient to cover fixed charges by $36,100,000,
$19,900,000 and $51,000,000 for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of financial condition, results of operations, liquidity and capital
resources should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, the Company’s audited
Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes thereto, and other filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

Overview and Summary

The Company is a leading diversified, multi-jurisdictional owner and operator of gaming entertainment
facilities. The Company owns and operates casinos in Nevada, Mississippi, Louisiana, Indiana and Argentina.
The Company is building a $365 million casino resort in Lake Charles, Louisiana and is developing major
casinos in downtown St. Louis and St. Louis County, Missouri. Internationally, the Company is building a
replacement casino for one of its Argentine facilities and has signed a letter of intent to operate a small casino in
the Bahamas. The Company also receives lease income from two card clubs in southern California.

The Company has undertaken a number of initiatives designed to increase earnings from its existing
operations. For example, in early May 2004, the Company opened its 300-guestroom tower at Belterra in
Indiana. The Company also is gradually upgrading the slot product at most of its facilities and has corporate-wide
efforts to centralize certain services and control staffing levels. Such improvements were partially offset by the
competitive effect on the Company’s Reno property of large Native American casinos that opened or expanded
in Northern California, as well as increased corporate costs associated with execution of its long-term growth
objectives.

During 2004, the Company amended and increased its credit facility, refinanced a significant portion of its
long-term debt, issued approximately $200 million of common stock (net of expenses) and sold its two parcels of
surplus land 'in Inglewood, California. As a result, the Company believes it has the resources necessary to both
complete the L’ Auberge du Lac casino and the St. Louis City casino resort and, when combined with its expected
ongoing earnings, to fund much of its St. Louis County project as well.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table highlights the Company’s results of operations for the three years ended December 31,

2004, 2003 and 2002.
For the years ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)

Revenues
Boomtown New Orleans . ... ..ottt e e $111,129 $106,398 $100,403
Belterra Casino Resort ... . 155,534 133,704 122,118
Boomtown Bossier Clty ... ..ttt e 99,821 104,295 102,680
Casino Magic BiloXi . ... .o 80,528 83,603 86,500
Boomtown Reno .. ... . e 84,506 83,645 89,021
Casino Magic ATEENUNA . .. ... ittt it e e e 15,553 12,517 7,039
Card ClUbS . . ..o 6,240 6,240 6,240

Total REVENUES . .. oottt et e et et e e e e $553,311 $530,402 $514,001
Operating income
Boomtown New Orleans . ... ..ottt e e e e $ 25451 $ 22,814 $ 20,470
Belterra Casino Resort .. ... ... . i e e 15,496 9,474 2,616
Boomtown Bossier City ... ... oot e 13,920 8,366 5,568
Casino Magic BiloxXi . ... .o i e 8,345 8,127 10,570
Boomtown Reno ... ... . e 3,257 6,538 10,208
Casino Magic ATgentina . ... ... it 5,963 4,455 1,456
Card ClUbS . .o e 4,092 3,617 3,622
COTPOTaLE . . .ottt (23,098) (18,511) (13,188)
Pre-opening and development COStS . ....... ..t e (14,399) (1,261) (1,948)
Indiana regulatory and related benefit (COSts) .. .......... oot 194 2,056 (6,609)
Gain on sale of assets, net of other items . ..., it 42,410 0 0
Goodwill and other asset impairment charges ................ ... oo, 0 (7,832) 2,753)
Corporate relocation benefif (COSIS) . ... ..ttt i 0 199 (1,601)

OPErating INCOIME . ..+ oo\ttt it ettt ettt e e a s $ 81,631 S 33,042 S 28411
Depreciation and amortization ... ...........oututurenurnniraniia e $ 48,187 $ 46,833 § 44,929
Revenue by Property as % of Total Revenue
Boomtown New Orleans .. ... ... . e e 20.1% 20.0% 19.5%
Belterra Casino Resort . ... ... 28.1% 25.2% 23.8%
Boomtown Bossier City . ... ... .. e 18.0% 19.8% 20.0%
Casino Magic BIlOXi .. ... .o 14.6% 15.7% 16.8%
Boomtown Reno . ... .. e e 15.3% 15.7% 17.3%
Casino Magic Argenting . ... ...ttt e e 2.8% 24% 1.4%
Card CIUbS . . oo e e 1.1% 1.2% 1.2%

100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Operating margins(a)
Boomtown New Orleans .. ...ttt 22.9% 21.4% 20.4%
Belterra Casino Resort . ... ... ... i i e e 10.0% 7.1% 2.1%
Boomtown Bossier City . ........ ... . 13.9% 7.9% 5.4%
Casino Magic BilOXi ... ..ot 10.4% 9.7% 12.2%
BoOmMtoWn REMNO . .. ..ot e 3.9% 7.8% 11.5%
Casino Magic Argentinag . ........... ... it 38.3% 35.6% 20.7%
Card CIubs . . ... 65.6% 58.0% 58.0%

(a) Operating margin by property is calculated by dividing operating income by revenue by location.
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Comparisons of the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

The following commentary reflects the Company’s results in accordance with several GAAP measures. An
additional, supplemental analysis of the Company’s results using EBITDA, including the Company’s definition
of EBITDA and a reconciliation of such EBITDA to GAAP accounting measures is provided in the “Other
Supplemental Data” section below.

Operating Results Revenues increased to $553,311,000 in 2004 from $530,402,000 in 2003 and
$514,001,000 in 2002. Operating income increased to $81,631,000 in 2004 from $38,042,000 in 2003 and
$28,411,000 in 2002. Operating income for 2004 includes certain non-routine items that net to a benefit of
$28,205,000. Operating income for 2003 and 2002 include certain non-routine items that net to costs of
$6,838,000 and $12,911,000, respectively. See notes (f) and (g) to Item 6 above for additional detail of the non-
routine items.

Each property’s contribution to these results is as follows:

The Company’s Boomtown New Orleans produced another strong year. Revenues grew to $111,129,000 for
2004 from $106,398,000, or 4.4%. A majority of the increase, approximately $3,557,000, came from increased
slot revenue. Most of the increase came from higher slot volume. The property also improved its operating
margin by 1.5 percentage points to 22.9% in 2004.

Revenues in 2003 grew to $106,398,000 from $100,403,000 in 2002, due to a small expansion of gaming
capacity, improved slot product and a new player loyalty program. Operating income grew by 11.5% to
$22,814,000 in 2003 from $20,470,000, with the operating margin improving to 21.4% from 20.4%.

As in 2003, Belterra Casino Resort produced the largest growth in both revenue and operating income for
the Company in 2004. In early May 2004, the property opened its new 300-guestroom tower, the centerpiece of
the $37 million expansion project. Benefiting from the additional guestrooms, meeting space and swimming
pool, revenues in 2004 grew $21,830,000 to $155,534,000, with casino, hotel and food and beverage revenue
accounting for $17,362,000, $1,678,000 and $1,337,000, respectively. Operating income also improved
dramatically in 2004, increasing by $6,022,000, or 63.6%, to $15,496,000, despite incurring approximately $2
million of marketing costs associated with the opening of the new tower and $2,497,000 of additional
depreciation costs from the increased asset base. The Company anticipates results for 2005 will be greater than
2004, as the property should benefit from the hotel tower expansion project for the full year.

For 2003, revenues at Belterra grew by $11,586,000 to $133,704,000 from $122,118,000 in 2002. A full
year of dockside gaming (which commenced in August 2002) and enhanced marketing campaigns and player
development events all contributed to the revenue growth. Operating income in 2003 also grew substantially,
improving to $9,474,000 from $2,616,000, despite a $1,550,000 one-time retroactive gaming tax charge imposed
by the State of Indiana in 2003 related to the effective date of 2002 tax changes. The Indiana State Department of
Revenue, interpreting tax legislation passed by the Indiana General Assembly in the 2003 legislative session,
assessed this retroactive tax on all riverboats, without providing an offset for taxes paid at a higher tax rate during
the period of July 1, 2002 to August 1, 2002. Belterra and most other Indiana casinos have filed protests with the
state, asserting the interpretation of the legislation is erroneous and should be set aside.

At Boomtown Bossier City, results for the year ended December 31, 2004 reflect gains from continued
operating efficiency, despite the highly competitive gaming market. For the year, operating income improved to
$13,920,000 from $8,366,000 in 2003, as cost-control measures associated with labor and marketing costs more
than offset a decline in revenues. Expanded Native American gaming in Oklahoma and increased competition
from a new race track casino approximately eight miles east of Bossier City/Shreveport affected the property,
such that revenues were $99,821,000 in 2004 compared to $104,295,000 in 2003.

For 2003, revenues grew by $1,615,000 to $104,295,000 from $102,680,000 in 2002, as the property
benefited from a full year of the renovation and expansion work that was completed in 2002, offset by the
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opening of slot operations at the nearby racetrack in May 2003. Boomtown Bossier City’s operating income for
the year improved to $8,366,000 from $5,568,000, as the Company implemented more efficient marketing
programs and staffing levels during 2003, resulting in the significant margin and operating income improvement.

In late 2004, the Company began an $11 million casino enhancement project at Casino Magic Biloxi, which
includes substantially refurbishing the existing showroom and casino, and updating the existing slot product. The
Company believes the construction has caused some disruption to operations since such time. The project is
scheduled to be completed in the spring of 2005. In mid-September 2004, Hurricane Ivan struck the Gulf Coast
region, causing Casino Magic Biloxi to close for approximately three days. Although the property did not incur
any significant property damage, the closure negatively affected results during that period and early in the fourth
quarter due to damage and disruption within the region. For the year ended December 31, 2004, revenues were
$80,528,000, compared to $83,603,000 in 2003. Operating income improved to $8,345,000 in the year from
$8,127,000 in 2003, as the property increased its focus on more profitable promotional offers.

In 2003, revenues were $83,603,000 compared to $86,500,000 in 2002, reflecting the competitive gaming
market in the region and the elimination of marginally profitable marketing programs and promotions. Operating
income was $8,127,000 for 2003 versus $10,570,000 in 2002, as the transition period between marketing
strategies caused some customer disruption during the 2003 second and third quarters.

In mid-2003, new Native American casino operations that are closer to several of Boomtown Reno’s feeder
markets opened in California. Results for 2004 reflect a full year of competition from such facilities. For the year
ended December 31, 2004, revenues grew to $84,506,000 from $83,645,000, primarily from higher fuel prices at
the property’s two service stations of $3,052,000, offset by a decline in gaming revenue of $1,673,000.
Reflecting the shift in revenue from high-margin casino revenue to low-margin fuel sales, operating income for
2004 was $3,257,000 compared to $6,538,000. The Company believes the impact of the recent growth in Native
American gaming has been substantially absorbed by the Reno gaming market, including its Boomtown Reno
property, although the market will continue to be very competitive. In addition, the Company continues to
evaluate its sizable excess acreage for future development or other uses—see “Factors Affecting Future
Operating Results”.

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2003 at Boomtown Reno were $83,645,000, compared to
$89,021,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002, reflecting the mid-2003 expansion of Native American
gaming in California. For the year, opéerating income was $6,538,000 versus $10,208,000 in 2002.

At Casino Magic Argentina, operating results over the past two years have improved significantly as the
economic and political environment has stabilized since the devaluation of the currency at the end of 2001.
Revenues in 2004 grew to $15,553,000 from $12,517,000 in 2003 and operating income improved to $5,963,000
in 2004 from $4,455,000 in 2003. Revenues and operating income in 2002 were $7,039,000 and $1,456,000,
respectively.

Revenues and operating income from the Company’s Card Clubs in 2004, 2003 and 2002 are all consistent,
as there was no change in the monthly lease income from either facility. In late 2004, the Company and the lessee
of the Hollywood Park-Casino negotiated an increase in rent to $7 million per annum from $6 million, for the
. year 2005. The Company also agreed to make certain improvements to the leased assets.

Corporate Costs Corporate costs in 2004 were $23,098,000 compared to $18,511,000 in 2003, including
increased audit and related service costs of approximately $1,800,000 and additional corporate staffing and
related costs of approximately $1,971,000, consistent with the Company’s long-term growth and centralization
strategies.

Corporate costs were $13,188,000 in 2002. Corporate costs increased in 2003 compared to 2002 primarily
due to increased corporate staffing and related benefit costs of approximately $1,976,000 and increased litigation
defense costs of approximately $1,805,000.
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Pre-opening and development costs In 2004, pre-opening and development costs were approximately
$14,399,000, including $7,081,000 for L’ Auberge du Lac, $4,258,000 for the St. Louis development projects and
approximately $3,000,000 for an unsuccessful gaming initiative the Company helped sponsor in California. The
Company expects to incur significant pre-opening and development costs in 2005 as it prepares to open
L’ Auberge and continues to pursue development of the St. Louis projects. In 2003 and 2002, pre-opening and
development costs were $1,261,000 and $1,948,000, respectively, primarily related to Lake Charles.

Indiana Regulatory Matters In 2002, the Company recorded estimated regulatory, legal, severance and
other settlement costs of $6,609,000 in connection with an investigation by the Indiana Gaming Commission into
events surrounding a golf tournament in 2001. In December 2002, the Company’s former CEO filed a lawsuit
against, among others, the Company, claiming wrongful termination, among other things. In February 2003, the
court granted the Company’s motion to send the wrongful termination matter to binding arbitration. In December
2003, the arbitrator granted summary judgment in favor of the Company. During 2003, the Company also
received funds exceeding its legal expenses for settlement of other litigation resulting from the golf tournament.
The effect of this litigation was to increase corporate expense during 2002 by $6,609,000, then to reduce
corporate expenses during 2003 by $2,056,000. In 2004, a benefit of $194,000 was recorded in connection with
the reversal of reserves no longer deemed necessary.

Gain on Sale of Assets, Net of Other Items As discussed in Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, during the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company sold its 97 acres of surplus land for
approximately $57 million in cash and recorded a gain, net of transactional and other costs, of $43,946,000. In
addition, the Company recorded a charge of $1,566,000 for the expensing of an agreement for a consultant that
assisted with the disposition of the surplus land.

Goodwill and Asset Impairment Charges During 2003, the Company identified certain pre-acquisition
deferred tax assets related to Casino Magic Corp. whose estimated future realization had changed based on facts
identified in the year (see Notes 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). Pursuant to SFAS No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes,” pre-acquisition contingent tax matters, including changes in a deferred tax
asset’s estimated future realization, that are resolved beyond the one-year post-acquisition period are required to
be reclassified from the deferred tax accounts to goodwill. Pursuant to SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” (“SFAS No. 142”) the Company included such amounts in its annual goodwill assessment.
Based on the evaluation completed, the Company recorded a goodwill impairment charge of $7,832,000 in 2003.

In 2002, the Company incurred asset impairment charges of $2,753,000 (see Note 1 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements).

Corporate Relocation Expenses and Related Benefits In December 2002, the Company relocated its
corporate headquarters to Las Vegas, Nevada from Glendale, California and recorded relocation costs of
$1,601,000, including costs attributed to the Glendale office space leased through May 2005. In November 2003,
the Company executed a sub-lease agreement for the remainder of the Glendale lease term and as such recorded a
benefit of $199,000.

Interest Income Interest income in 2004 was $3,584,000 compared to $2,111,000 in 2003, and $2,206,000
in 2002, with the increase in 2004 primarily attributed to increased invested funds from the various financing
activities in 2004,

Interest Expense Interest expense in 2004 before capitalized interest was $57,640,000 compared to
$56,394,000 in 2003, with the increase primarily due to a full year of funded term loan debt in 2004. Interest
expense in 2002 (before capitalized interest) was $50,683,000. Capitalized interest was $5,102,000 (including
$4,819,000 associated with L’ Auberge), $1,513,000 and $995,000 in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt During 2004, the Company refinanced $285 million of its 9.25%
Notes (defined below) and amended its bank credit facility. During 2003, the Company retired its 9.50% Senior
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Subordinated Notes, entered into a new credit facility and amended a prior credit facility. In connection with
these refinancing activities, the Company recorded losses on the early extinguishment of debt of $14,921,000 and
$19,908,000 in 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Income Tax (Expense) Benefit The effective tax rate in 2004 was 48.4%, or a tax provision of
$8,595,000. This was higher than the statutory rate primarily due to the non-deductible California gaming
initiative costs.

The effective tax rate in 2003 was 18.5%, or a tax benefit of $6,394,000. During 2003, the Company revised
its estimate of tax reserves to cover certain tax exposures. The Company recorded a tax provision of $4,248,000
in 2003 in connection with such activity. Excluding the goodwill impairment charge from pre-tax losses and the
non-routine tax charge noted above, the effective tax rate in 2003 was 39.7%.

The effective tax rate in 2002 was 32.2%, or a tax benefit of $6,146,000. A portion of the 2002 Indiana
regulatory settlement costs was not tax deductible, resulting in the lower-than-statutory tax rate.

Change in Accounting Principle The charge in the first quarter of 2002 for the cumulative change in
accounting principle of $56,704,000 related to the write-down of goodwill and other intangible assets. This charge
reflected the adoption of SFAS No. 142 in January 2002 (see Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At December 31, 2004, the Company had $287,788,000 of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, and
approximately $245 million of availability under its credit facility. As of that same date, the estimated required
funds to complete and open the L’ Auberge facility in 2005 were approximately $160 million. The Company also
has agreements to purchase the Embassy Suites in downtown St. Louis for $38 million and adjoining land for
$7.5 million. Such purchases are expected to be completed in the first half of 2005. The Company’s development
agreements for development of the St. Louis City and St. Louis County facilities require investments of at least
$200 million and $300 million, respectively. Such investments are expected to be made over the next three years.
The Company also intends to renovate the Embassy Suites and to spend approximately $12 million for a
replacement truck stop and satellite casino at Boomtown Reno in connection with the proposed Cabela’s
transaction, and to continue to maintain its current properties in good condition and estimates that this will
require maintenance and miscellaneous capital spending of approximately $25 million to $30 million per year.

Management estimates that approximately $45 million is currently used to fund the Company’s casino
cages, slot machines, operating accounts and day-to-day working capital needs.

Included in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at December 31, 2004 and 2003 is restricted cash of
$85,414,000 and $128,929,000, respectively. Restricted cash is primarily comprised of a completion reserve
account established pursuant to the Company’s Credit Facility (defined below). The account is designated for,
among other things, construction and pre-opening costs associated with “Current Projects” (as defined in the
credit agreement), including the ongoing development of L’Auberge du Lac, and following the approval of the
project budgets by the administrative agent under the Credit Facility, the St. Louis City and County projects.
During 2004, the Company utilized approximately $119 million from the account for such activities. In addition,
in August 2004, the Company applied approximately $26 million from the account to repay a portion of its
funded term loan debt and related costs and expenses. Sources of funds in 2004 deposited into the completion
reserve account included asset sale proceeds of approximately $57 million and a portion of the common stock
offering proceeds aggregating approximately $50 million.

Working capital for the Company (current assets less current liabilities and excluding the restricted cash)
was $106,471,000 at December 31, 2004, versus $43,434,000 at December 31, 2003. The increase is primarily
due to proceeds from the common stock offerings and cash flow from operations, offset by capital spending.

Cash provided by operations was $30,374,000 in 2004, compared to $55,386,000 in 2003. The decrease is
primarily attributed to increased pre-opening and development costs of $13,138,000, additional net cash interest
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paid of approximately $4,700,000 in 2004, and cash income tax refunds received in 2003 of approximately
$10,479,000. The increased net cash interest paid in 2004 is due largely to a full year of funded term loan debt
and commitment fees, compared to only a partial year in 2003. In addition, due to the timing of the refinancing of
a portion of the 9.25% Senior Subordinated Notes in late 2004, interest was paid in 2004 on the refinanced bond,
that would otherwise have been paid in 2005. The Company anticipates a lower average cost of funded debt in
2005 due to the reduced coupons on its senior subordinated notes.

Cash provided from operations was $55,386,000 in 2003, compared to $39,030,000 in 2002. The increase is
primarily attributed to the improved operations in 2003 compared to 2002, as well as additional cash income tax
receipts in 2003 versus 2002. For the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company invested $82,931,000 in
property and equipment, approximately $53,643,000 of which was for the L’ Auberge and Belterra projects. In
addition, during 2003, the Company improved its overall capital structure by refinancing its credit facility in
December and May (lowering interest rate levels and improving covenant requirements in both financings) and
issuing new 8.75% Senior Subordinated Notes to refinance the 9.50% Senior Subordinated Notes. In connection
with improving the capital structure, the Company expended approximately $21,698,000 to refinance its debt during
2003, including call and tender premiums to retire old debt and the financing fees on the new debt that are
capitalized and will be amortized over the life of the new debt instruments. Finally, in December 2003, the
Company repurchased approximately 2 million shares of its common stock for approximately $20,090,000 in cash.

Cash invested in property and equipment in 2004 was $209,597,000, approximately $170,000,000 of which
was for construction at L’Auberge and completion of the Belterra hotel tower expansion. The Company
anticipates significant capital spending in 2005 for completion of L’Auberge and the commencement of
construction activity for the two St. Louis projects. See below for a discussion of capital resources for the next 12
months and beyond.

Cash generated from financing activities of $181,387,000 was primarily through the February and
December common stock offerings (approximately $120 million and $80 million of net proceeds, respectively).
As noted above, a portion of the proceeds were deposited into the completion reserve account, with the remainder
deposited into the Company’s unrestricted cash accounts. The Company also continued to improve its debt
capital structure, successfully refinancing $285 million of its 9.25% Senior Subordinated Notes with new 8.25%
Senior Subordinated Notes, and executing a new Credit Facility (both discussed more fully below). In connection
with these activities, the Company expended approximately $13,609,000 to fund such refinancing activity. In
February 2005, the Company refinanced the remaining $65 million aggregate principal amount of 9.25% Senior
Subordinated Notes with proceeds from the Credit Facility.

As of December 31, 2004, the Company’s debt consists primarily of the term loan portion of the Credit
Facility (defined below) of $125 million and the three issues of senior subordinated indebtedness: $300 million
aggregate principal amount of 8.25% Senior Subordinated Notes due March 2012 (the “8.25% Notes™), $135
million aggregate principal amount of 8.75% Senior Subordinated Notes due October 2013 (the “8.75% Notes”)
and $65 million aggregate principal amount of 9.25% Senior Subordinated Notes due February 2007 (the “9.25%
Notes”). The $65 million aggregate principal amount of 9.25% Notes were refinanced in February 2005. There
are no sinking fund requirements or other principal repayment obligations on any of this debt prior to maturity.

The Company’s $380 million amended and restated bank credit facility (the “Credit Facility”), provides for
a $255 million six-year term loan facility, of which $125 million was drawn immediately and $130 million is
available on a delayed basis in minimum increments of $25 million through September 2005, and a $125 million
revolving credit facility which matures in December 2008.

Upon closing the Credit Facility, the Company deposited the term loan borrowings of $125 million into a
completion reserve account and repaid all outstanding obligations under the 2003 Credit Facility (defined below).
Funds maintained in the completion reserve account, subject to satisfying conditions to withdrawal, are permitted
to be used to pay for the costs and expenses of the construction of the Company’s Current Projects. Proceeds of
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the delayed-draw term loan facility are required to be funded into the completion reserve account and are also
available subject to satisfying conditions to withdrawal from such account. The proceeds of the revolving credit
facility may be used to pay for the construction costs of any Current Project or general corporate purposes.

The Company’s only debt repayment obligations prior to 2008 are nominal. The term loans are repayable in
quarterly installments of 0.25% of the principal amount of the term loans outstanding on October 1, 2005,
commencing in March 2006. The Company is obligated to make mandatory prepayments of indebtedness under
the Credit Facility from the net proceeds of certain debt offerings, certain asset sales and dispositions and certain
equity issuances. On the later of August 27, 2006 and the date when the Company completes all of its Current
Projects, the Company will be required to prepay borrowings under the Credit Facility with a percentage of its
“excess cash flow” as the Company meets certain “leverage ratios” (each as defined in the Credit Facility). The
Company has the option to prepay all or any portion of the indebtedness under the Credit Facility at any time
without premium or penalty.

Interest on the Credit Facility is subject to change based on the floating rate index selected. For the
revolving loan facility, the interest rate margin is based on the Company’s “leverage ratio”. As of December 31,
2004, the term loan bore interest of 5.42% per annum (3.00% over LIBOR), and the delayed-draw term loan and
revolver facility bore facility fees for unborrowed amounts of 1.00% and 1.25% per annum, respectively. The
Company may also, at its option, borrow at a base rate, as defined in the agreement. Under the Credit Facility, at
least 50% of the Company’s debt obligations must be subject to fixed interest rates or hedge agreements or other
interest rate protection agreements.

The Credit Facility has, among other things, restrictive financial covenants and capital spending limits and
other affirmative and negative covenants. The obligations under the Credit Facility are secured by substantially
all of the assets of the Company and its domestic restricted subsidiaries, including a pledge of the equity interests
in the Company’s domestic subsidiaries. The Company’s obligations under the Credit Facility are also
guaranteed by the Company’s domestic restricted subsidiaries. The Company believes it is in compliance with its
bank debt covenants as of December 31, 2004.

Borrowing under the Credit Facility and access to funds from the completion reserve account for the costs
and expenses associated with the Company’s Current Projects are subject to conditions commonly associated
with construction loans, including an “in balance requirement” (as defined in the Credit Facility), which looks to
the sufficiency of the Company’s available resources to complete its Current Projects including the Company’s
“projected free cash flow” (all as defined in the Credit Facility).

Under the Company’s most restrictive indenture, the Company is permitted to incur up to $350 million in
senior indebtedness of which $135 million was outstanding at December 31, 2004. Additional borrowings under
the Credit Facility may account for most or all of such permitted indebtedness. The Company’s indenture also
permits the incurrence of additional indebtedness (senior or otherwise) in excess of $350 million for debt
refinancing or under a provision that permits additional incurrence if at the time the indebtedness is proposed to
be incurred, the Company’s consolidated coverage ratio on a pro forma basis (as defined in the indenture) would
be at least 2.00 to 1.00. The Company’s consolidated coverage ratio is currently under 2.00 to 1.00.

In addition to permitted capital expenditures for maintaining existing facilities and amounts permitted to be
applied to the costs and expenses of the Current Projects (inclusive of the St. Louis development opportunities),
the Credit Facility permits the Company to expend funds, during the term of the Credit Facility, on various new
capital projects (prior to designating such projects as a Current Project) in an amount up to $125 million.

In March 2004, the Company issued $200 million in aggregate principal amount of 8.25% Notes, which
were issued at a price of 99.282% of par, thereby yielding 8.375% to maturity. Net proceeds of the offering plus
cash on hand were used to repurchase $188 million in aggregate principal amount of the Company’s 9.25%
Notes (see below). In February 2005, the Company refinanced the remaining portion of its 9.25% Notes (see
below) with borrowings of $69 million under the Credit Facility.
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In December 2004, the Company issued $100 million in aggregate principal amount of additional 8.25%
Notes, which were issued at a price of 105.00% of par, thereby yielding 7.10% to the first call date (7.35% to
maturity). The Company issued the additional notes under the March 2004 8.25% Notes indenture. Net proceeds
of the offering plus cash on hand were used to repurchase $97 million in aggregate principal amount of the
Company’s 9.25% Notes (see below).

In September 2003, the Company issued $135 million in aggregate principal amount of 8.75% Notes, which
notes were issued at 98.369% of par, thereby yielding 9.00% to maturity. The net proceeds of the offering were
used to retire all of the Company’s 9.50% Senior Subordinated Notes (the “9.50% Notes”).

In 1999, the Company issued $350 million in aggregate principal amount of 9.25% Notes, of which $285
million in aggregate principal amount was refinanced in 2004 and the remaining $65 million in aggregate
principal amount were repurchased in February 2005 using proceeds from the Credit Facility.

Both the 8.25% and the 8.75% Notes are unsecured obligations of the Company, guaranteed by all material
restricted subsidiaries (excluding foreign subsidiaries) of the Company, as defined in the indentures. The
indentures governing the 8.25% Notes and 8.75% Notes contain certain covenants limiting the ability of the
Company and its restricted subsidiaries to incur additional indebtedness, issue preferred stock, pay dividends or
make certain distributions, repurchase equity interests or subordinated indebtedness, create certain liens, enter
into certain transactions with affiliates, sell assets, issue or sell equity interests in its subsidiaries, or enter into
certain mergers and consolidations.

The 8.25% Notes and 8.75% Notes become callable at a premium over their face amount on March 15, 2008
and October 1, 2008, respectively. Such premiums decline periodically as the bonds near their respective maturities.
Neither series of notes has any required sinking fund or other principal payments prior to their maturities.

In September 2004, the Company issued a $10 million irrevocable letter of credit for the benefit of an affiliate of
the City of St. Louis, thereby reducing availability under the revolving credit facility to $115 million as of December
31, 2004. The letter of credit bears a facility fee of 3.25% per annum as of December 31, 2004. In addition, the
Company maintained a cash collateralized letter of credit of approximately $3,300,000 as of December 31, 2004.

In October 2002, the Company’s shelf registration statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission
became effective, permitting the issuance of up to $500 million of debt, equity or other securities. As of
December 31, 2004 remaining, availability was approximately $53 million following the issuance of the $100
million of 8.25% Notes in December 2004, the two common stock equity offerings in February and December
2004, and the 8.75% Notes in September 2003. There can be no assurance, however, that the Company will be
able to issue any additional securities on terms acceptable to the Company.

The Company currently believes that its existing cash resources and cash flows from operations and funds
available under the Credit Facility will be sufficient to fund operations, maintain existing properties, make
necessary debt service payments and fund remaining construction of the L’ Auberge du Lac and the St. Louis City
project. The Company anticipates it will require incremental funding in the next 18 to 24 months to complete its
St. Louis County project. The amount of incremental funding is dependent on, among other things, future cash
flows, debt service requirements and additional capital investment activity. Based on its successful access to the
capital markets in 2003 and 2004, the Company believes it will be able to raise such incremental funding;
however, there can be no assurances such funds will be available, and if so, on terms acceptable to the Company.

OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL DATA

EBITDA: The Company defines EBITDA as earnings before interest expense and interest income, income
taxes, depreciation, amortization, loss on early extinguishment of debt and cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principles. Management uses EBITDA as a relevant and useful measure to compare operating results
among its properties and between accounting periods. The presentation of EBITDA has economic substance
because it is used by management as a performance measure to analyze the performance of the Company’s
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business segments. EBITDA is specifically relevant in evaluating large, long-lived hotel casino projects because
it provides a perspective on the current effects of operating decisions separated from the substantial, non-
operational depreciation charges and financing costs of such projects. Additionally, management believes some
investors consider EBITDA to be a useful measure in determining a company’s ability to service or incur
indebtedness and for estimating a company’s underlying cash flow from operations before capital costs, taxes
and capital expenditures. EBITDA, subject to certain adjustments, is also a measure used in debt covenants in the
Company’s debt agreements. Unlike net income, EBITDA does not include depreciation or interest expense and
therefore does not reflect current or future capital expenditures or the cost of capital. Management compensates
for these limitations by using EBITDA as only one of several comparative tools, together with the common
GAAP measurements, to assist in the evaluation of operating performance and to measure cash flow generated by
ongoing operations. Such GAAP measurements include operating income (loss), net income (loss), cash flows
from operations and cash flow data. EBITDA is not calculated in the same manner by all companies and
accordingly, may not be an appropriate measure of comparing performance amongst different companies. See
Notes (f) and (g) to the “Selected Financial Data” for a reconciliation from net income (loss) to EBITDA and for
details regarding certain costs that are included in this table. The table below is a reconciliation from operating
income to EBITDA, in each case by year, for 2004, 2003 and 2002.

For the years ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)

Operating Income

Boomtown New Orleans . ... ..ottt e e $ 25451 $22814 $20470
Belterra Casino Resort ... ... e 15,496 9,474 2,616
Boomtown Bossier City . ... ..ot e 13,920 8,366 5,568
Casino Magic Biloxi . ... o e 8,345 8,127 10,570
Boomtown Reno .. .o e 3,257 6,538 10,208
Casino Magic Argentina . . ...ttt 5,963 4,455 1,456
Card CIUbS .o e e 4,092 3,617 3,622
COTPOTALE . . oottt et et e e e e e e e e e e (23,098) (18,511) (13,188)
Pre-opening and development COStS . .. .. ... e (14,399) (1,261) (1,948)
Indiana regulatory and related benefit (COStS) . ....... ... i 194 2,056 (6,609)
Gain on sale of assets, net of otheritems .. ... . .. i 42,410 0 0
Goodwill and other asset impairment charges .................c.oriiininernenonn. 0 (7,832) (2,753)
Corporate relocation benefit (COSts) . ...t e 0 199 (1,601)
OperatingIncome . ... ... ... . $ 81,631 $38,042 $ 28411
Depreciation and Amortization
Boomtown New Orleans . ... ... $ 6763 $ 6,525 $ 6,585
Belterra Casino Resort . ... ..o e 16,265 13,768 13,175
Boomtown Bossier City ... .. . e 6,757 8,131 7,395
Casino Magic BIlOXi . . ..o vt e 7,884 7,902 7,520
Boomtown Reno ... ..o 6,964 7,129 7,390
Casino Magic Argentina . .......... ...t e 928 723 486
Card ClUbS .. 2,081 2,457 2,280
COTPOTAIE .« .\ttt et ettt e e e et e e e e et e e e e 545 198 98
Depreciation and AMOTHZAHON .. ... oo i ittt et $ 48,187 $46,833 $44,929
EBITDA
Boomtown New Orleans . ... ... i $ 32,214 $29339 $27,055
Belterra Casino Resort ... .o. i e 31,761 23,242 15,791
Boomtown Bossier City . ... it 20,677 16,497 12,963
Casino Magic BIlOXD . . . ..ot 16,229 16,029 18,090
Boomtown Reno . ... .o e e e e 10,221 13,667 17,598
Casino Magic Argentina . . . .... ..ottt e e 6,891 5,178 1,942
Card ClubS .. .. 6,173 6,074 5,902
COTPOTALE . o ot ittt e ettt et e et e et et e e e e e e e (22,553) (18,313) (13,090)
Pre-opening and development CoStS ... ..o vttt e (14,399) (1,261) (1,948)
Indiana regulatory and related COStS ... ... ..o it e 194 2,056 (6,609)
Gain on sale of assets, netof otheritems ....... ... ... .. . . . i 42,410 0 0
Goodwill and other asset impairment charges ................. .. coiiiiinaiannann. 0 (7,832) (2,753)
Corporate TEloCatoN COSES . .. ot vttt e e e et et 0 199 (1,601)
EBI DA e $129,818 $ 84,875 § 73,340




-

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

The following table summarizes the Company’s contractual obligations and other commitments as of

December 31, 2004:

Payments due by Period
Less than After 5
Contractual Obligations, Including Interest Total 1 year 1-3 years 4-5 years years
(in thousands)
Debt obligations(a), (b} ......... ... ... ... .. ... .. $973,264 $49,549 $161,369 $89,084 $673,262
Capital lease obligations(b) ....................... 14,407 3,050 9,099 2,258 0
Operating lease obligations (¢) .. ................... 120,930 6,840 11,968 5,717 96,405
Other purchase obligations:(d)
Construction contractual obligations (¢} ......... $ 41,194 $41,194 § — — —
Other(f) ... ... 21,804 13,783 6,623 1,398 —

(a)

(b)
©

(d
(e)

)

Includes the principal and interest obligation of the 9.25% Notes through February 2007. In February 2005,

the Company redeemed the remaining $65 million aggregate principal amount of 9.25% Notes using
proceeds from the Credit Facility.

Includes interest obligations associated with the debt and capital lease obhgat10ns outstanding as of
December 31, 2004, and through the debt or lease maturity date.

The Company leases the 227 acres for its L’ Auberge du Lac Hotel Casino. Pursuant to the agreement, the
initial lease term commences upon opening of the facility. The table above reflects lease payments for the
initial lease term and each of the six 10-year renewal periods, based upon an estimated May 2005 opening.
Purchase obligations represent agreements to purchase goods or services that are enforceable and legally
binding on the Company.

The Company entered into a redevelopment agreement in connection with its St. Louis City project, which
requires an investment of $208 million (approximately $8 million of which has been spent) to construct a
casino and luxury hotel. In addition, the Company is obligated to invest $50 million, potentially with one or
more development partners, in residential housing, retail, or mixed-use developments in the City of St.
Louis. Construction of the casino and luxury hotel must commence shortly after certain building and land
use permits have been obtained (which it expects to receive mid-2005) and be completed within 18 months
thereafter. The mixed-use development must be completed within five years of the casino and hotel opening.
Due to the uncertainty of when construction will commence, and whether the Company will include one or
more development partners for the mixed-use development, construction obligations in this table do not
include the investment requirements for this project.

The Company entered into a lease and development agreement in connection with its St. Louis County
project, which requires the investment of $300 million to construct a gaming and multi-use facility that will
include a casino, hotel, a parking garage and other amenities in St. Louis County. Similar to the St. Louis
City project, the agreement stipulates certain construction milestone dates, which dates are uncertain at this
time. In addition, the project requires construction of a roadway into the facility and remediation of the
80-acre site. The Company believes the St. Louis County project will take approximately one year longer
than the St. Louis City project to complete. The agreement also stipulates the initial lease term commences
upon opening of the facility, with minimum lease payments of $4 million, or 2.5% of adjusted gross receipts
(as defined in the agreement). Due to the uncertainty of when construction will commence, and therefore
when the initial lease term commences, construction and operating lease obligations in this table do not
include commitments for this project.

Includes open purchase orders, employment agreements and deferred bonus obligations.

The Company intends to create an indemnification trust to secure (i) obligations to indemnify and advance

expenses to the Company’s present and future directors and executive officers (appointed or elected prior to a
“change of control” as defined in the trust) arising from their activities as such and (ii) payments for the
premiums for directors and officers insurance purchased by the Company from time to time, in the event that the
Company does not or is not financially able to fulfill such obligations or make such payments. At the time of
creation, the Company would deposit $5.0 million in the trust and pursuant to its terms would be obligated in
certain circumstances to contribute up to an additional $5.0 million, subject to the limitations in the Company’s
indentures and loan agreements.
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OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements other than its letters of credit—see Note 5
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

FACTORS AFFECTING FUTURE OPERATING RESULTS

Belterra Casino Resort: In early May 2004, the Company completed its $37 million Belterra hotel tower
expansion project, which added 300 guestrooms, meeting and conference space and other amenities. Through the
first eight months of operation, the expansion project has significantly improved the operating results at Belterra.
The Company anticipates results for 2005 will be greater than 2004, as the property should benefit from the hotel
tower expansion project for the full year.

Casino Magic Biloxi: In late 2004, Casino Magic commenced an $11 million casino enhancement project,
which includes substantially refurbishing the existing showroom and casino, and updating the existing slot
product. The Company expects there will be some construction disruption during this period, and expects the
project to be completed in the Spring of 2005. The Company believes that following the casino enhancement
project, the property will offer a more competitive product in the market. '

In addition, major casino development activities continue in the Gulf Coast gaming market, including the
construction of a new gaming facility approximately two miles west of the property (scheduled to open in the
summer of 2005) and significant expansion at the property immediately east of Casino Magic Biloxi (new hotel
tower, entertainment and banquet facilities and other amenities scheduled to open Spring 2005).

L’Auberge du Lac: The Company is building its $365 million casino resort in Lake Charles, Louisiana.
The Company believes this resort will be the premier casino in the Lake Charles area upon its scheduled opening
in May 2005. Lake Charles is the closest significant gaming jurisdiction to the Houston, Austin and San Antonio
metropolitan areas. The Company’s resort will be located on 227 acres and will feature approximately 745
guestrooms, several restaurants, approximately 28,000 square feet of meeting space, a championship golf course
designed by Tom Fazio, an expansive pool area, retail shops and a full-service spa. Unlike most other riverboat
casinos, all of the public areas at L’ Auberge (except the parking garage), and in particular the casino, will be
situated entirely on one level. The casino will be surrounded on three sides by the hotel facility and other guest
amenities, providing convenient access to approximately 1,600 slot machines and 60 table games. The Company
believes L.’ Auberge will be larger, and offer more amenities, than any other resort in the southwest Louisiana/
east Texas market.

During 2004, the Company incurred pre-opening costs of approximately $7,081,000. The Company expects
to incur significant charges in 2005 as well in preparation for the opening of the facility in May 2005.

St. Louis Development Projects: In January 2004, the City of St. Louis selected the Company to develop a
$258 million casino, luxury hotel and entertainment complex in downtown St. Louis near Laclede’s Landing
north of the Gateway Arch. In February 2004, St. Louis County selected the Company to develop a $300 million
casino and mixed-use complex in St. Louis County, approximately 10 miles south of downtown St. Louis. In
September 2004, the Missouri Gaming Commission selected the Company for priority investigation, thereby
enabling it to proceed with both St. Louis development projects.

For each project, the Company anticipates beginning construction shortly after receiving necessary building
and land-use permits. The Company expects to receive such permits for both projects in the Summer of 2005.
The City project is expected to open 18 months thereafter, in early 2007. Development of the County site
requires extensive environmental remediation and construction of a new road to the site. Management therefore
estimates that development of the County project will take approximately one year longer than the City project.
Both of the projects are subject to ongoing MGC approval and licensing.
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The Company expects to incur significant costs before starting construction, which pre-opening costs will be
expensed as incurred and are included in the respective budgets.

In late 2004 and early 2005, the Company entered into agreements to purchase an Embassy Suites hotel and
other adjoining land, all of which is contiguous to the site of the St. Louis City project. Such purchases are
expected to be consummated in the first half of 2005. The Company envisions renovating the Embassy Suites
hotel and connecting it to the new casino facility. The adjoining land is expected to be used initially for surface
parking for the new casino, although it also has long term development potential. The Embassy Suites has
historically generated approximately $3 million of EBITDA and is expected to continue to operate during its
renovation, although operating costs may increase. "

Casino Magic Argentina: The Company is building a replacement facility for the existing Neuquen
casino, the principal Casino Magic Argentina property. The new facility is expected to open in the Spring of
2005 and will include a casino, a restaurant and an entertainment venue on land owned by the Company
approximately one mile from the existing facility at an estimated cost of approximately US$14 million. The new
facility is larger, better located, and of higher quality than the older leased facility.

Indiana State Income Tax Matter: In April 2004, the Indiana Tax Court ruled that, unlike every other
state where the Company operates, Indiana wagering taxes paid are not deductible for Indiana state income tax
purposes. In September 2004, the Indiana State Supreme Court denied a petition to review such matter, thereby
affirming the lower tax court’s ruling. The Company has not yet had taxable income in Indiana. Therefore, such
ruling does not have any current effect on the Company’s cash flow or deferred tax asset or liability accounts.
However, if such ruling remains unchanged, it would result in a reduction of the Company’s net operating loss
position and may therefore cause the Company to pay Indiana state income tax in the future sooner than would
otherwise have been the case. This ruling was in connection with an unrelated proceeding involving a third party
that had been litigating the matter for several years.

Contingencies: The Company assesses its exposure to loss contingencies including legal and income tax
matters and provides for an exposure if it is judged to be probable and estimable. If the actual loss from a
contingency differs from management’s estimate, operating results could be affected.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Consolidated Financial Statements were prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States. Certain of the accounting policies require management to apply significant
judgment in defining the estimates and assumptions for calculating financial estimates. These judgments are
subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty. Management’s judgments are based on the Company’s historical
experience, terms of various past and present agreements and contracts, industry trends, and information
available from other sources, as appropriate. There can be no assurance that actual results will not differ from
those estimates. Changes in these estimates could adversely affect the financial position or results of operations
of the Company.

The Company has determined that the following accounting policies and related estimates are critical to the
preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements:

Property and Equipment: The Company has a significant investment in long-lived property and
equipment, which represents approximately 67% of the Company’s total assets. Judgments are made in
determining the estimated useful lives of assets, the salvage values to be assigned to assets and if or when an
asset has been impaired. The accuracy of these estimates affects the amount of depreciation expense recognized
in the financial results and whether to record a gain or loss on disposition of an asset. The Company reviews the
carrying value of its property and equipment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of
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an asset may not be recoverable from estimated future undiscounted cash flows expected to result from its use
and eventual disposition.

Self-insurance Reserves: The Company is self-insured up to certain limits for costs associated with
general liability, workers’ compensation and employee medical coverage. Insurance claims and reserves include
accruals of estimated settlements for claims. In estimating these accruals, the Company considers historical loss
experience, makes judgments about the expected levels of cost per claim and relies on independent consultants.

Income Tax Assets and Liabilities: The Company utilizes estimates related to cash flow projections for

_the application of SFAS No. 109 to the realization of deferred income tax assets. The estimates are based upon

recent operating results and budgets for future operating results. The determination of deferred income tax

liabilities includes management’s judgments of expected settlements of audits by various tax authorities and the
realization of tax deductions and credits expected to be realized in the future.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets: In January 2002, the Company adopted SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets” which requires an annual review of goodwill and other nonamortizing intangible
assets for impairment. The annual evaluation of goodwill and other nonamortizing intangible assets requires the
use of estimates, including recent and future operating results, discount rates, risk premiums and terminal values,
to determine the estimated fair values of the Company’s reporting units and gaming licenses.

RECENTLY ISSUED AND ADOPTED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 46 (“FIN No. 46R”) In 2004, the Company
adopted FIN No. 46R, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” FIN No. 46R did not have a material effect
on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. This interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51,
“Consolidation of Financial Statements” addresses consolidation by business enterprises of variable interest
entities where equity investors do not bear the residual economic risks and rewards. These entities are commonly
referred to as “‘special purpose entities,” none of which the Company has.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R (“SFAS No. 123R”) In December 2004, the
FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment,” which requires all companies to measure compensation
costs for all share-based payments (including employee stock options) at fair value. This statement will be
effective for the Company for its quarterly period beginning July 1, 2005. The Company has not yet determined
the effect this statement will have on its financial position or results of operations.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND RISK FACTORS

Except for the historical information contained herein, the matters addressed in this Annual Report on Form
10-K may constitute “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Words such as, but
not limited to, “believes”, “expects”, “anticipates”, “estimates”, “intends”, “plans”, “could”, “may”, “should” and
similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements, which
may include, without limitation, statements regarding expansion plans, cash needs, cash reserves, liquidity,
operating expenses and capital investments, financing options, expense reductions, operating results and pending
regulatory matters, are subject to a variety of risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those currently anticipated by the Company. From time to time, verbal or written forward-
looking statements are also included in the Company’s periodic reports on Forms 10-Q and 8-K, press releases
and other materials released to the public.

Actual results may differ materially from those that might be anticipated from forward-looking statements.
This can occur as a result of inaccurate assumptions or as a consequence of known or unknown risks and
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uncertainties. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

Factors that may cause actual performance of the Company to differ materially from that contemplated by
forward-looking statements include the risk factors described in Exhibit 99.2 to this Annual Report on Form
10-K (*Risk Factors™), which is incorporated herein by reference, and also may include:

the gaming industry is very competitive, and increased competition, including by Native American
gaming facilities, could adversely affect the Company’s profitability;

many factors, some of which are beyond the Company’s control, could prevent the Company from
completing its construction and development projects as planned;

because the Company is highly leveraged, future cash flows may not be sufficient to meet its
obligations and the Company might have difficulty obtaining additional financing;

the Company operates in a highly taxed industry, and may be subject to higher taxes in the future;

the L’ Auberge resort development, the proposed St. Louis projects and other capital intensive projects
could strain the Company’s financial resources and might not provide for a sufficient return, if any;

the Company could lose its right to develop L’ Auberge, and the right to pursue the St. Louis City and
County projects, if it fails to meet the conditions imposed by the Louisiana and Missouri Gaming
regulators, respectively;

the Company’s industry is highly regulated, which makes it dependent on obtaining and maintaining
gaming licenses and subjects the Company to potentially significant fines and penalties;

potential changes in the regulatory environment could harm the Company’s business;

the concentration and evolution of the slot machine manufacturing industry could impose additional
costs on the Company;

inclement weather conditions, natural disasters, highway construction and other factors in the areas in
which the Company operates could disrupt its ability to attract customers to its gaming facilities and
could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations and financial condition;

the loss of management and other key personnel could significantly harm the Company’s business;
the Company regularly experiences significant quarterly and annual fluctuations in operating resuits;

the Company is subject to litigation which, if adversely determined, could cause it to incur substantial
losses;

the Company faces environmental and archaeological regulation of its real estate; and

terrorism and the uncertainty of war, as well as other factors affecting discretionary consumer
spending, may harm the Company’s operating results.

In addition, these statements could be affected by general domestic and international economic and political
conditions, including terrorism or war, slowdowns in the economy, uncertainty as to the future direction of the
economy and vulnerability of the economy to domestic or international incidents, as well as market conditions in
the Company’s industry.

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the “Act”) provides certain “safe harbor” provisions
for forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are
made pursuant to the Act. For more information on the potential factors that could affect the Company’s
operating results and financial condition, see “~—Factors Affecting Future Operating Results” above and review
the Company’s other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The Company is exposed to market risk from adverse changes in interest rates with respect to the short-term
floating interest rate on borrowings under the Credit Facility. At December 31, 2004, 20.0% of the aggregate
principal amount of the Company’s funded debt obligations and virtually all of the Company’s invested cash
balances were subject to floating interest rates.

The Company is also exposed to market risk from adverse changes in the exchange rate of the dollar to the
Argentine Peso. The total assets of Casino Magic Argentina at December 31, 2004 were $15,850,000, or
approximately 1.3% of consolidated assets of the Company.

The table below provides the principal cash flows and related weighted average interest rates by contractual
maturity dates for the Company’s debt obligations at December 31, 2004. At December 31, 2004, the Company
did not hold any investments in market risk sensitive instruments of the type described in Item 305 of
Regulation S-K.

Fair
Liabilities 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Thereafter Total Value
(in thousands)
Credit Facility(a) ....... $ 0 $1,250 $ 1,250 $1,250 $1,250 $120,000 $125.000 $126,563
Rate ............... 5.42% 5.42% 5.42% 5.42% 5.42% 5.42% 5.42%
825%Notes .......... $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $300,000 $300,000 $318,750
Fixedrate ........... 8.25% 8.25% 8.25% 8.25% 8.25% 8.25% 8.25%
8.75% Notes .......... 3 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $135,000 $135,000 $147,488
Fixedrate ........... 8.75% 8.75% 8.75% 8.75% 8.75% 8.75% 8.75%
9.25% Notes(b) ........ $ 0 $ 0 $65,000 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 65,000 $ 66,300
Fixedrate ........... 9.25% 9.25% 9.25% 0% 0% 0% 9.25%
AllOther(c) .......... $2,517 $2,608 $ 2,757 $2,872 $2,275 $ 836 $ 13,885 $ 13,885
Avg. Interestrate .. ... 5.61% 5.56% 5.56% 5.59% 5.61% 8.00% 5.73%

(a) As of December 31, 2004, the term loan has a floating interest rate based on 3.00% over LIBOR, or 5.42% per annum including LIBOR.

(b) Reflects the 9.25% Notes maturing in February 2007. In February 2005, the Company redeemed the remaining $65 million aggregate
principal amount of 9.25% Notes using borrowings under the Credit Facility.

(¢) Primarily the Hollywood Park-Casino capitalized lease obligation of $12,506,000 with a fixed rate of 5.53%.

Item 8. Financial Statements

Financial statements and accompanying footnotes are attached hereto.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures

None

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
(a) Management’s Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief
Financial Officer (CFO), evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of December 31, 2004. Based on this
evaluation, the CEO and CFO concluded that, as of December 31, 2004, the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures were (1) designed to ensure that material information relating to the Company, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to the CEO and CFO by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report was being prepared and (2) effective, in that they provide reasonable assurance
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that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s
rules and forms.

No change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) occurred during the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2004 that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting.

The Company’s management, including the CEO and CFO, does not expect that its disclosure controls and
procedures or internal controls over financial reporting will prevent all errors or fraud. A control system, no
matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives
of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource
constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent
limitations in a cost effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange
Act) refers to the process designed by, or under the supervision of, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, and effected by our board of directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over our financial reporting.

We have evaluated the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2004. This evaluation was performed using the internal control evaluation framework developed by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on such evaluation, management
has concluded that, as of such date, our internal control over financial reporting was effective.

Deloitte & Touche LLP has issued an attestation report on management’s assessment of our internal control
over financial reporting. This report follows in [tem 9A(c).
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(c) Attestation report of the registered public accounting firm.
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc.

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying “Management’s Annual Report
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting”, that Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our
audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of,
the company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and
effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company'’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal
control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material
respects, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all
material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule as of and for the year
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ended December 31, 2004 of the Company and our report dated March 15, 2005 expressed an unqualified
opinion and included an explanatory paragraph relating to the Company’s change in accounting for goodwill and
other intangible assets to conform to the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets” on those financial statements and financial statement schedule.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Las Vegas, Nevada
March 15, 2005

Item 9B. Other Information

None

PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required under this item is incorporated by reference herein from the Company’s definitive
2005 proxy statement anticipated to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after
December 31, 2004.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required under this item is incorporated by reference herein from the Company’s definitive
2005 proxy statement anticipated to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after
December 31, 2004.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters '

The information required under this item is incorporated by reference herein from the Company’s definitive
2005 proxy statement anticipated to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after
December 31, 2004,

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required under this item is incorporated by reference herein from the Company’s definitive
2005 proxy statement anticipated to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after
December 31, 2004. '

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required under this item is incorporated by reference herein from the Company’s definitive
2005 proxy statement anticipated to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after
December 31, 2004.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) Documents filed as a part of this report.

1.

3.

Exhibit
Number

3.1

3.2

33

34

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

39

3.10

3.11

3.12

The consolidated financial statements are set forth in the index the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements attached hereto.

Financial Statement Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts is set forth on page of this
report.

Exhibit

Description of Exhibit

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc., as amended, is hereby
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2003. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Restated By-laws of Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc., as amended, are hereby incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2002. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Articles of Incorporation of HP/Compton, Inc., are hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.9 to
the Company’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on October 30, 1997.
(SEC File No. 333-34471).

By-laws of HP/Compton, Inc., are hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.10 to the
Company’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on October 30, 1997.
(SEC File No. 333-34471).

Articles of Organization of Crystal Park Hotel and Casino Development Company, LLC, are hereby
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.11 to the Company’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration
Statement on Form S-4 filed on October 30, 1997. (SEC File No. 333-34471).

Operating Agreement of Crystal Park Hotel and Casino Development Company, LLC, is hereby
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2001. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Certificate of Formation of Boomtown, LLC, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 30, 2004. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Operating Agreement of Boomtown, LLC, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 30, 2004. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Articles of Organization of PNK (Reno), LL.C, are hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 19, 2003. (SEC File
No. 001-13641).

Operating Agreement of PNK (Reno), LLC, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 19, 2003. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Second Amended and Restated Partnership Agreement of Louisiana-I Gaming, a Louisiana
Partnership in Commendam, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.26 to the Company’s
Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on March 26, 1999. (SEC File

No. 333-73235).

Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Partnership Agreement of Louisiana-I Gaming, a
Louisiana Partnership in Commendam, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.12 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003. (SEC File

No. 001-13641).
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Exhibit
Number

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

322

323

3.24

3.25

3.26

3.27

3.28

Description of Exhibit

Articles of Incorporation of Casino Magic Corp., are hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit
3.29 to the Company’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on March 26,
1999. (SEC File No. 333-73235).

Amended By-laws of Casino Magic Corp., are hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.30 to
the Company’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on March 26, 1999.
(SEC File No. 333-73235).

Articles of Incorporation of Biloxi Casino Corp., are hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit
3.33 to the Company’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on March 26,
1999. (SEC File No. 333-73235).

By-laws of Biloxi Casino Corp., are hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.34 to the
Company’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on March 26, 1999.
(SEC File No. 333-73235).

Articles of Incorporation of Casino One Corporation, are hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit
3.37 to the Company’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on March 26,
1999. (SEC File No. 333-73235).

By-laws of Casino One Corporation, are hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.38 to the
Company’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on March 26, 1999.
(SEC File No. 333-73235).

Amended and Restated Articles of Organization of Belterra Resort Indiana, LLC, are hereby
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to
Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed on November 16, 2004. (SEC File No. 333-90426).

Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of Belterra Résort Indiana, LLC, is hereby
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to
Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed on November 16, 2004. (SEC File No. 333-90426).

Articles of Incorporation of Casino Magic of Louisiana, Corp. (subsequently renamed PNK (Bossier
City), Inc.), are hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.44 to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

By-Laws of Casino Magic of Louisiana, Corp. (subsequently renamed PNK (Bossier City), Inc.), are
hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.45 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2000. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Articles of Organization of PNK (LAKE CHARLES), L.L.C. (formerly HPK (Lake Charles),
L.L.C.), are hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.24 to the Company’s Amendment No. 2 to
Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed on August 6, 2002. (SEC File No. 333-90426).

Operating Agreement of PNK (LAKE CHARLES), L. L.C. (formerly HPK (Lake Charles), L.L.C.),
are hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.25 to the Company’s Amendment No. 2 to
Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed on August 6, 2002. (SEC File No. 333-90426).

Certificate of Incorporation of PNK Development 1, Inc., is hereby incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.26 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed on June 13, 2002. (SEC File
No. 333-90426).

By-laws of PNK Development 1, Inc., are hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.27 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed on June 13, 2002. (SEC File No. 333-90426).

Certificate of Incorporation of PNK Development 2, Inc., is hereby incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.28 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed on June 13, 2002. (SEC File
No. 333-90426).

By-laws of PNK Development 2, Inc., are hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.29 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed on June 13, 2002. (SEC File No. 333-90426).
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Exhibit
Number

3.28

3.30

3.31

3.32

3.33

3.34

4.1+

421
4.3t

447

4.5%*
4.67

4.7%

4.87

497

4.10%*
4.117

Description of Exhibit

Certificate of Incorporation of PNK Development 3, Inc., is hereby incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.30 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed on June 13, 2002. (SEC
File No. 333-90426).

By-laws of PNK Development 3, Inc., are hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.31 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed on June 13, 2002. (SEC File No. 333-90426).

Amended and Restated Articles of Organization of OGLE HAUS, LLC, are hereby incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.37 to the Company’s Amendment No. 2 to Registration Statement on Form S-
3 filed on August 6, 2002. (SEC File No. 333-90426).

Operating Agreement of OGLE HAUS, LLC (f/k/a OHIRC, LLC), is hereby incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.38 to the Company’s Amendment No. 2 to Registration Statement on Form S-
3 filed on August 6, 2002. (SEC File No. 333-90426).

Articles of Incorporation of St. Louis Casino Corp., are hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.39 to the Company’s Amendment No. 2 to Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed on August 6,
2002. (SEC File No. 333-90426).

By-Laws of St. Louis Casino Corp., are hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.40 to the
Company’s Amendment No. 2 to Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed on August 6, 2002.
(SEC File No. 333-90426).

Hollywood Park, Inc. 1996 Stock Option Plan, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24
to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on September 18, 1996. (SEC File No.
333-12253).

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for Hollywood Park, Inc. 1996 Stock Option Plan.

Hollywood Park, Inc. 1993 Stock Option Plan, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to
the Company’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on March 26, 1999.
(SEC File No. 333-73235).

Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. 2001 Stock Option Plan, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on June 6, 2001. (SEC File
No. 333-62378).

Form of Stock Option Agreement for Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. 2001 Stock Option Plan.

Form of First Amendment to Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. 2001 Stock Option Plan, is hereby
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
January 30, 2004. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. 2002 Stock Option Plan, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.4 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on July 16, 2003. (SEC File
No. 333-107081).

First Amendment to Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. 2002 Stock Option Plan, is hereby incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on July 16,
2003. (SEC File No. 333-107081).

Second Amendment to Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. 2002 Stock Option Plan, is hereby incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on July 16,
2003. (SEC File No. 333-107081).

Form of Stock Option Agreement for Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. 2002 Stock Option Plan.

Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement dated as of January 11, 2003 by and between the Company
and Stephen H. Capp, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on July 16, 2003. (SEC File No. 333-107081).
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Exhibit
Number

4.12%
4.13%
4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

10.1

10.2

10.3

Description of Exhibit

Nongqualified Stock Option Agreement dated as of April 10, 2002 by and between the Company and
Daniel R. Lee, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2002. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Nongqualified Stock Option Agreement dated as of April 10, 2002 by and between the Company and
Daniel R. Lee, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2002. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Indenture dated as of September 25, 2003 by and among the Company, the guarantors named therein
and The Bank of New York, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 7, 2003. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

First Supplemental Indenture dated as of September 25, 2003, governing the 8.75% Senior
Subordinated Notes due 2013, by and among the Company, the guarantors named therein and The
Bank of New York, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on October 7, 2003. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Form of 8.75% Senior Subordinated Note due 2013 (included in Exhibit 4.12), is hereby incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 7, 2003.
(SEC File No. 001-13641).

Indenture dated as of March 15, 2004, governing the 8.25% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2012, by
and among the Company, the guarantors identified therein and The Bank of New York, is hereby
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
March 30, 2004. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Form of 8.25% Senior Subordinated Note due 2012 (included in Exhibit 4.12), is hereby incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 30, 2004.
(SEC File No. 001-13641). »

First Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 3, 2004, governing the 8.25% Senior
Subordinated Notes due 2012, by and among the Company, the guarantors identified therein and The
Bank of New York, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on December 7, 2004. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Amended and Restated Loan Agreement dated as of May 12, 2003 by and among the Company, the
Lenders referred to therein and Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Bear Stearns
Corporate Lending Inc., as Syndication Agent, and CIBC Inc. and Société Générale, as
Documentation Agents, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 30, 2003. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Loan Agreement dated as of May 22, 2003 by and
among the Company, the Lenders referred to therein and Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative
Agent, Bear Stearns Corporate Lending Inc., as Syndication Agent, and CIBC Inc. and Société
Générale, as Documentation Agents, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 30, 2003. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Credit Agreement dated as of December 17, 2003 by and among the Company, the Lenders referred
to therein, Lehman Brothers Inc. and Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc., as Joint Lead Arrangers, and Joint
Book Runners, Société Générale, as Documentation Agent, Bear Stearns Corporate Lending Inc., as
Syndication Agent, and Lehman Commercial Paper Inc., as Administrative Agent, is hereby
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
December 30, 2003. (SEC File No. 001-13641).
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Exhibit
Numnber

10.4

10.5%

10.6F

10.77

10.87

10.97

10.10%

10.11%

10.12+

10.13%

10.14

10.15

10.16

Description of Exhibit

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of August 27, 2004, by and among the Company,
the Lenders referred to therein, Lehman Brothers Inc., and Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc., as Joint
Advisors, Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint Book Runners, Société Générale and Wells Fargo Bank,
N.A., as Joint Documentation Agents, Bear Stearns Corporate Lending Inc., as Syndication Agent,
and Lehman Commercial Paper Inc., as Administrative Agent, is hereby incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 2, 2004. (SEC File
No. 001-13641).

Amended and Restated Hollywood Park, Inc. Directors Deferred Compensation Plan, is hereby
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed
on August 31, 1999. (SEC File No. 333-86223).

Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. (formerly Hollywood Park, Inc.) Executive Deferred Compensation Plan
effective January 1, 2000, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.48 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

First Amendment to the Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. (formerly Hollywood Park, Inc.) Executive
Deferred Compensation Plan, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.55 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Second Amendment to the Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, is
hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.56 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2001. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Summary of 2004 Provisions of Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. Executive Deferred Compensation
Plan, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to the Company’s Current Report on Form
8-K filed on December 30, 2004. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Employment Agreement dated as of April 10, 2002 by and between the Company and Daniel R. Lee,
is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2002. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Employment Agreement dated as of August 13, 2002 by and between the Company and John
A. Godfrey, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Employment Agreement dated as of January 11, 2003 by and between the Company and Stephen H.
Capp, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Employment Agreement dated as of March 14, 2003 by and between the Company and Wade W.
Hundley, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Purchase Agreement dated June 14, 2002 by and between Rothbart Development Corporation and
the Company, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Amendment to the Purchase Agreement dated November 14, 2002 by and between Rothbart
Development Corporation and the Company, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003. (SEC File No.
001-13641).

Amendment to the Purchase Agreement dated January 16, 2003 by and between Rothbart Development
Corporation and the Company, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003. (SEC File No. 001-13641).
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Exhibit
Number

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23*

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28*

Description of Exhibit

Second Amendment to Purchase Agreement dated as of February 11, 2004 by and between the
Company and Rothbart Development Corporation, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.17 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003. (SEC
File No. 001-13641).

Lease and Agreement dated September 10, 1999 by and between the Company and Century Gaming
Management, Inc., is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 1999, filed on September &, 2000. (SEC
File No. 001-13641).

First Amendment to Lease and Agreement dated September 6, 2000 by and between the Company
and Century Gaming Management, Inc., is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.3 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2000. (SEC File
No. 001-13641). '

Second Amendment to Lease and Agreement dated as of October 1, 2001 by and between the
Company and Century Gaming Management, Inc., is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.22 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K the year ended December 31, 2002. (SEC File
No. 001-13641).

Third Amendment to Lease and Agreement dated as of December 4, 2002 by and between the
Company and Century Gaming Management, Inc., is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.23 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K the year ended December 31, 2002. (SEC File
No. 001-13641).

Fourth Amendment to Lease and Agreement dated as of October 13, 2003 by and between the
Company and Century Gaming Management, Inc., is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.22 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K the year ended December 31, 2002. (SEC File
No. 001-13641).

Fifth Amendment to Lease and Agreement dated as of October 29, 2004 by and between the
Company and Century Gaming Management, Inc.

Amended and Restated Lease dated February 14, 2000 by and between Crystal Park Hotel and
Casino Development Company, LLC and California Casino Management, Inc., is hereby
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the
year ended December 31, 1999, filed on September 8§, 2000. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Lease dated as of October 1, 2001 by and between
Crystal Park Hotel and Casino Development Company, LLC and California Casino Management,
Inc., is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.31 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Lease dated as of December 4, 2002 by and between
Crystal Park Hotel and Casino Development Company, LLC and California Casino Management,
Inc., is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.32 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Third Amendment to Amended and Restated Lease dated as of October 13, 2003 by and between
Crystal Park Hotel and Casino Development Company, LLC and California Casino Management,
Inc., is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Fourth Amendment to Amended and Restated Lease dated as of October 29, 2004 by and between
Crystal Park Hotel and Casino Development Company, LLC and California Casino Management,
Inc.
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Exhibit
Number

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34*

10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

Description of Exhibit

Lease Agreement dated April 4, 1992 by and between G&W Enterprises, Inc. and Biloxi Casino
Corp., is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Casino Magic Corp.’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 filed on August 28, 1992. (SEC File No. 033-51438).

Amendment to Lease Agreement dated February 26, 1999 by and between G&W Enterprises, Inc.
and Biloxi Casino Corp., is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.35 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Lease Agreement dated November 23, 1992 by and between Gary Gollott, Tommy Gollot, and
Tyrone Gollott, and Biloxi Casino Corp., is hereby incorporated by reference to Casino Magic
Corp.’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on November 12, 1993. (SEC File No. 033-71572).

Amendment to Lease Agreement dated February 26, 1999 by and between Gary Gollott, Tommy
Gollott and Tyrone Gollott, and Biloxi Casino Corp., is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.37 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002.
(SEC File No. 001-13641).

Public Trust Tidelands Lease dated May 27, 1993 by and between Biloxi Casino Corp. and the State
of Mississippi, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Casino Magic Corp.’s
Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on November 12, 1993. (SEC File No. 033-71572).

Public Trust Tidelands Lease Amendment dated October 28, 2004 by and between Biloxi Casino
Corp. and the State of Mississippi.

Form of Lease by and between the Webster Family Limited Partnership and the Diuguid Family
Limited Partnership and Pinnacle Gaming Development Corp. (executed by the parties on December
11, 1998 and subsequently assigned by Pinnacle Gaming Development Corp. to Belterra Resort
Indiana, LLC), is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit B contained in Exhibit 10.47 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998. (SEC File No.
001-13641). ’

Form of Lease by and between Daniel Webster, Marsha S. Webster, William G. Diuguid, Sara

T. Diuguid, J.R. Showers, I and Carol A. Showers, and Pinnacle Gaming Development Corp.
(executed by the parties on December 11, 1998 and subsequently assigned by Pinnacle Gaming Corp.
to Belterra Resort Indiana, LLC), is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit B contained in
Exhibit 10.51 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998.
(SEC File No. 001-13641).

Lease Agreement dated September 29, 1995 by and between the State of Mississippi and Casino One
Corporation, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Casino Magic Corp.’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1995. (SEC File No. 000-20712).

Lease dated September 10, 1999 by and between Churchill Downs California Company and the
Company, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Commercial Lease dated September 9, 1996 by and between State of Louisiana, State Land Office
and PNK (Bossier City), Inc. (f/k/a Casino Magic of Louisiana, Corp.), is hereby incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2003. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Ground Lease Agreement dated as of August 21, 2003 by and between PNK (LAKE CHARLES), L.L.C.,
and Lake Charles Harbor & Terminal District, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 19, 2003. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Statement of Conditions to Riverboat Gaming License of PNK (LAKE CHARLES), L.L.C,, is
hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.57 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2001. (SEC File No. 001-13641).
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Exhibit
Number

10.42

10.43

10.44

10.45

10.46

10.47

10.48

10.49

10.50

10.51

10.52

Description of Exhibit

Standard Form of Agreement between Owner and Contractor by and between PNK (LAKE
CHARLES), L.L.C. and Manhattan Construction Company, is hereby incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 19, 2003. (SEC File
No. 001-13641).

First Amendment to Standard Form of Agreement by and between Owner and Contractor dated as of
September 18, 2003 by and between PNK (LAKE CHARLES), L.L.C. and Manhattan Construction
Company, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on September 19, 2003. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Vessel Construction Agreement dated as of August 27, 2003 by and between Leevac Industries, LLC
and PNK (LAKE CHARLES), L.L.C., is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 19, 2003. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Redevelopment Agreement dated as of April 22, 2004 by and between the Land Clearance for
Redevelopment Authority of the City of St. Louis and the Company, is hereby incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.43 to the Company’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Form
S-4 filed on June 7, 2004. (SEC File No. 333-115557).

Lease and Development Agreement, dated as of August 12, 2004, by and between the St. Louis
County Port Authority and the Company, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004. (SEC File
No. 001-13641).

Real Estate Purchase Agreement dated as of November 17, 2004 by and between FelCor Lodging
Limited Partnership (f/k/a FelCor Suites Limited Partnership) and Casino One Corporation, is hereby
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
November 30, 2004. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Stock Agreement dated as of July 1, 2003 by and between the Company and R.D. Hubbard, is hereby
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Amendment No. 25 to the Schedule 13D filed by R.D.
Hubbard on August 4, 2003. (SEC File No. 005-33517).

Underwriting Agreement dated as of September 19, 2003 by and among the Company, the guarantors
identified therein and Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc., as representative for itself and Banc of America
Securities LLC, Lehman Brothers Inc., SG Cowen Securities Corporation, CIBC World Markets
Corp. and UBS Securities LLC, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 25, 2003. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Equity Underwriting Agreement dated January 27, 2004 by and between the Company and Deutsche
Bank Securities Inc., as representative for itself and Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc., Lehman Brothers Inc., SG
Cowen Securities Corporation, B. Riley & Co., Crowell Weedon & Co., Hibernia Southcoast Capital,
Sterne, Agee & Leach, Inc., UBS Securities LLC, The Seidler Companies Incorporated, Thomas
Weisel Partners LLC and CIBC World Markets Corp., is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit
1.1 to the Company Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 30, 2004. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of March 15, 2004 by and among the Company, the
guarantors identified therein and Lehman Brothers Inc., as representative for itself and Bear, Stearns
& Co. Inc., Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., SG Cowen Securities Corporation, UBS Securities LLC
and Hibernia Southcoast Capital, Inc., is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 30, 2004. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Purchase Agreement dated as of February 27, 2004 by and among the Company, the guarantors
identified therein and Lehman Brothers, Inc., as representative for itself and Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc.,
Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., SG Cowen Securities Corporation, UBS Securities LLC and Hibernia
Southcoast Capital, Inc., is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 30, 2004. (SEC File No. 001-13641).
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Description of Exhibit

Underwriting Agreement dated as of November 18, 2004 by and among the Company, the guarantors
named therein and Lehman Brothers Inc., as representative for itself and Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc.,
Deutsche Bank Securities Inc, Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, SG Cowen Securities Corporation,
CIBC World Markets Corp, Hibernia Southcoast Capital, Inc., CommerzBank Securities, Crowell,
Weedon & Co and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, is hereby incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 1.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 24, 2004.
(SEC File No. 001-13641).

Equity Underwriting Agreement dated as of December 16, 2004 by and among the Company and
Lehman Brothers Inc. and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., as representatives for themselves and Bear,
Stearns & Co. Inc., Crowell, Weedon & Co., B. Riley & Co., Inc. and Sterne, Agee & Leach, Inc., is
hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on December 20, 2004. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

Statement re: Computation of Per Share Earnings.

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Subsidiaries of Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc.

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.

Chief Executive Officer Certification Pursuant to Section 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act.
Chief Financial Officer Certification Pursnant to Section 13 a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act.

Chief Executive Officer Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Chief Financial Officer Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Government Regulation and Gaming Issues.

Risks Factors: Risks related to the Company’s capital structure and business.

*  Filed herewith.
**  Furnished herewith.
7 Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2004. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a)(2).
These financial statements and the financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements and financial statement
schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such
financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole,
presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company changed its method of
accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets to conform to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, in 2002 and recorded a cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle in the first quarter of 2002.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2004, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 15, 2005 expressed an
ungualified opinion on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting and an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting.

/s!/ DELOITTE & ToUcHE LLP

Las Vegas, Nevada
March 15, 2005



PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the years ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

(in thousands, except per share data)

Revenues:
GAIMING . . ottt e e e e $462,618 $448,237 $432,343
Foodandbeverage ........ ... 30,861 28,955 29,751
Truck stop and SErvice station ... ...ttt 24,324 21,272 19,720
Hotel and recreational vehiclepark ................... ... .. ...... 17,708 14,674 14,723
Other operating inCome .. ...ttt 17,800 17,264 17,464

553,311 530,402 514,001

Expenses and Other Costs (Benefits):

GaMINE . .ottt e e e 269,166 264,898 258,966
Foodand beverage ............ i 29257 28,745 30,077
Truck stop and service station ..............coeiiiiiiiiiannn 22,887 19,621 18,154
Hotel and recreational vehiclepark ................ ... ... .. ..... 8,854 7,344 7,446
General and administrative ... ........ . ... i 113,029 109,657 104,663
Depreciation and amortization . ... ............uitittnunnean.. 48,187 46,833 44,929
Other operating €Xpenses . . .. ... .v it reneren e, 8,505 8,424 8,443
Pre-opening and development COStS ... ... v in i 14,399 1,261 1,948
Indiana regulatory and related (benefitycosts ...................... (194) (2,056) 6,609
Gain on asset sales, net of otheritems .............. .. ... .. ... ... (42,410) 0 0
Goodwill and other asset impairment charges . ..................... 0 7,832 2,753
Corporate relocation (benefit) costs . .......... ..., 0 (199) 1,601
471,680 492,360 485,590
Operatingincome . ...... ... ... .. ... . . . i i 81,631 38,042 28,411
INtEreSt iNCOME . . . ..ttt e e e 3,584 2,111 2,206
Interest expense, net of capitalized interest ............................ (52,538) (54,881) (49,688)
Loss on early extinguishment ofdebt . ............................... (14,921)  (19,908) 0
Income (loss) before income tax (expense) benefit and cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle . . ... ....... ... ... . . i 17,756  (34,636) (19,071)
Income tax (expense)benefit ......... ... . ... . (8,595) 6,394 6,146
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle .. 9,161 (28,242)  (12,925)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of income tax
bene it . .. 0 0 56,704
Netincome (10SS) . .. ... it e $ 9,161 $(28,242) $(69,629)

Net income (loss) per common share—basic
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in accounting

PHNCIPIE ..ot $ 026 $ (1L.0% $ (0.50)

Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of income
1 QPP 0.00 0.00 (2.20)
Net income (loss) per common share—basic ................. $ 026 $ (109 $ (2.70)

Net income (loss) per common share—diluted
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in accounting

PTINCIPIE ..o $ 025 § (1.09) $ (0.50)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of income
12 QU 0.00 0.00 (2.20)
Net income (loss) per common share—diluted ............... $ 025 § (1.09 $ (.70
Number of shares—basic . ........ ... ... .. . .. i, 34,730 25,861 25,773
Number of shares—diluted .......... ... ... ... . ... .. .. .. .. ... 36,170 25,861 25,773

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.



PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2004 2003
(in thousands, except
share data)
ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (exclusive of restricted cash below) ................ $ 202,374 $100,107
Accounts receivable, Mt . ... ... e 11,501 7,359
IVentOrIES ot 5,128 5,518
Prepaid expenses and other assets . ................c.iiiniiiinia.. 14,542 10,699
Income tax receivable . .. ... . 4,742 0
Deferred INCOME tAXES . . . oottt et e e 3,023 3,212
Assetsheld forsale . . ... i 0 12,160
Total current assets . . . ... ...ttt e 241,310 139,055
Restricted cash .. ... 85,414 128,929
Property and equipment, NEt. . . ... ... . 813,987 621,709
GoodWill . . . e 26,656 26,656
Gaming HCENSES, TIBL . .o ot vttt et e ettt e e 21,482 21,848
Debt 1SSRANCE COSES, Nt . . . . ot e e e 18,867 15,864
OtNeT ASSEES . .t ottt e 1,052 875

$1,208,768 $954,936

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable ... ... $ 45952 $ 15958
Accrued INtEIeSt . ... i 12,554 15,459
Accrued COMPENSALION . ..ottt t ettt ettt e e 24,504 21,847
Other accrued Habilities . ... ... ot 49,312 40,016
Current portion of notes payable ........ ... ... .. ... .. i 2,517 2,341
Total current liabilities . .......... .. i i 134,839 95,621
Notes payable, less current maturities ............. .ottt 637,971 643,594
Deferred income taxes . ...ttt 20,768 14,862
Commitments and contingencies (Note 11) ......... ..o,
Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock ... o 0 0
Common—3$0.10 par value, 40,501,605 and 23,926,942 shares outstanding, net of
treasury Shares .. ... ... .. i 4,251 2,594
Capital inexcessof parvalue . .. ... ... ... . it 428,042 224,377
Retained €armings .. ... ittt e 13,078 3,917
Accumulated other comprehensiveloss . ......... .. ... ... .. ... ... (10,091) (9,939)
Treasury stock, L COSL . ..ottt e (20,090)  (20,090)
Total stockholders’ equity .......... ... . . i, 415,190 200,859

$1,208,768 $954,936

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.



PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

Capital in Accumulated
Excess of Other Total
Common Par Retained Comprehensive Treasury Stockholders’
Stock Value Earnings Loss Stock Equity
(in thousands)

Balance as of January 1,2002 ................. $2,545 $219,613  $101,788 $ (4,430) $ 0 $319,516
NEet10SS v 0 0 (69,629) 0 0 (69,629)
Foreign currency translationloss ............. 0 0 0 (6,053) 0 (6,053)

Total comprehensiveloss ................. (75,682)
Executive stock option compensation ......... 0 177 0 0 0 177
Common stock options exercised ............. 49 4,018 0 0 0 4,067
Tax benefit from stock option exercises ........ 0 408 0 0 0 408

Balance as of December 31,2002 .............. 2,594 224216 32,159 (10,483) 0 248,486
Netloss . .vvvi i 0 0 (28,242) 0 0 (28,242)
Foreign currency translationloss ............. 0 0 0 544 0 544

Total comprehensive loss ................. (27,698)
Treasury stock purchases ................... 0 0 0 0 (20,090) (20,090)
Executive stock option compensation ......... 0 151 0 0 0 151
Common stock options exercised . ............ 0 10 0 0 0 10
Tax benefit from stock option exercises . .. ... .. 0 0 0 0 0 0

Balance as of December 31,2003 .............. 2,594 224,377 3,917 (9,939) (20,090) 200,859
Netincome ............ccovviivinneneenn.. 0 0 9,161 0 0 9,161
Foreign currency translation loss ............. 0 0 0 (152) 0 (152)

Total comprehensive income . ............. 9,009
Executive stock option compensation ......... 0 154 0 0 0 154
Common stock options exercised ... .......... 47 4,632 0 0 0 4,679
Equity offerings ............ ... ... . ... ... 1,610 197,990 0 0 0 199,600
Tax benefit from stock option exercises .. ... ... 0 889 0 0 0 889

Balance as of December 31,2004 .............. $4,251 $428,042  § 13,078 $(10,091) $(20,090) $415,190

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended
December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Netineome (10SS) ..ottt et e e e $ 9,161 $ (287242) $(69,629)
Depreciation and amortization .. ... ... .. 48,187 46,833 44,929
Amortization of debt 1SSUANCE COSLS . . .. .ot i e e 3,303 4,524 3,655
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of income tax benefit .............. 0 0 56,704
Loss on early extinguishmentofdebt . ......... .. . . .. o 14,921 16,939 0
Gain on sale of assets, net Of Other IEMS . .. ... oottt e e e e ian e (42,410) 0 0
Asset write-offs and impairment write-dOWNS . .. ... . .. e 0 7,832 2,753
Tax benefit from stock OPHON EXEICISES . .« . vttt et ettt e e 889 0 408
Changes in working capital:

Accounts receivables, Net . . ... ..o (4,142) 2,498 (663)
Income tax receivable . ... .. .. 4,742) 6,364 4,223
Prepaid expenses and other assets .. ... ...ttt (4,246) 516 (3,227)

Accounts payable ... ... e (2,226) 343 (1,338)
Other accrued liabilities ... ... .. i e 6.849 8,653 7,099
ACCTUEA INTETESE . . v ettt et e e e e e (2,905) (1,670) (294)

Change in Deferred taxes ... .. r e e 6,095 (10,718) (6,705)
AN OtNET, ML . ottt e e e 1,640 1,514 1,115
Net cash provided by operating activities . ............... . i, 30,374 55,386 39,030

Cash flows from investing activities:

Decrease (increase) inrestricted Cash ... ... i 43,515 (98.829)  (30,100)
Additions to property and €QUIPIIENT . . ... oot v ettt e e e (209,597) (82,931) (48,596)
Receipts from dispositions of property and equipment . ..............civriiir .. 56,988 185 659
Principal collected on notes receivable .. ... ... .. e 0 0 1,000
Net cash used in Investing activities . . . .. ... it e e (109,094)  (181,575)  (77,037)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from credit facility . ... .. 125,000 270,438 0
Payments of credit facility ... .. ... . e (147,000)  (125,000) 0
Proceeds from senior subordinated NOtes . .. ... . e 303,564 132,798 0
Payment of senior subordinated notes .......... ... e (285,000)  (125,000) 0
Payment of other secured and unsecured notes payable .......... ... ... .. .. o (2,341) (2,361) (3,649)
Dbt 1SS UANCE COSIS L ot ittt et et e e (17,800) (21,698) 0
Common stock OPHONS Xercised . ... ... vt e 4,679 10 4,067
Common stock equity offerings ... ... .. 200,137 0 0
Purchase of treasury Shares .. ....... . ... i e 0 (20,090) 0
Other financing aCHVIHES, NEL . .. .. .ottt et e e e e e e 148 0 408
Net cash provided by financing activities ........... . ... ... ... . ... ... 181,387 109,097 826

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ........... ... ... ... ... ... . ... (400) (242) 2,017)

Increase (decrease) in cash and cashequivalents ... ... ... ... . . ... ... 102,267 (17,334)  (39,198)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of theyear . ....... ... .. .. ... . i 100,107 117,441 156,639

Cash and cash equivalents at theend of theyear ......... ... ..... .. ......... . ... .. ... $ 202,374 $ 100,107 $117.441

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at theend of theyear ... ... ... ... ... ... ... .... $ 287,788 $ 229,036 $147.54]

Supplemental Cash Flow Information:

Cash paid (received) during the year for:
€15 = $ 58389 $ 52208 $ 46,366
INCOME tAXES, MEL . o .ttt e e e e e e e e 756 (10,479) (2,370
Non-cash currency translation rate adjustment ............ ... ... ittt 152 (544) 6,053
Construction payable . ... ... .. e 32,220 0 0

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

General Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. (the “Company” or “Pinnacle Entertainment”) owns and operates
gaming entertainment facilities in numerous gaming markets. These include five properties in the United States,
located in southeastern Indiana (“Belterra Casino Resort”); Reno, Nevada (“Boomtown Reno”); Bossier City and
New Orleans, Louisiana (“Boomtown Bossier City” and “Boomtown New Orleans”, respectively); and Biloxi,
Mississippi (“Casino Magic Biloxi™). The Company is also building L’ Auberge du Lac, a major casino resort in
Lake Charles, Louisiana (“L’ Auberge”). In addition, the Company is developing a major casino in downtown St.
Louis, Missouri (“St, Louis City”) and a major casino in south St. Louis County, Missouri (“St. Louis County”).
Internationally, the Company is building a replacement casino for the larger of the three casinos it operates in
Argentina (“Casino Magic Argentina”), and has signed a letter of intent to operate a casino adjoining the Four
Seasons Resort Great Exuma at Emerald Bay in the Bahamas (“Great Exuma”). The Company also receives lease
income from two card clubs in Southern California.

The Belterra Casino Resort is near Cincinnati, Ohio and Louisville, Kentucky. The twin cities of
Shreveport/Bossier City are convenient to the Dallas/Fort Worth metropolitan area. The Lake Charles region
offers the closest casinos to the cities of Houston, Austin and San Antonio. The St. Louis City casino will serve
downtown businesses, tourists and residents, while the St. Louis County casino is expected to cater largely to the
regional residents of Missouri and Illinois.

Basis of Presentation The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. and its subsidiaries and have been prepared by the Company’s management in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) and with
the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). The consolidated financial
statements include the accounts of Pinnacle Entertainment and its subsidiaries. All significant inter-company
accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, certificates of deposit and short
term investments with maturities at the date of purchase of 90 days or less. The carrying amount of cash
equivalents approximates fair value due to the short maturities.

Accounts Receivable Accounts receivable consist primarily of casino, hotel and other receivables, net of
an allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,557,000 and $2,737,000 as of December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The allowance for doubtful accounts is estimated based upon, among other things, collection
experience, customer credit evaluations and the age of the receivables.

Inventories Inventories, which consist primarily of food, beverage and operating supplies, are stated at the
lower of cost or market value. Costs are determined using the first-in, first-out method.

Restricted Cash Restricted cash consists primarily of a completion reserve account established in
connection with the Credit Facility primarily for long-term construction projects (see Note 4). As of December
31, 2004 and 2003, the completion reserve account balance was $81,620,000 and $119,529,000, respectively.
Restricted cash is invested in highly liquid instruments with original maturities of 90 days or less, which carrying
amounts approximate fair value. Restricted cash also includes cash collaterizing a letter of credit of $3,300,000
and $4,400,000 as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

vl



PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
Property and Equipment Additions to property and equipment and construction-in-progress are recorded

at cost, including capitalized interest. Depreciation and amortization are provided based on the straight-line
method over the assets’ estimated useful lives as follows:

Years
Land improvements ... .. .. ...ttt e Sto 40
Buildings and improvements . ...... ... e 15t0 50
Vesselsand barges ... . 10 to 39
Equipment . ... .. 31020

Maintenance, repairs and assets purchased below $2,500 (or a group of like-type assets purchased below
$5,000) are charged to expense, as incurred. Betterments which extend the life of the asset are capitalized. The
costs of property sold or otherwise disposed of and their associated accumulated depreciation are eliminated from
both the property and accumulated depreciation accounts.

In January 2002, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144 (“SFAS No.
144”) “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived Assets.” Consistent with SFAS No. 144, the
Company reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the book value of an asset may not be recoverable. If a long-lived asset is to be retained, GAAP requires the
Company to assess recoverability based on the sum of the asset’s future undiscounted cash flows over the
estimated remaining life compared to the asset’s book value. If an impairment exists, the asset is written down to
fair value, based on quoted market prices or another valuation technique, such as discounted cash flow analysis.
If a long-lived asset is to be sold, the asset is reported at the lower of carrying value or fair value. There were no
such impairment charges in 2004 and 2003. In 2002, the Company wrote off $2,753,000 of design and
architecture plans for a casino riverboat and hotel tower at Boomtown Bossier City and a parking garage at
Casino Magic Biloxi, projects that were no longer being pursued.

Capitalization of Interest The Company capitalizes interest expense on construction in progress based on
an imputed interest rate estimating the Company’s average cost of borrowed funds for the project. Interest is no
longer capitalized once the project is substantially complete. Capitalized interest was $5,102,000, $1,513,000 and
$995,000 in fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Such capitalized interest becomes part of the cost of the
related asset and is depreciated over its estimated useful life.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets The Company adopted SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” (“SFAS No. 142”) in January 2002. Pursuant to SFAS No. 142, goodwill and other non-
amortizing intangible assets are no longer amortized, but instead are subject to an annual assessment for
impairment by applying a fair-value-based test. Any future acquired intangible asset will be separately
recognized if the benefit of the intangible is obtained through contractual or other legal rights, or if the intangible
asset can be sold, transferred, licensed, rented, or exchanged, regardless of the acquirer’s intent to do so.
Intangible assets with finite lives will be amortized over their useful lives.



PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Goodwill and other intangible assets as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following:

December 31,
2004 2003
(in thousands)
Goodwill:
Boomtown New Orleans ... ...ttt e e $16,743 $16,743
Boomtown Reno ......... .. i e 9,913 9,913

$26,656 $26,656

Gaming Licenses:
Boomtown Bossier City non-amortizing license ....................... $19,865 $19,865
Casino Magic Argentina amortizing gaming license .................... 1,617 1,983

$21,482 821,848

Goodwill: Goodwill consists of the excess of the acquisition cost over the fair value of the net assets
acquired in business combinations. Goodwill related to the 1997 Boomtown, Inc. acquisition was allocated to the
New Orleans and Reno facilities, while goodwill related to the 1998 acquisition of Casino Magic Corp. was
allocated to the Bossier City, Biloxi and Argentina locations. Changes in the recorded balances of goodwill are as
follows:

December 31,

2004 2003
(in thousands)
Balance, beginning of year ............. . .. $26,656 $19,558
Resolution of pre-acquisition contingent tax matters during the year ....... 0 14,930
Goodwill impaired duringthe year ......... .. ... ... .. ... . ... .. ... 0 (7,832)
Balance,end of the year ........ ... .. .. . 0o iiiiiiiii $26,656 $26,656

Based on assessments performed, there were no impairments in 2004. However, during 2003 the Company
identified certain pre-acquisition deferred tax assets related to Boomtown, Inc. and Casino Magic Corp. whose
estimated future realization had changed based on facts identified in the year (see Note 6). Pursuant to SFAS No.
109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” pre-acquisition contingent tax matters, including changes in a deferred tax
asset’s estimated future realization, that are resolved beyond the one-year post-acquisition period are required to
be reclassified from the deferred tax accounts to goodwill. Pursuant to SFAS No. 142, the Company then
reevaluated its revised goodwill balance. As a result, the Company recorded a goodwill impairment charge of
$7,832,000 related to the Casino Magic Corp. deferred tax asset reclassification and recorded an increase in
goodwill of $7,098,000 related to the Boomtown, Inc. deferred tax asset reclassification.

The Company had previously completed the necessary transition impairment reviews of goodwill in 2002
and recorded a transition adjustment impairment charge of $49,169,000 related to the Casino Magic Corp.
locations. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, such transition-adjustment charge was classified as a cumulative
effect of a change in accounting principle. The goodwill impairment resulted from the calculation of the fair
values of the Casino Magic locations. The fair values were determined by averaging the values indicated by the
market and income approaches. The market approach utilizes an analysis of publicly traded companies
considered comparable to the Company with regard to service, performance and markets. The income approach
requires a projection of future discounted earning capacity of the Company. The properties’” fair values were
allocated to the properties’ tangible and intangible assets net of working capital, until the fair values were
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completely allocated. The recorded impairment is the result of the difference between the carrying value of the
property (including intangible assets) and its fair value, net of working capital.

Gaming Licenses: Boomtown Bossier City In connection with the acquisition of Casino Magic Corp. in
1998, a portion of the purchase price was allocated to that Company’s Louisiana gaming license, which license
permits the Company to conduct the gaming operations of Boomtown Bossier City. In connection with the
implementation of SFAS No. 142 in 2002, the Company classified such asset as a non-amortizing intangible
asset with an indefinite useful life and subject to an annual assessment for impairment by applying a fair-value-
based test. Based on assessments performed, there was no impairment in 2004 and 2003.

In 2002, the implementation of SFAS No. 142 resulted in an impairment charge of $7,535,000, net of an
income tax benefit of $4,239,000. Such transition-adjustment charge was classified with the goodwill impairment
charge as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. The gaming license impairment charge was
determined under the “relief from royalty” principle. This principle indicates that a license should not have a
carrying value on the balance sheets if the licensee did not have to pay a significant fee to the licensing authority
for the initial license and that law and common practice does not have significant fees for anticipated license
renewals. While the Company does pay significant gaming taxes, it does not pay specific significant license fees
except for the investigative and similar costs. The carrying amount of such license prior to the impairment charge
resulted from an acquisition of the facility and was therefore similar to goodwill in nature.

Casino Magic Argentina A portion of the acquisition price of Casino Magic Corp. in 1998 was allocated
to a concession agreement to operate casinos in Argentina through December 2006.

In 2003, the Company and the Province of Neuqgien amended the agreement, permitting extensions of the
concession agreement under certain circumstances. As amended, the concession agreement will be extended
through 2016 provided that the Company build as much of a planned new facility as possible utilizing the
resources (cash and retained earnings through 2006) of the Argentine subsidiary. Also, the Company can receive
an additional five-year extension to 2021 if it invests 5 million pesos (or US$1,682,000 based on December 31,
2004 exchange rate) in a minimum three-star hotel facility with a minimum of 10 guestrooms. The Company
expects the concession agreement will be extended to the 2016 date upon the opening of its new facility-—see
Note 4 for a description of construction progress.

Amortization expense of the license cost related to Casino Magic Argentina for the years ended December
31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $380,000, $377,000 and $354,000, respectively. The unamortized gaming license
costs as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were $1,617,000 and $1,983,000, respectively. Estimated future
amortization expense for each of the next five years, applying the average peso-to-dollar exchange rate for the
year ended December 31, 2004 to each such period, is approximately $380,000. The Company continues to have
the ability and intent to satisfy conditions for the extension. Therefore the Company is amortizing the gaming
license costs through 2016.

Debt Issuance Costs and Related Amortization Debt issuance costs incurred in connection with long-term
debt and bank financing are capitalized and amortized to interest expense over the expected term of the related
debt agreement. The Company uses the straight-line method that approximates the effective interest method for
such amortization. Amortization of debt issuance costs included in interest expense was $3,246,000, $4,524,000
and $3,862,000 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Accumulated amortization
as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 was $35,559,000 and $6,333,000, respectively.

Self Insurance The Company self-insures various levels of general liability, property, workers’
pany g Y, property
compensation and medical coverage. Insurance reserves include accruals of estimated settlements for known
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claims, as well as accruals of estimates of incurred but not reported claims, which are included in accrued
compensation and other accrued liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

Income Taxes The Company accounts for income taxes under SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income
Taxes” (“SFAS No. 109”), whereby deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. Under SFAS No. 109, the effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates
is recognized in income in the period that included the enactment date. Valuation allowances are provided
against deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax asset will
not be realized. Loss contingencies resulting from tax audits or certain tax positions are accrued when the
potential loss can be reasonably estimated and where occurrence is probable.

Revenue Recognition Gaming revenues consist of the difference between gaming wins and losses. Food
and beverage, truck stop, service station, hotel and other operating revenues are recognized as products are
delivered or services are performed.

The Company rewards certain customers with cash based upon their level of play on certain casino games
(primarily slot machines), including the cash value of frequent-player “points” and coin coupon offerings. The
cash values are a reduction in revenues.

Revenues in the accompanying statements of operations exclude the retail value of hotel rooms, food and
beverage and other items provided to patrons on a complimentary basis. Complimentary revenues which have
been excluded from the accompanying consolidated statements of operations are $47,981,000, $49,171,000 and
$47,937,000 for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The estimated cost of providing these promotional
allowances (which is included in gaming expenses) was $35,006,000, $39,420,000 and $36,623,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Advertising Costs Advertising costs are expensed as incurred, consistent with Statement of Position 93-7
“Reporting on Advertising Costs.” Such costs were $11,853,000, $11,379,000 and $11,729,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and were included in general and administrative on the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Pre-opening and Development Costs Pre-opening and development costs are expensed as incurred,
consistent with Statement of Position 98-5 “Reporting on the Costs of Start-up Activities.” For 2004, such costs
were $14,399,000, primarily associated with L’Auberge and the St. Louis opportunities, as well as the
Company’s sponsorship of an unsuccessful gaming initiative in California. Such costs were $1,261,000 and
$1,948,000 for 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Stock-based Compensation Consistent with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 148
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure” (“SFAS No. 148”), the Company
discloses the theoretical costs of employee stock-based compensation in the notes to the financial statements
rather than in the consolidated statements of operations itself. The reason for this is that the costs as of the date of
grant of stock option compensation are theoretical; if the stock price does not appreciate or the employee does
not stay employed long enough to vest in the options, then the actual cost does not materialize.

In estimating the pro forma effect of stock-based compensation, the Company uses an option-pricing model.
Such model requires the use of subjective assumptions, including the expected life of the option, the expected
volatility of the underlying stock, the expected dividend on the stock, and the risk-free interest rate for the
expected life of the option.
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In computing the stock-based compensation, the following assumptions were made:

Risk-
Free

Interest Expected Life Expected Expected
Rate at Issuance Volatility Dividends

Options granted in the following periods:

2004 . 3.4% 6 years 53.1% None
2003 . 29% 5 years 54.7% None
2002 L e 4.3% 5 years 51.2% None

The expected volatility is derived from the historical performance of the Company’s common stock. Further
volatility may be substantially less or greater than historical volatility. The Company does not currently pay
dividends and, based on the Company’s debt covenants and expansion plans, management does not anticipate
that dividends will be paid within the average expected life of existing options. Five-year U.S. Treasury strip
rates are used as the proxy for the risk-free rate. The expected life at issuance is based on the Company’s
experience as to the average life of option grants before being exercised or forfeited.

The following sets forth the pro forma costs and impact on net income (losses} due to the Company’s
employee stock-based compensation plans if the estimated fair value at the date of grant of such options were to
be charged to earnings over the vesting period of the options:

For the year ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(in thousands, except per share data)

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle and stock-

based COMPENSALION EXPEIMSE . . ..ottt t vttt et et e et e e e e $ 9,161  $(28,242) $(12,925)
Theoretical stock-based compensation expense, netof taxes ....................... (1,592) 1,797) (1,327)
Pro forma income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle . . . 7,569 (30,039)  (14,252)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle . ................ .. ... ...... 0 0 56,704
Pro forma income (I0SS) . ..ottt et i e e $ 7.569  $(30,039) $(70,956)
As reported:
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle ....... $ 026 $ (1.09 $ (0.50)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle .. ...................... 0.00 (0.00) (2.20)
Net income (loss) per share—basic . ........ ... v, $ 026 $ (1.09 §$ (2.70)
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle .. ..... $ 025 $ (109 $ (0.50)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle ........... ... ... ... .. 0.00 0.00 (2.20)
Net income (loss) per share—diluted .............. ... ... . ... ... ... $ 025 § (1.09 $ (2.70)
Pro forma:
Pro forma income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in accounting
PHNCIPIE . . $ 022 $ (1.16) $ (0.55)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle .. ...................... 0.00 0.00 (2.20)
Pro forma net income (loss) per share—basic . ............. ... ... ... ..., $ 022 $ (116 $ (275
Pro forma income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in accounting
PIINCIDIE . . ot $ 021 § (1.16) $ (0.55)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle .. ................... ... 0.00 (0.00) (2.20)
Pro forma net income (loss) per share—diluted ......................... $ 021 $ (1.16) $ (275
Number of shares—basic . .......... . . i e 34,730 25,861 25,773

Number of shares—diluted . ...... ... .. . . i 36,170 25,861 25,773
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Currency Translation The Company accounts for currency translation in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No 52, “Foreign Currency Translation.” Balance sheet accounts are translated at
the exchange rate in effect at each balance sheet date. Income statement accounts are translated at the average
rate of exchange prevailing during the period. Translation adjustments resulting from this process are charged or
credited to other comprehensive income (loss).

Comprehensive Income Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 130 “Reporting Comprehensive
Income” (“SFAS No. 130”) requires that a company disclose other comprehensive income (loss) and the
components of such income (loss). The objective of SFAS No. 130 is to report a measure of all changes in equity
other than transactions with stockholders, such as the issuance or repurchase of shares. “Comprehensive income
{loss)” is the sum of net income (loss) and other comprehensive income (loss).

Earnings per Share Basic earnings per share are based on net income (loss) less preferred stock dividend
requirements, if any, divided by the weighted average common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings per share assume exercise of in-the-money stock options (those options with exercise prices at or below
the weighted average market price for the periods presented) outstanding at the beginning of the year or at the
date of the issuance, unless the assumed exercises are antidilutive.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, the dilutive effect of in-the-money common stock options was
1,440,000 shares, whereas excluded from the determination of diluted shares was approximately 410,000
common stock options not in-the-money.

For the year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, there were 77,000 and 142,000, respectively, of
potentially dilutive in-the-money stock options. For those years, the effect of the in-the-money stock options
were not included in the diluted calculation as the Company incurred a net loss and such inclusion would have
been antidilutive. In addition, for 2003 and 2002, there were approximately 3,383,000 and 3,143,000,
respectively, of stock options not in-the-money.

Use of Estimates The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect (i) the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, (ii) the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the consolidated financial statements, and (iii) the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Estimates used by the Company include, among other things, (i) the evaluation of the non-
impairment of property, equipment and other long-term assets, (ii) the evaluation of the future realization of
deferred tax assets, and (iti) the adequacy of reserves associated with asset sales, and determining litigation
reserves and other obligations. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards: Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 46
(“FIN No. 46R”) In 2004, the Company adopted FIN No. 46R, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” FIN
No. 46R did not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. This interpretation of
Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidation of Financial Statements” addresses consolidation by
business enterprises of variable interest entities where equity investors do not bear the residual economic risks
and rewards. These entities are commonly referred to as “special purpose entities,” none of which the Company

has.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R (“SFAS No. 123R”) In December 2004, the FASB
issued SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment,” which requires all companies to measure compensation costs
for all share-based payments (including employee stock options) at a computed value. This statement will be
effective for the Company for its quarterly period beginning July 1, 2005. The Company has not yet determined
the effect this statement will have on its financial position or results of operations.
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Reclassifications Certain reclassifications, having no effect on net income, have been made to the 2003
and 2002 amounts to be consistent with the 2004 financial statement presentation.

Note 2—Property and Equipment
Property and equipment held at December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following:

December 31,

2004 2003
(in thousands)

Land and land improvements .. ............ourorneerernnenannnna... $ 124424 $ 118,639
Buildings ... 382,975 354,720
Equipment .. ... 256,391 236,727
Vesseland barges . ... ... o 117,637 116,532
Construction IN PrOZIESS . . ..ttt et et it ettt 228,054 60,330

‘ 1,109,481 886,948
Less accumulated depreciation . .......... .. i (295,494) (265,239)

$ 813,987 § 621,709

Construction in progress at December 31, 2004 relates primarily to the L’Auberge project, while at
December 31, 2003 relates to L’ Auberge and the Belterra expansion project (see Note 4).

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002 was $47,807,000,
$46,456,000 and $44,724,000, respectively.

On March 7, 2005, the Company entered into an agreement with Cabela’s Retail, Inc. to sell a total of
37.4 acres adjacent to its Boomtown Reno hotel and casino facility for an aggregate price of approximately
$7.8 million. The Company has entered into a separate agreement with the purchaser to sell the approximately
1.1 acres of existing truck stop land for $10,000 following the receipt of certain environmental clearances. The
purchaser intends to build a Cabela’s outdoor sporting goods store on the land. A portion of the cost needed to
improve the road accessing the site and other related improvements would be financed through the issuance of
sales tax bonds through local or state governmental authorities. The bonds will be serviced by a portion of the
sales taxes generated by the new retail facilities. The Company has agreed to purchase, if necessary, half of the
bonds that would be used to finance a new loop road and utility work, and half of the bonds used to finance
certain interchange work supporting the developments if the interchange work is financed with sales tax bonds.
The Company estimates that it would purchase approximately $4 million to $10 million of these bonds, and
believes such bonds could be resold to other investors, particularly after the new facilities have opened. In
connection with the sale, the Company intends to build a new truck stop (together with a satellite casino) at
another location on the Boomtown Reno property it owns for approximately $12 million and will continue to
operate the existing truck stop and satellite casino during the construction period. The agreements are subject to
various conditions and are expected to close in the second half of 2005. .

Note 3—Assets Held For Sale

During 2004, the Company completed the sale of 97 acres of surplus land in Inglewood, California for
approximately $57 million in net cash proceeds and recorded a gain of $43,976,000, net of transactional and
other costs. In addition, the Company recorded a charge of $1,566,000 for the expensing of an agreement for a
consultant that assisted with the disposition of the surplus land.
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The Company does not anticipate paying any current income tax on the land sales based on its federal net
operating loss carry-forwards (see Note 6). In addition, all of the net cash proceeds from the land sales were
deposited into the completion reserve account pursuant to the Company’s credit facility.

Note 4—Expansion and Development

L’Auberge du Lac: The Company is currently building L’ Auberge du Lac, which management believes
will be the premier casino in the Lake Charles, Louisiana area. L’ Auberge is located on 227 acres of land, and is
expected to offer approximately 745 guestrooms, several restaurants, approximately 28,000 square feet of
meeting space, a2 championship golf course designed by Tom Fazio, an expansive pool area, retail shops and a
full-service spa. Unlike most other riverboat casinos, all of the public areas at L’ Auberge (except the parking
garage), and in particular the casino, will be situated entirely on one level. The casino will be surrounded on three
sides by the hotel facility and other guest amenities, providing convenient access to approximately 1,600 slot
machines and 60 table games.

In July 2004, the Company announced an increase in the scope and budget of L’ Auberge, including, among
other items, increasing the number of guestrooms to approximately 745 from approximately 700. Overall, the
budget was increased to $365 million from $325 million to reflect these and other changes. Through December
31, 2004, the Company has incurred approximately $193 million of construction and other costs.

L’ Auberge remains on schedule as per its agreement with the Louisiana Gaming Control Board that calls for
construction of certain facilities to be completed by June 13, 2005, which date was extended on March 15 from
the prior May 12, 2005 date. Following completion of such facilities, the Company anticipates a short employee
training period in the completed facilities before opening to the public on May 26. Issuance of the gaming license
from the Louisiana Gaming Control Board is subject to continued compliance with gaming regulations and other
conditions.

The Company leases the 227 acres of land upon which the L’ Auberge is being constructed from the Lake
Charles Harbor and Terminal District. The lease calls for annual payments of $835,600 commencing upon
opening of the resort complex with increases for inflation thereafter, subject to a maximum annual increase of
5%. The lease has an initial term of 10 years, commencing on the opening of the resort casino, with six renewal
options of 10 years each. In addition, the Company entered into a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement with the City
of Lake Charles, Calcasieu Parish and the District requiring Pinnacle to make infrastructure improvements,
including, among other things, a road extension and utility improvements, and to pay non-specific impact fees,
which, collectively, are expected to approximate $11,375,000. The Company has included such obligations in the
$365 million project budget. The Company also has an option to lease an additional 75 acres of unimproved land
adjacent to the 227 acres. The lease option currently expires on August 19, 2005, with one remaining one-year
renewal option. The terms of the lease, if the option is exercised, would be substantially similar on a per acre
basis to the terms of the lease for the 227 acres.

St. Louis City: In January 2004, the City of St. Louis (through affiliated entities) selected the Company to
develop its St. Louis City project, a $258 million casino, luxury hotel and entertainment complex near Laclede’s
Landing north of the Gateway Arch. A redevelopment agreement was executed in April (see Note 11 for a
description of such agreement). As proposed, the project includes a 75,000-square-foot casino, 200 luxury
guestrooms, restaurants and retail space on approximately 7.3 acres of land currently owned by the Company.

In May 2004, the Company executed an 18-month option to lease approximately 4.3 acres of additional land
near Laclede’s Landing which are owned or subject to condemnation proceedings by a city agency. In November
2004, the Company entered into an agreement to purchase the Embassy Suites Hotel—St. Louis-Downtown
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(“Embassy Suites”), a 297-suite hotel that adjoins the site on which the Company intends to build the St. Louis
City casino. Anticipated to cost approximately $38 million, the Company expects to close the transaction in the
first half of 2005. Finally, in February 2005, the Company entered into an agreement to acquire an additional 4.9
acre land parcel immediately adjacent to the proposed casino site and Embassy Suites hotel for approximately
$7,500,000, which is expected to close in March 2005. Cumulatively, the Company owns, has agreed to
purchase, or has under option to lease, approximately 18 contiguous acres of land for the development of its St.
Louis City casino.

In September, the Company was selected by the Missouri Gaming Commission (“MGC”) for priority
investigation, and in January 2005 obtained several key approvals from the MGC for the St. Louis City project.
The Company anticipates beginning construction shortly after receiving the necessary building and land-use
permits, which it expects to receive in Summer 2005. The St. Louis City project is expected to open 18 months
thereafter, in early 2007.

St. Louis County: In February 2004, St. Louis County (through an affiliated entity) selected the Company
to develop its St. Louis County project, a $300 million casino complex in the community of Lemay. A lease and
development agreement was executed in August (see Note 11 for a description of such agreement). Located
approximately 10 miles south of downtown St. Louis, the South St. Louis County development will be situated
on 80 acres of land and will include a 90,000-square-foot casino, 100-guestroom hotel, retail space, multiplex
movie theater and bowling alley. According to the terms of the agreement, Pinnacle will lease approximately 56
acres of land from the Port Authority for its gaming and commercial facilities. The remaining 24 acres of leased
land will become a public park and include additional community and recreational facilities.

The MGC also selected the Company for priority investigation for the St. Louis County project in
September 2004. The Company anticipates obtaining the required site approvals from the MGC in the first half
of 2005. Development of the St. Louis County site requires extensive environmental remediation and
construction of a new road to the site, the estimated costs of which are included in the estimated project cost.
Management estimates that full development of the St. Louis County project will take approximately one year
longer than the St. Louis City project, opening in early 2008. Both of the projects are subject to MGC approval
and licensing.

Belterra: 1In early May 2004, the Company opened its new 300-guestroom tower at the Belterra Casino
Resort, the centerpiece of the $37 million expansion project. In addition to increasing the guestroom base to a total
of 608 guestrooms, the expansion project added approximately 33,000 square feet of meeting and conference space,
a year-round swimming pool and other amenities. The expansion opened as scheduled and on budget.

Casino Magic Argentina: In May 2004, construction began for a replacement facility for the existing
Neuquen casino, the principal Casino Magic Argentina property. The new facility will include a casino, a
restaurant and an entertainment venue on land owned by the Company approximately one mile from the existing
leased facility at an estimated cost of approximately US$14 million and which is expected to open in Spring
2005. The Company is funding the expansion project utilizing Casino Magic Argentina’s existing cash resources
and its retained earnings through 2006. Depending on the subsidiary’s profitability through 2006, the Company
may develop additional phases of the planned expansion, including a three-star hotel facility with a minimum of
10 guestrooms.

Great Exuma, Bahamas: In December 2004, the Company signed a letter of intent to sublease premises
from Emerald Bay Resort Hotel Limited, a Bahamian corporation, to operate a casino adjacent to the Four
Seasons Resort Great Exuma at Emerald Bay in the Bahamas, which letter of intent was extended in March to
May 1, 2005. The casino will be approximately 5,000 square feet and require an investment of approximately
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USS$5 million. The casino is expected to open in late 2005, contingent upon the Company receiving approvals

from governmental authorities in the Bahamas, including the Hotel Corporation of the Bahamas and the Gaming
Board of the Bahamas, and execution of a final lease agreement.

Note 5—Notes Payable
Notes payable at December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following:

December 31,
2004 2003
(in thousands)
Secured Credit Facility .. ..... ... .. ... .. . . $125,000 $147,000
Unsecured 8.25% Notes due 2012 .. ... . .. i i 303,621 0
Unsecured 8.75% Notes due 2013 . ... .. i e 132,982 132,856
Unsecured 9.25% Notes due 2007 ... ... .. i, 65,000 350,000
Hollywood Park-Casino capital lease ............ ... ... ... .. .. ..... 12,506 14,746
Other secured and unsecured notes payable ............................. 1,379 1,333
640,488 645,935
Less current Maturiti€s . ... .. ..t it vttt e e (2,517) (2,341

$637,971 $643,594

Secured Credit Facility: In August 2004, the Company entered into an amended and restated bank credit
facility (the “Credit Facility”), which provides for a $255 million six-year term loan facility, of which $125
million was drawn immediately and $130 million is available on a delayed basis in minimum increments of $25
million through September 2005, and a $125 million revolving credit facility which matures in December 2008.

Upon closing of the Credit Facility, the Company deposited the term loan borrowings of $125 million into a
completion reserve account and repaid all outstanding obligations under the 2003 Credit Facility (defined below).
Funds maintained in the completion reserve account, subject to satisfying conditions to withdrawal, are permitted
to be used to pay for the costs and expenses of the construction of the Company’s “Current Projects” (as defined
in the Credit Facility), including the ongoing development of L’ Auberge du Lac, and following the approval of
the project budgets by the administrative agent under the Credit Facility, the St. Louis City and County projects,
as well as for the refinancing of the 9.25% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2007 (see below). Proceeds of the
delayed-draw term loan facility are required to be funded into the completion reserve account and are also
available subject to satisfying conditions to withdrawal from such account. The proceeds of the revolving credit
facility may be used to pay for the construction costs of any Current Project, as defined, refinancing of the 9.25%
Senior Subordinated Notes due 2007 or general corporate purposes.

The term loans. are repayable in quarterly instaliments of 0.25% of the principal amount of the term loans
outstanding on October 1, 2005, commencing in March 2006. The Company is obligated to make mandatory
prepayments of indebtedness under the Credit Facility from the net proceeds of certain debt offerings, certain
asset sales and dispositions and certain equity issuances. On the later of August 27, 2006 and the date when the
Company completes all of its Current Projects, the Company will be required to prepay borrowings under the
Credit Facility with a percentage of its “excess cash flow” as the Company meets certain “leverage ratios” (each
as defined in the Credit Facility). The Company has the option to prepay all or any portion of the indebtedness
under the Credit Facility at any time without premium or penalty.

Interest on the Credit Facility is subject to change based on the floating rate index selected. For the
revolving loan facility, the interest rate margin is based on certain financial ratios. As of December 31, 2004, the
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term loan bore interest of 5.42% per annum (3.00% over LIBOR), and the delayed-draw term loan and revolver
facility bore facility fees for unborrowed amounts of 1.00% and 1.25% per annum, respectively. The Company
may also, at its option, borrow at a base rate, as defined in the agreement. Under the Credit Facility, at least 50%
of the Company’s debt obligations must be subject to fixed interest rates or hedge agreements or other interest
rate protection agreements.

The Credit Facility has, among other things, restrictive financial covenants and capital spending limits and
other affirmative and negative covenants. The obligations under the Credit Facility are secured by substantially
all of the assets of the Company and its domestic restricted subsidiaries, including a pledge of the equity interests
in the Company’s domestic subsidiaries. The Company’s obligations under the Credit Facility are also
guaranteed by the Company’s domestic restricted subsidiaries. The Company believes it is in compliance with its
bank debt covenants as of December 31, 2004.

Borrowing under the Credit Facility and access to funds from the completion reserve account for the costs
and expenses associated with the Company’s Current Projects are subject to conditions associated with
construction loans, including an “in balance requirement,” which looks to the sufficiency of the Company’s
available resources to complete its Current Projects, including the Company’s “projected free cash flow” (all as
defined in the Credit Facility).

Under the Company’s most restrictive indenture, the Company is permitted to incur up to $350 million in
senior indebtedness. The Company’s indenture permits the incurrence of additional indebtedness (senior or
otherwise) in excess of $350 million for debt refinancing or under a provision that permits additional incurrence
if at the time the indebtedness is proposed to be incurred, the Company’s consolidated coverage ratio on a pro
forma basis (as defined in the indenture) would be at least 2.00 to 1.00. In February 2005, the Company
refinanced the remaining portion of its 9.25% Notes (see 9.25% Notes below) with borrowings of $69 million
under the Credit Facility. Such borrowings do not count towards the $350 million senior indebtedness basket as
the funds were used to refinance the 9.25% Notes.

In addition to permitted capital expenditures for maintenance expenses at existing facilities and amounts
permitted to be applied to the costs and expenses of the Current Projects, the Credit Facility permits the
Company to expend funds, during the term of the Credit Facility, on various new capital projects in an amount up
to $125 million.

In December 2003, the Company entered into a $300 million credit facility, (the “2003 Credit Facility™)
which provided for a six-year $225 million term loan facility and a five-year $75 million revolving credit facility.
Upon the closing of the 2003 Credit Facility, the Company borrowed $147 million in term loans and deposited
net term loan proceeds of approximately $139.6 million into the completion reserve account.

In May 2003, the Company amended, expanded and restated its prior credit facility, which was executed in
1998 (the “Prior Credit Facility”). This facility was replaced with the 2003 Credit Facility in December.

In September 2004, the Company issued a $10 million irrevocable letter of credit for the benefit of an
affiliate of the City of St. Louis, thereby reducing availability under the revolving credit facility to $115 million
as of December 31, 2004. The letter of credit bears a facility fee of 3.25% per annum as of December 31, 2004.

Unsecured 8.25%, 8.75% and 9.25% Notes: In March 2004, the Company issued $200 million in
aggregate principal amount of 8.25% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2012 (the “8.25% Notes™), which were
issued at a price of 99.282% of par, thereby vielding 8.375% to maturity. Net proceeds of the offering plus cash
on hand were used to repurchase $188 million in aggregate principal amount of the Company’s 9.25% Senior
Subordinated Notes due 2007 (see below). Interest is payable on such notes on each March 15 and September 15.
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In December 2004, the Company issued $100 million in aggregate principal amount of additional 8.25%
Notes, which were issued at a price of 105.00% of par, thereby yielding 7.10% to the first call date and 7.35% to
maturity. The Company issued the additional notes under the March 2004 8.25% Notes indenture. Net proceeds
of the offering plus cash on hand were used to repurchase $97 million in aggregate principal amount of the
Company’s 9.25% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2007 (see below).

In September 2003, the Company issued $135 million in aggregate principal amount of 8.75% Senior
Subordinated Notes due 2013 (the “8.75% Notes”), which notes were issued at 98.369% of par, thereby yielding
9.00% to maturity. The net proceeds of the offering were used to retire the Company’s then existing 9.50%
Senior Subordinated Notes (the “9.50% Notes”) through a cash tender offer and exercise of the Company’s right
to call the bonds for redemption.

The 8.25% and 8.75% Notes are redeemable, at the option of the Company, in whole or in part, on the
following dates, at the following premium-to-face values:

8.25% Notes redeemable: 8.75% Notes redeemable:
On and after March 15, At a premium of On and after October 1, at a premium of
2008 104.125% 2008 104.375%
2009 102.063% 2009 102.917%
2010 and thereafter 100.000% 2010 101.458%
2011 and thereafter 100.000%

Both the 8.25% and the 8.75% Notes are unsecured obligations of the Company, guaranteed by all material
restricted subsidiaries (excluding foreign subsidiaries) of the Company, as defined in the indentures. The
indentures governing the 8.25% and 8.75% Notes contain certain covenants limiting the ability of the Company
and its restricted subsidiaries to incur additional indebtedness, issue preferred stock, pay dividends or make
certain distributions, repurchase equity interests or subordinated indebtedness, create certain liens, enter into
certain transactions with affiliates, sell assets, issue or sell equity interests in its subsidiaries, or enter into certain
mergers and consolidations. Among other things, the Company is permitted under the 8.25% Notes indenture to
amend, restate, modify, renew, refund, replace or refinance its senior indebtedness up to a maximum of $475
million, which amount is limited to $350 million under the 8.75% Notes indenture, of such debt outstanding. It is
also permitted, under both indentures, to put a substantial portion of its undeveloped real estate into an
unrestricted subsidiary. The Company believes it was in compliance with the covenants as of December 31,
2004.

In 1999, the Company issued $350 million in aggregate principal amount of 9.25% Senior Subordinated
Notes due 2007 (the “9.25% Notes”), of which $285 million in aggregate principal amount was refinanced in
2004 and $65 million in aggregate principal amounts remained outstanding as of December 31, 2004. In
February 2005, the Company repurchased the remaining $65 million in aggregate principal amount of 9.25%
Notes using proceeds from the Credit Facility.

Original issue premium and discount incurred in connection with debt financings are capitalized to the
related long term debt issued, and amortized to interest expense over the expected term of the related debt
agreement using the effective interest method.

Transactional costs of $13,609,000 and $21,698,000 were capitalized to “Debt Issuance Costs” in 2004 and
2003, respectively, in connection with the issuance of the 8.25% Notes, the 8.75% Notes and credit facilities.
Losses on the early extinguishment of debt of $14,921,000 and $19,908,000 were recorded in 2004 and 2003,
respectively, in connection with the repurchase of the 9.25% and 9.50% Notes and refinancing of the credit
facilities.
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In connection with the sale/leaseback of the Hollywood Park-Casino real estate and subsequent sublease of
the card club operations to a third-party operator in September 1999, the Company recorded a long-term capital
lease obligation of $23 million. The debt obligation is being amortized at $3 million per year, based on the
effective interest method, over the 10 years ending September 2009. The gross book value of the Hollywood Park
Casino is $23 million and the accumulated depreciation is $8,050,000 and $6,517,000 as of December 31, 2004
and 2003, respectively, and is included in property and equipment on the consolidated balance sheet.
Depreciation associated with the asset is included in depreciation and amortization on the consolidated
statements of operations.

The estimated fair value based on quoted market prices when available of the Company’s long-term debt at
December 31, 2004 and 2003 was $672,986,000 and $666,385,000, versus the book values of $640,488,000 and
$645,935,000, respectively.

Annual Maturities:  As of December 31, 2004, annual maturities of secured and unsecured notes payable,
and capital lease obligations are as follows:

(in thousands)
Year ending December 31:

200 $ 3,155
2006 . 4,359
2007 69,365
2008 . 4,328
2009 3,576
Thereafter . . o e 555,856
640,639
Plus difference between principal at maturity and unamortized net debt issuance premium . . . 1,603
Less interest related to the capital lease obligation ......... ... ... .. ... ... ... .. ... (1,754)

Notes payable, including capital lease obligations ....................c..cvuun... $640,488
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Note 6—Income Taxes

The composition of the Company’s income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended December 31, 2004,

2003 and 2002 was as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2004:
US. Federal ........ . .
SatE . .o e

Year ended December 31, 2003:
US.Federal ........ ... ... . . .
St
FOTeIgn ..t

Year ended December 31, 2002:
U.S. Federal ......... ... i
S .
Foreign ... o e

Current  Deferred Total
(in thousands)

$ 715 $5340 $ 6,055
(51) 911 860
1,680 0 1,680

$2344 $6251 $ 8,595

$ 157 $(6,320) $ (6,163)
0 (594) (594)
363 0 363

$ 520 $(6,914) § (6,394)

$(5,648) $(3,287) $ (8,935)
86  (2457)  (2,37D)
922 0 922

$(4,640) $(5.744) $(10,384)(a)

{2) Includes $4,238,000 of tax benefit of cumulative change in accounting principle.

The following table reconciles the Company’s income tax expense (benefit) before change in accounting
principle to the federal statutory tax expense (benefit) based on the federal of rate of 35%:

Federal income tax expense (benefit) at the statutory rate ............
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefits .....................
Other EXPENSES . .« .o v i ittt e
Goodwill Impairment . .. ........ it
Gaming inftiative ... ... ... e
Change in valuation allowance/reserve of deferred tax assets .........

Income tax expense (benefit) before change in accounting principle . . . .

For the years ended December

3

2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)
$6,216 $(12,123) $(6,675)
935 (1,581) (1,541)
691 1,569 2,070

0 2,741 0
1,253 0 0
(500) 3,000 0

$8,595 $ (6,394) $(6,146)
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The following table reconciles the Company’s effective income tax rate before change in accounting

principle to the federal statutory tax rate of 35%:

For the years ended December 31,

2003 2002

in thousands)
(35.0)% (35.00%
4.6)% (8.1)%

45% 109%
7.9% 0.0%
0.0% 0.0%
8.7% 0.0%

2004

(
Federal income tax expense (benefit) at the statutoryrate ............ 35.0%
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefits . .................... 5.3%
Other EXPENSES .. o\ttt e e et e e e 3.9%
Goodwill impairment . ...........c. . 0.0%
Gaming MMItIAtIVE .. ..ttt et et e e 7.0%
Change in valuation allowance/reserve of deferred tax assets ......... (2.8)%
Income tax expense (benefit) before change in accounting principle ...  48.4%

(18.5)% (32.2)%

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the tax effects of temporary differences that
portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities were:

gave rise to significant

For the years ended
December 31,

2004 2003

Deferred tax assets—current:

(in thousands)

Workers’ compensation insurance reServe .. ... .............oeuoan.... $§ 412 § 356

General liability insurance reServe . .............viirornnernnnnas
Vacation and sick pay accrual .......... .
Legal and merger COStS . .. .. v ettt
Oher o

259 591
1,086 1,135
1,824 1,845
1,034 1,452

(1,592) (2,167

Net current deferred tax assets . ......... . ... i ... $ 3,023 § 3212

Deferred 1ax assets—non-current:
Net operating loss carry-forwards ......... ... ... ... . ...
Los Angeles revitalization zone tax credits ........................ ..
Other . . e
Less Valuation Allowance ................o i irenannon..

$ 34,837 § 34,675

9,967 9,967
4,400 2,274
(19,844) (19,768)

Deferred tax assets—non-current . ...............ourennnnn.n..
Deferred tax liabilities—non-current:
Depreciation, amortization, pre-opening expenses and other ............

29,360 27,148

(50,128) (42,010)

Net non-current deferred tax liabilities . . . ......... .. ... ... ..

$(20,768) $(14,862)




PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

The following table summarizes the total deferred tax assets and total deferred tax liabilities provided in the
previous table:

For the years ended

December 31,
2004 2003
(in thousands)
Total deferred tax @SSELS . . . oo vttt e $ 53,819 $ 52,295
Less valuation allowances . ............uuiiititent i (21,436) (21,935)
Less total deferred tax liabilities . . ........ ... .. .. . . (50,128) (42,010)
Net deferved tax labilities . ...... ... ... ... ... ... ... . $(17,743) $(11,650)

Prior to 2000, the Company earned a substantial amount of California tax credits related to the ownership
and operation of the Hollywood Park Race Track and Hollywood Park-Casino as well as the ownership of the
Crystal Park Card Club Casino, which were located in the Los Angeles Revitalization Tax Zone (“LARZ”). As of
December 31, 2004, the Company had approximately $9,967,000 of LARZ tax credits. The LARZ tax credits can
only be used to reduce certain California tax liabilities. A valuation allowance has been recorded with respect to
the LARZ tax credits as the Company may not generate enough income subject to California tax to utilize the
credits before they expire. The amount subject to carry-forward of these unused California tax credits (net of
valuation allowance) was approximately $967,000. The LARZ credits will expire between 2007 to 2012.

During the fourth quarter of 2004, the Company wrote off deferred tax assets associated with expired
foreign tax credits, including a $500,000 valuation allowance recorded against such assets. As of December 31,
2004, the company has available AMT, general business and foreign tax credit carry-forwards in the amount of
$4,400,000. The foreign tax and general business credit carry-forwards will expire between 2011 to 2023, while
the AMT credit carry-forward is available indefinitely to reduce future regular tax liabilities. Based on
projections for future taxable income, management believes it is more likely than not the Company will realize
the benefits of these deferred tax assets. Accordingly, no deferred tax asset valuation allowances are recorded for
these tax credit carry-forwards.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company incurred approximately $3,000,000 in federal net
operating losses (“NOL”). At December 31, 2004, the Company had approximately $53,000,000 in federal net
operating losses, of which $2,078,000 is subject to restrictions imposed by Section 382 of the Internal Revenue
Code. The Company will carry forward the federal NOL to offset expected future taxable income. In addition, as
of December 31, 2004, the Company had state tax loss carry-forwards of $3,800,000, which amount is tax
effected and net of an associated valuation allowance. Both the federal and state tax loss carry-forwards expire on
various dates beginning in 2012. The Company has adjusted the individual deferred tax asset amounts previously
reported for 2003 to the amounts stated above to conform to the presentation for 2004. The previously reported
amounts did not include deferred state tax assets that were unlikely to ever be realized. As the net increase to
these deferred tax assets was offset by a corresponding increase to the valuation allowance, there was no change
to the overall net deferred tax liability.

During 2004, the Company filed an amended 2000 tax return to reflect additional benefits previously not
taken, as well as incorporating the impact of the IRS audits of the 1992 through 1996 tax years. The Company is
anticipating a tax refund of $4,714,000 associated with this filing.

The Company is subject to examination by various taxing authorities. The Company recognizes potential
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on its estimates. The estimate of the potential outcome for any
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uncertain tax issue is highly judgmental. At December 31, 2004, the Company believes that, in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5, adequate tax reserves related to uncertain tax matters that
are probable and can be reasonably estimated have been provided.

Income before taxes and the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle for Casino Magic
Argentina was $6,004,000, $4,483,000 and $1,927,000 for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Pursuant to
Accounting Principles Board No. 23, “Accounting for Income Taxes—Special Areas,” (“APB No. 23”), the
Company does not provide for federal income taxes or tax benefits on the undistributed earnings (which
approximates $14 million as of December 31, 2004) associated with Casino Magic Argentina. In the event some
or all of the earnings were distributed to Pinnacle, some portion of the distribution would be subject to both U.S.
income taxes and foreign withholding taxes. However, foreign tax credits may become available to reduce or
eliminate the U.S. income tax liability. A tax liability associated with the undistributed earnings has not been
established as the determination of such liability is not practicable.

In October, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 was signed into law, which, among other things,
provides for a one-time dividends received deduction for certain foreign earnings that are repatriated under a plan
for reinvestment in the U.S. Although the Company has committed to reinvesting Casino Magic Argentina’s
earnings into the expansion of the Neuquen facility through at least 2006 (see Note 4), the Company is evaluating
the potential effect of the deduction, and expects to complete its evaluation by December 31, 2005.

Note 7—Stockholders’ Equity

Preferred Stock: The Company has authorized 250,000 shares of $1.00 par value preferred stock, none of
which was issued or outstanding in 2004 or 2003.

Common Stock: At the 2003 annual meeting, shareholders of the Company approved an increase of
authorized shares of common stock to 80 million from 40 million. The Company had 42,510,591 and 25,935,928
shares of common stock issued as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

In February 2004, the Company consummated the public offering of 11,500,000 shares of its common stock
at $11.15 per share and received approximately $120,400,000 of net cash proceeds. In December 2004, the
Company consummated the public offering of 4,600,000 shares of its common stock at $18.25 per share and
received approximately $79,709,000 of net cash proceeds. Under the terms of the various credit agreements (see
Note 5), the Company deposited 25% of the net cash proceeds of the equity offerings into the completion reserve
account. The remaining proceeds will be used for general corporate purposes, which may include the L’ Auberge
construction, the St. Louis projects and new capital projects.

Treasury Stock: In December 2003, the Company exercised its right to repurchase 1,758,996 shares of its
common stock owned by its former Chairman at a purchase price of $10.00 per share. The Company also
repurchased an additional 249,990 shares of its common stock at a purchase price of $10.00 per share from a
charitable foundation created by the Company’s former Chairman. The Company recorded the total purchase
price of $20,090,000 as a reduction of stockholders’ equity as of December 31, 2003.

Shelf Registration: The Company’s shelf registration statement with the Securities and Exchange
Commission currently permits the issuance of up to $53 million of debt, equity or other securities. There can be
no assurance, however, that the Company will be able to issue any additional securities on terms acceptable to
the Company.
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Note 8—Lease Obligations

The Company has certain long-term operating lease obligations, including corporate office space, land at
Belterra Casino Resort and L’Auberge, office equipment and gaming equipment. Minimum lease payments
required under operating leases that have initial terms in excess of one year as of December 31, 2004 are as
follows:

(in thousands)

Period:
200 L e $ 6,840
2006 . 6,614
2007 5,355
20008 . e 3,252
2000 L e 2,465
Thereafter . ... ... 96,405

$120,930

Total rent expense for these long-term lease obligations for the years 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $5,664,000,
$5,059,000 and $6,291,000, respectively.

The Company leases 148 of the 315 acres its Belterra Casino Resort occupies in Southern Indiana. The lease
is for a total of 50 years, including an initial five-year lease term with nine consecutive five-year automatic
renewal periods. The lease provides for minimum annual rental payments of $1 million, plus 1.5% of the gross
gaming win in excess of $100 million (as defined in the lease agreement). For 2004, the lease obligation included
in rent expense was $1,832,000. The Company also has the option to purchase the property on or after the 20®
anniversary for $30 million, subject to adjustments as defined in the lease agreement.

The Company is party to a number of leases at its Casino Magic Biloxi property, including a submerged
tidelands lease from the State of Mississippi schedule to expire in May 2008. The Company has the right of first
refusal to re-lease the submerged tidelands at the expiration of the lease. The Company expects that rent for the
new lease will be based on an appraisal methodology approved by the Mississippi Secretary of State. The
Company incurred rental adjustments under the current lease based on such appraisals in 1998 and again in 2003,
and anticipates entering into a new lease on or before the expiration of the current lease. The lease payment for
2004 was approximately $926,000.

The Company leases the 227 acres for its L’ Auberge du Lac Hotel Casino (see Note 4). Pursuant to the
agreement, the initial lease term commences upon opening of the facility. The table above reflects lease
payments for the initial lease term and each of the six 10-year renewal periods, based upon an estimated May
2005 opening.

The Company entered into a lease and development agreement in connection with its St. Louis County
project (see Note 11). Pursuant to the agreement, the initial lease term commences upon opening of the casino,
with minimum rental obligations set at $4 million per annum, or 2.5% of adjusted gross receipts (as defined in
the agreement). Due to the uncertainty of the lease commencement date, the above table does not include the
future minimum lease payments for the lease agreement.

The Company is a party to a number of cancelable slot participation arrangements at its various casinos
which are customary for casino operations. The arrangements generally consist of either a fixed rent agreement
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on a per-day basis or a percentage of each slot machine’s gaming revenue, generally payable at month-end. Slot
participation expense was $11,449,000, $9,597,000 and $16,273,000 for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively.

As discussed in Note 5, the Company leases the Hollywood Park Casino under a long-term lease agreement
that, including a 10-year renewal option, expires in 2019. The Company then sub-leases the facility to an
unaffiliated third-party operator under a year-to-year lease. The Company also leases its Crystal Park Hotel
Casino on a year-to-year basis to the same operator. The third-party operator is not believed to have substantial
assets other than the two card clubs. The lease payments are believed to constitute a substantial portion of the
income at the card clubs. Rental income from such lease arrangements was $6,240,000 for each of 2004, 2003
and 2002, and is included in other income on the consolidated statements of operations. Rental income for 2005
has been set at $7,240,000.

Note 9—Employee Benefit Plans

Stock Option Plans: The Company accounts for its stock-based compensation under Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and follows the disclosure
provisions of SFAS No. 148.

The Company has three stock option plans (the “Stock Option Plans™) that provide for the granting of stock
options to officers, key employees and consultants. The objectives of these plans include attracting and retaining
the most capable personnel, providing for additional performance incentives, and promoting the success of the
Company. Except for the provisions governing the number of shares issuable and the provisions which reflect
changes in tax and securities laws, the provisions of the three plans are substantially similar. In addition,
Boomtown, Inc. and Casino Magic Corp. had stock option plans prior to their acquisition by the Company and,
under the terms of each merger, the options in those companies were converted to options in the Company.

The Stock Options Plans are administered and terms of option grants are established by the Board of
Directors’ Compensation Committee. Under the terms of the Stock Option Plans, options alone, or coupled with
stock appreciation rights, may be granted to select key employees, directors, consultants and advisors of the
Company. Options become exercisable ratably over a vesting period as determined by the Compensation
Committee and expire over terms not exceeding 10 years from the date of grant, and generally one to three
months after termination of employment, or one year after the death or permanent disability of the optionee. The
purchase price for all shares granted under the Stock Option Plans shall be determined by the Compensation
Committee, but in the case of incentive stock options, the price will not be less than the fair market value of the
common stock at the date of grant. Substantially all options issued over the past three years have been
exercisable at the then-current market price.

As of December 31, 2004, there were approximately 453,390 options remaining available for grant under
the Stock Option Plans.

In 2002 and 2003, in order to recruit the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
the Company granted options outside of the Stock Option Plans for the purchase of 765,801 shares (at an exercise
price of $8.45, the then-share price) and 86,739 shares (at an exercise price of $6.05, the then-share price),
respectively, all of which remained outstanding as of December 31, 2004. In addition, in 1998, the Company
granted 125,000 options (100,000 at an exercise price of $10.1875 and 25,000 at an exercise price of $18.00)
outside the Stock Option Plans, which are also outstanding as of December 31, 2004.
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The following table summarizes information related to all shares under option:

Number Weighted Average

of Shares Exercise Price

Options outstanding at January 1,2002 . ...... ... . it 2,799,944 $10.25

Granted . . .. oo 2,463,801 $ 8.08

Bxercised . ... (490,817) $ 823

Cancelled . ... ..ot (794,475) $10.54
Options outstanding at December 31,2002 .. ........ ... i, 3,978,453 $9.12

Granted . .. ... 742,739 $ 6.47

ExXercised . . ..o (1,667) $ 595

Cancelled ... ... e (538,786) $ 9.40
Options outstanding at December 31,2003 ........... ... ..ivviiinn.... 4,180,739 $ 9.04

Granted . ... ... e 497,000 $13.35

EXercised ... ..o (474,663) $ 9.86

Cancelled . ... ... e (81,342) $25.44
Options outstanding at December 31,2004 ... ....... ... ... .. .. ..o ... 4,121,734 $ 90.14
Options exercisable at:

December 31,2004 . ...t 2,075,211 $ 9.28

December 31, 2003 . ... 1,789,632 $10.72

December 31, 2002 . ... . e 1,507,011 $11.84
Weighted-average fair value per share of options granted during the year (a):

December 31, 2004 ... e $ 7.30

December 31, 2003 ...ttt $ 3.27

December 31,2002 ... o S 4.12

(a) Weighted average fair value was calculated using an option-pricing model. Such model requires the use of
subjective assumptions, including the expected life of the option, the expected volatility of the underlying
stock, the expected dividend on the stock, and the risk-free interest rate (U.S. Treasury Strip Rates) for the
expected life of the option.

The following table summarizes information about stock options:

Outstanding Exercisable
Number Number Weighted Average
of Shares at Weighted Average Weighted Average of Shares at Range of
Exercise Remaining Life Exercise Price Exercise 12/31/03 Price
(in years)
$5.01-8750 . ........ 1,281,147 7.7 $ 6.40 491,924 $ 6.35
$7.51-811.25........ 2,113,626 6.5 $ 9.15 1,295,325 $ 9.27
$11.26-$16.75. ... ... 607,461 7.2 $13.18 237,462 $13.58
$16.76-$18.05. ... ... 119,500 6.7 $17.98 50,500 17.89
4,121,734 7.0 $ 9.14 2,075,211 $ 928

Executive Compensation: Non-cash compensation charges of $154,000, $151,000 and $177,000 for 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively, were primarily incurred in connection with the granting of stock options to certain
executives outside the Stock Option Plans in 2002. As the options granted outside the plans were subject to
shareholder approval, and the stock price rose between the date of employment and the date of shareholder
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approval, a compensation charge equal to the difference between the stock option exercise price and the share
price on date of shareholder approval is calculated and expensed ratably over the life of the employee’s service
agreement. Such charges will continue through the final vesting of the options in 2006.

Other Benefit Plans: The Company maintains the Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. 401(k) Investment Plan
(the “401(k) Plan”). The 401(k) Plan is an employee benefit plan subject to the provisions of the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”), and is intended to be a qualified plan under Section 401(a)
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”). Participants of the 401(k) Plan may contribute up to 100% of
pretax income, subject to the legal limitation of $13,000 for 2004. In addition, effective January 1, 2003,
participants who are age 50 or older may make an additional contribution to the 401(k) Plan, commonly referred
to as a catch-up contribution, equal to $3,000 for 2004, The Company offers discretionary matching contributions
under the 401(k) Plan, which vest ratably over five years. For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002, matching contributions to the 401(k) Plan totaled $1,081,000, $1,084,000 and $1,058,000, respectively.

The Company maintains an Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (the “Executive Plan™), which allows
certain highly compensated employees of the Company and its subsidiaries to defer, on a pre-tax basis, among
other things, a portion of their base annual salary and bonuses. Participation in the plan is limited. A participant is
at all times fully vested in his or her contributions, as well as any appreciation or depreciation attributed thereto.
The Company does not make contributions to the Executive Plan for the benefit of such employees and the
payment of benefits under the plan is an unsecured obligation of the Company. In December 2004, the Executive
Plan was amended to comply with the provisions of the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004, and to make certain
other changes in the Executive Plan.

Note 10—Corporate Relocation

In December 2002, the corporate headquarters were moved to Las Vegas, Nevada from Glendale,
California. The costs to relocate, including severance payments, costs for the remaining lease term of the
Glendale office lease and other moving expenses, were $1,601,000 and were expensed in the fourth quarter of
2002. In November 2003, the Company executed a sub-lease agreement for the remaining term of the Glendale
office lease and therefore reversed the present value of the sub-lease agreement, or approximately $199,000.
Such amounts are included in other (income) expenses on the consolidated statements of operations. As of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, the remaining liability was $55,000 and $372,000, respectively, and is included in
other accrued liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

Note 11—Commitments and Contingencies

Belterra Hotel Tower Expansion and Settlement Costs:  As discussed in Note 4, the Company opened its
new 300-guestroom tower in May 2004, prior to a required July 2004 opening imposed by the Indiana Gaming
Commission. Accordingly, in July 2004, a $5 million deposit placed into escrow in August 2002, plus accrued
interest, was released back to the Company.

In August 2002, the Company entered into an agreement with the Indiana Gaming Commission. In
connection with such agreement, the Company recorded costs of $6,609,000 related to a fine, investigation costs,
estimated severance and settlement with former officers and estimated legal and other related costs. The
Company recorded a benefit of $194,000 and $1,858,000 in 2004 and 2003, respectively, as certain items had
cost less than was originally reserved.

Construction Commitments: As described in Note 4, the Company is building L’ Auberge du Lac in Lake
Charles, Louisiana and a replacement casino in Neuquen, Argentina. The Company has agreements related to the
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design, development and construction of these projects for approximately $217 million. Of this, approximately
$175 million was included in the Company’s construction in progress as of December 31, 2004.

Redevelopment Agreement: Also as described in Note 4, the Company entered into a redevelopment
agreement for its St. Louis City development project. Among other things, the agreement commits the Company
to: (a) invest $208 million (including the approximate $8 million previously spent to acquire the 7.3-acre
proposed site) to construct a gaming and multi-use facility that will include a 75,000 square foot casino and 200-
guestroom luxury hotel; (b) invest, potentially with one or more development partners, a minimum of $50 million
in residential housing, retail, or mixed-use developments in the City of St. Louis within five years of the opening
of the casino and hotel; (¢) pay, beginning after the facility opens, the City of St. Louis annual and other services
fees; and, (d) pay substantial penalties to the City of St. Louis if the project fails to open before certain projected
dates.

Lease and Development Agreement: Also as described in Note 4, the Company entered into a lease and
development agreement for its St. Louis County project. Among other things, the agreement commits the
Company to: (a) lease a parcel of land for 99 years (not including certain termination provisions) for a minimum
lease rent of $4 million or 2.5% of adjusted gross receipts (as defined in the lease agreement) commencing on the
date the project opens; (b) invest $300 million to construct a gaming and multi-use facility that will include a
minimum 90,000 square foot casino with a minimum 3,000 slot machines and 60 table games, a 100-guestroom
hotel, a parking garage and other amenities; (c) construct a 280,000-square-foot combination retail, commercial
and/or entertainment facility within three years of the casino opening; (d) construct additional community and
recreational facilities; (e) construct a roadway into the facility; (e) remediate the 80-acre site, with lease
termination provisions for the benefit of the Company if the cost exceeds a certain amount; and, (f) pay penalties
if the project fails to open prior to certain projected dates.

Employment and Severance Agreements: 'The Company has entered into employment agreements with key
employees, including its Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”), President, Chief Operating Officer (“COQO”), Chief
Financial Officer (“CFO”) and General Counsel. These agreements generally grant the employee the right to
receive his or her annual salary for up to the balance of the employment agreement, plus extension of certain
benefits and the immediate vesting of stock options, if the employee terminates his or her employment for good
reason or the Company terminates the employee without cause (both as defined in the respective agreements).
Upon certain events (including the employee’s termination of his or her employment after a diminution of his or
her responsibilities or after the Company’s failure to pay a minimum bonus, or the Company’s termination of the
employee) (each a “Severance Trigger”) following a change in control (as defined in the various agreements), the
employee is entitled to (i) a lump-sum payment equal to two times the largest annual salary and incentive
compensation that was paid to the employee during the two years preceding the change in control (or in the case
of the CEO, CFO and General Counsel, a lump sum payment equal to their annual salary through the end of the
term, or if the balance of the contract is less than one year, for one year), (ii) the extension of certain benefits for
at least one year after termination, and (iii) the immediate vesting of the employee’s stock options. In the case of
the CEO, he may terminate his employment following a change of control and receive such payments, benefits
and option vesting without the requirement that there be a subsequent Severance Trigger. As of December 31,
2004, the aggregate amount that would be paid to this group of 26 employees if a triggering event occurs in every
case following a change in control is approximately $16,377,000.

Deferred Bonus Plan: In 2004, the Company established a deferred bonus plan in which a portion of an
employee’s bonus is deferred and paid in three equal annual installments. Except for certain circumstances,
including death, disability and a change in control (all as defined in the plan), no amount will be paid to the
employee prior to each year-end anniversary. Consistent with the terms required to receive such deferred bonus,
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the Company will expense the deferred portion as it vests. As of December 31, 2004, the deferred bonus
commitment, which would have to be paid for example after a change in control, was approximately $1,307,000.

City Annexation Costs: During 2002, the 569 acres owned by the Company at Boomtown Reno were
annexed into the City of Reno, Nevada. The City is extending the municipal sewer line to the Boomtown
property. The Company estimates the sewer hook-up fees to Boomtown will approximate $1,500,000. The
project is scheduled for completion in 2005. Upon completion, the annual sewer service fees are estimated to be
approximately $100,000 higher than the costs currently incurred to operate the Company’s own sewage treatment
plant. However, the Company will no longer have a need to maintain or replace its own sewage treatment plant
equipment. The annexation of the property by the City of Reno and the extension of city services, particularly
sewage treatment capability, enhance the value and feasibility of developing the Company’s approximately 500
acres of surplus land. The Company has not yet determined whether to sell, develop or simply retain such excess
land.

Legal

Astoria Entertainment Litigation: In November 1998, Astoria Entertainment, Inc. filed a complaint in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of Louisiana. Astoria, an unsuccessful applicant for a license
to operate a riverboat casino in Louisiana, attempted to assert a claim under the Racketeer Influenced and
Corrupt Organizations Act (“RICO”), seeking damages allegedly resulting from its failure to obtain a license.
Astoria named several companies and individuals as defendants, including Hollywood Park, Inc. (the predecessor
to Pinnacle Entertainment), Louisiana Gaming Enterprises, Inc. (“LGE”), then a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Pinnacle Entertainment, and an employee of Boomtown, Inc.

On March 1, 2001, Astoria amended its complaint, adding new claims and renaming Boomtown, Inc. and
LGE as defendants. Pursuant to a settlement agreement executed on February 3, 2005, Astoria has dismissed its
claims with prejudice and has released the Company and all of its subsidiaries, affiliates, and other released
parties described in the agreement from any act or omission, including, but not limited to, those relating to or
arising from the Louisiana riverboat gaming licensing process or the operation of the Company’s Louisiana
casinos. The cost of such settlement was fully reserved as of December 31, 2004.

Poulos Lawsuit: A class-action lawsuit was filed on April 26, 1994, in the United States District Court,
Middle District of Florida (the “Poulos Lawsuit”), naming as defendants 41 manufacturers, distributors and
casino operators of video poker and electronic slot machines, including Casino Magic. The lawsuit alleges that
the defendants have engaged in a course of fraudulent and misleading conduct intended to induce people to play
such games based on false beliefs concerning the operation of the gaming machines and the extent to which there
is an opportunity to win. The suit alleges violations of RICO, as well as claims of common law fraud, unjust
enrichment and negligent misrepresentation, and seeks damages in excess of $6 billion. On May 10, 1994, a
second class-action lawsuit was filed in the United States District Court, Middle District of Florida (the “Ahearn
Lawsuit”), naming as defendants the same defendants who were named in the Poulos Lawsuit and adding as
defendants the owners of certain casino operations in Puerto Rico and the Bahamas, who were not named as
defendants in the Poulos Lawsuit. The claims in the Ahearn Lawsuit are identical to the claims in the Poulos
Lawsuit. Because of the similarity of parties and claims, the Poulos Lawsuit and Ahearn Lawsuit were
consolidated into one case file (the “Poulos/Ahearn Lawsuit”) in the United States District Court, Middle District
of Florida. On December 9, 1994 a motion by the defendants for change of venue was granted, transferring the
case to the United States District Court for the District of Nevada, in Las Vegas. In an order dated April 17, 1996,
the court granted motions to dismiss filed by Casino Magic and other defendants and dismissed the complaint
without prejudice. The plaintiffs then filed an amended complaint on May 31, 1996 seeking damages against
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Casino Magic and other defendants in excess of $1 billion and punitive damages for violations of RICO and for
state common law claims for fraud, unjust enrichment and negligent misrepresentation.

At a December 13, 1996 status conference, the Poulos/Ahearn Lawsuit was consolidated with two other
class-action lawsuits (one on behalf of a smaller, more defined class of plaintiffs and one against additional
defendants) involving allegations substantially identical to those in the Poulos/Ahearn Lawsuit (collectively, the
“Consolidated Lawsuits™) and all pending motions in the Consolidated Lawsuits were deemed withdrawn without
prejudice. The plaintiffs in the Consolidated Lawsuits filed a consolidated amended complaint on February 14,
1997, which the defendants moved to dismiss. On December 19, 1997, the court granted the defendants’ motion
to dismiss certain allegations in the RICO claim, but denied the motion as to the remainder of such claim; granted
the defendants’ motion to strike certain parts of the consolidated amended complaint; denied the defendants’
remaining motions to dismiss and to stay or abstain; and permitted the plaintiffs to substitute one of the class
representatives. On January 9, 1998, the plaintiffs filed a second consolidated amended complaint containing
claims nearly identical to those in the previously dismissed complaints. The defendants answered, denying the
substantive allegations of the second consolidated amended complaint. On June 21, 2002, the court denied
plaintiffs’ motion for class certification. On July 11, 2002, the plaintiffs filed a petition for permission to appeal
the court’s denial of the plaintiffs’ motion for class certification. On August 15, 2002, the United States Court of
Appeals for the Ninth Circuit granted plaintiffs’ petition. On August 23, 2002, the plaintiffs filed their notice of
appeal with the U.S. District Court for the District of Nevada. On or about April 30, 2003, the plaintiffs filed
their opening brief on appeal. Defendants’ answering brief was filed on September 18, 2003. The plaintiffs’ reply
brief was filed on October 20, 2003. Oral argument on the appeal of the order denying class certification was
heard on January 15, 2004. On August 10, 2004, the Ninth Circuit affirmed the district court’s denial of
plaintiffs’ class certification motion. This case is again before the district court.

On January 20, 2005, plaintiffs’ counsel advised the Court that the two (2) remaining plaintiffs, Poulos and
McElmore, have agreed to dismiss Casino Magic and the other defendants in whose casino the plaintiffs did not
play. The terms of a stipulation for dismissal of these claims have not yet been finalized. On March 4, 2005, the
claims of Ahearn and Schreier against all defendants were dismissed with prejudice.

The claims may not be covered under the Company’s insurance policies. While the Company cannot predict
the outcome of this action, management intends to defend it vigorously.

Casino Magic Biloxi Patron Incident: In January 2001, three Casino Magic Biloxi patrons sustained
injuries as a result of an assault by another Casino Magic Biloxi patron. In August 2001, two of the casino
patrons injured during the January 2001 incident filed a complaint in the Circuit Court of Harrison County,
Mississippi, Second Judicial District, which complaint was subsequently amended. In February 2004, Casino
Magic Biloxi settled the complaint that was originally filed in August 2001 with respect to the two injured
patrons. An Order of Dismissal with prejudice was entered on February 20, 2004. The settlement has been paid
by the Company’s applicable insurance carriers.

On February 13, 2002, a third injured victim and her husband filed a subsequent complaint in the Circuit
Court of Harrison County, Mississippi, Second Judicial District. The allegations in the complaint are
substantially similar to those contained in the original August 2001 lawsuit. No trial date has been set for the
subsequent suit.

While the Company cannot predict the outcome of this action, the Company, together with its applicable
insurers, intends to defend it vigorously.
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Indiana State Tax Dispute: The State of Indiana conducted a sales and use tax audit at the Company’s
Belterra entity in 2001. In October 2002, the Company received a proposed assessment in the amount of
$3,070,000 with respect to the Miss Belterra casino riverboat, including interest and a penalty. A protest was
filed by the Company in December of 2002. On June 16, 2003, the Indiana Tax Court issued two favorable
rulings for other taxpayers with claims similar to the Company’s. On September 21, 2004, the Indiana Supreme
Court reversed the Tax Court’s ruling with respect to one of those taxpayers. The other taxpayer settled its
assessment with the State. The Company believes that these recent cases may not apply to its case because of the
different facts involved and intends to pursue this matter vigorously.

Hubbard Litigation: In connection with the resignation of R.D. Hubbard as the Company’s Chairman in
2002 (“former Chairman”), the Company agreed to extend the exercise period for stock options (“subject
options™) covering 322,000 shares held by the former Chairman with a weighted average exercise price of $10.60
per share provided that the Indiana Gaming Commission approved his exercise of these options as so extended.
In December 2004, the former Chairman sought to exercise stock options (“specific options™) covering an
aggregate of 185,000 of these shares (“requested option shares”). On January 21, 2005, the Indiana Gaming
Commission advised the Company that it did not approve the former Chairman’s option exercise. In order to
avoid exposure to either the Indiana Gaming Commission or to the former Chairman, on January 25, 2005, the
Company filed an action seeking a declaratory judgment in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of
Indiana (“Indiana Action”), naming the former Chairman and the Indiana Gaming Commission as defendants,
and requesting an order from the court determining whether the former Chairman is entitled to exercise the
subject options and whether the Company is obligated to sell the former Chairman the requested option shares.
On or about January 26, 2005, the Company’s former Chairman commenced litigation against the Company and
its current Chairman and CEO by filing a Complaint in the Superior Court of the County of Riverside, California
(“California Action”). The former Chairman, in that action, has asserted claims for breach of contract, breach of
the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing, fraud and equitable estoppel. The former Chairman seeks
compensatory damages in an amount greater than $5 million and punitive damages based on the Company’s
allegedly wrongful failure to sell to the former Chairman the requested option shares pursuant to the former
Chairman’s attempted exercise of the specific options. In the California Action, the Company has removed the
action from the state court in California to the United States District Court for the Central District of California.
The Company has also, in the California Action, filed a motion to dismiss the former Chairman’s suit, or, in the
alternative to (i) transfer the action to the Southern District of Indiana or (ii) stay the action until the resolution of
the prior-filed action in the Southern District of Indiana. Due to the uncertainty surrounding the extension of the
subject options, the Company continues to include the subject options in the balance of its outstanding options.

Columbia Sussex Litigation. On January 26, 2005, Columbia Sussex Corporation and three other plaintiffs
filed a petition against the Missouri Gaming Commission and Casino One Corporation, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, in the Circuit Court of Cole County, Missouri. In addition to Columbia Sussex,
named plaintiffs are Wimar Tahoe Corporation, as an owner of property near the proposed Casino One site,
President of Columbia Sussex, William J. Yung, as a Missouri tax payer, and Fred Dehner, a resident of Osage
Beach, Missouri, as a registered Missouri voter and tax payer. The plaintiffs seek to undo the Missouri Gaming
Commission’s approval of Casino One’s docking site on the St. Louis riverfront under a claim for judicial review
by original writ, declaratory judgment, and writ of prohibition. The factual allegations for each claim are that the
Commission could not grant approval to Casino One because the facility’s planned gaming floor is allegedly not
within 1,000 feet of the main channel of the Mississippi River, as required under the Missouri constitution.
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While the Company cannot predict the outcome of this litigation, management intends to defend it
vigorously.

Other: The Company is party to a number of other pending legal proceedings, though management does
not expect that the outcome of such proceedings, either individually or in the aggregate, will have a material
effect on the Company’s financial position, cash flows or results of operations.

Note 12—Related Party Transactions

In March 2004, the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer purchased $500,000 in aggregate
principal amount of 8.25% Notes (see Note 5) at the same price offered to other purchasers of the privately
placed notes. After deducting initial purchasers’ discounts and commissions, the Company received
approximately $491,000 in net proceeds.
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Note 13—Consolidating Condensed Financial Information

The Company’s subsidiaries (excluding Casino Magic Argentina and certain non-material subsidiaries) have
fully and unconditionally and jointly and severally guaranteed the payment of all obligations under the 8.25%
Notes, 8.75% Notes and the 9.25% Notes. Separate financial statements and other disclosures regarding the
subsidiary guarantors are not included herein because management has determined that such information is not
material to investors. In lieu thereof, the Company includes the following:

Wholly Owned Consolidating Pinnacle

Pinnacle Wholly Owned Non- and Entertainment,
Entertainment, Guarantor Guarantor Eliminating Inc.
Inc. Subsidiaries(a) Subsidiaries(b) Entries Consolidated

(in thousands)
As of and for the year ended December 31, 2004
Balance Sheet

CUITENE ASSELS © v v o v e e e e e e e $ 159,267 $ 75877 $ 6,166 $ 0 $ 241,310
Property and equipment,net ................. 22,231 783,689 8,067 0 813,987
Other non-CUWITENL @SSELS . . v\ vt v oo 111,379 29,624 1,617 10,851 153,471
Investmentin subsidiaries ................... 504,822 7,906 0 (512,728) 0
Inter-company ............ ... ... oo 332,774 4,072 4] (336,846) 0
$1,130,473 $ 901,168 $15,850 $(838,723) $1,208,768
Current liabilities . ......... .. ... o $ 45568 $ 85,396 $ 3,875 $ 0 $ 134,839
Notes payable, longterm .................... 636,741 1,230 0 0 637,971
Other non-current liabilities .. ................ 32,974 0 0 (12,206) 20,768
Inter-company ........... ... .o oo 0 332,777 4,069 (336.846) 0
EQUITY . oo 415,190 481,765 7,906 (489,671) 415,190
$1,130,473 $ 901,168 $15,850 $(838.723) $1,208,768
Statement of Operations
Revenues:
Gaming .. ... $ 0 $ 448,171 $14,447 3 0 $ 462,618
Food and beverage . .................... 0 29,755 . 1,106 0 30,861
Equity in subsidiaries . . ................. 52,800 4,323 0 (57.123) 0
Other ......... ..o 6,000 53,832 0 0 59,832
58,800 536,081 15,553 (57,123) 553,311
Expenses:
Gaming ... 0 265,026 4,140 0 269,166
Foodandbeverage ..................... 0 27,973 1,284 0 29,257
Administrative and other . ............... (12,737) 134,569 3,238 0 125,070
Depreciation and amortization . ........... 2,382 44,877 928 0 48,187
(10,355) 472,445 9,590 0 471,680
Operating income . . ..., 69,155 63,636 5,963 (57,123) 81,631
Loss on early extinguishment of debt .......... 14,921 0 0 0 14,921
Interest expense (income), net ................ 54,408 (5413) 41) 0 48,954
Income (loss) before inter-company activity, taxes
and change in accounting principle .......... (174) 69,049 6,004 (57.123) 17,756
Management fee & inter-company interest
expense (income) . ... ...l (16,249) 16,249 0 0 0
Income tax eXpense ......... ... ..., 6,914 0 1,681 0 8,595
Netincome ..............cciiiiinieniion. $ 9,161 $ 52,800 $ 4,323 $ (57,123) $  916]
Statement of Cash Flows
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities . ... e $ (176,527) $ 204,201 $ 2,700 $ 0 $ 30374
Net cash provided by (used in) investing
ACHVILES . . oo 92,204 (197,123) (4,175) 0 (109,094)
Net cash provided by financing activities ....... 181,290 97 0 0 181,387
Effect of exchange rate changesoncash ........ 0 0 (400) 0 (400)
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Wholly Owned Consolidating Pinnacle

Pinnacle Wholly Owned Non- and Entertainment,
Entertainment, Guarantor Guarantor Eliminating Inc.
Inc. Subsidiaries(a) Subsidiaries(b) Entries Consolidated

(in thousands)
As of and for the year ended December 31, 2003
Balance Sheet

CUurrent assets ... ..o i v $ 66,255 $ 66,241 $ 6,559 $ 0 $ 139,055
Property and equipment, net ................. 18,808 600,780 2,121 0 621,709
Other non-current assets . .........c.vovenun.. 151,891 29,448 1,982 10,851 194,172
Investment in subsidiaries ................... 485,060 3,735 0 (488,795) 0
Inter-company ............. ..., 190,279 4,072 0 (194,351) 0
’ $912,293 $704,276 $10,662 $(672,295) $ 954,936
Current liabilities .. ......... .. ... ... ..., $ 41,955 $ 50,811 $ 2,855 S 0 $ 95,621
Notes payable, longterm .................... 642,412 1,182 0 0 643,594
Other non-current habilities .. ................ 27,067 0 0 (12,205) 14,362
Inter-company ..............coiiiiiiiian. 0 190,279 4,072 (194,351) 0
Equity « oo 200,859 462,004 3,735 (465,739) 200,859
$ 912,293 $704,276 $10,662 $(672,295) $ 954,936
Statement of Operations
Revenues:
Gaming ......... .. $ 0 $436,599 $11,638 $ 0 $ 448,237
Food and beverage . .................... 0 28,127 828 0 28,955
Equity in subsidiaries . .................. 44,762 4,119 0 (48,881) 0
Other ..o L 6,000 47,159 51 0 53,210
50,762 516,004 12,517 (48,881) 530,402
Expenses:
Gaming ............... [P 0 261,782 3,116 0 264,898
Food and beverage . .................... 0 27.907 838 0 28,745
Administrative and other ................ 25,152 123,347 3,385 0 151,884
Depreciation and amortization . ........... 2,494 43,616 723 0 46,833
27,646 456,652 8,062 0 492,360
Operating income . . .......covinvrnennnn. 23,116 59,352 4,435 (48,881) 38,042
Loss on early extinguishment of debt .......... 19,908 0 0 0 19,908
Interest expense (income), net . ............... 54,406 (1,608) (28) 0 52,770
Income (loss) before inter-company activity, taxes
and change in accounting principle .......... (51,198) 60,960 4,483 (48,881) (34.636)
Management fee & inter-company interest
expense (iNCOME) .. .......viveurnreenn. .. (16,198) 16,198 0 0 0
Income tax (benefit) expense ................. (6,758) 0 364 0 (6,394)
Net income (1088) . .. oo vvinnnn,.- $ (28,242) $ 44,762 $ 4,119 $ (48,881) $ (28,242)
Statement of Cash Flows
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
ACHIVILIES ..ot $ (25,930) $ 77,586 $ 3,730 $ 0 $ 355,386
Net cash used in investing activities ........... (105,218) (75,102) (1,255) 0 (181,575)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing )
ACUVILIES . . oo 109,346 (249 0 0 109,097

Effect of exchange rate changesoncash ........ 0 0 (242) 0 (242)
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For the yvear ended December 31, 2002

Statement of Operations

Revenues:
Gaming ...... ... i,
Food and beverage ...............
Equity in subsidiaries .............
Other .............. .o L.

Expenses:
Gaming .............. ...l
Food and beverage ...............
Administrative and other ..........
Depreciation and amortization .. . ...

Operating income (10ss) ...............
Interest expense (income), net ..........

Income (loss) before inter-company activity
and incometaxes ...................

Management fee & inter-company interest
expense (income) ..................

Income tax (benefit) expense ...........

Income (loss) before change in accounting
principle ........ ... ... oL

Change in accounting principle, net of taxes . .

Netincome (loss) ............

Statement of Cash Flows
Net cash provided by (used in) operating

activities . ......... ...l
Net cash used in investing activities . . .. ...

Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities ....... ... o
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash ..

PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

Wholly Owned Consolidating Pinnacle
Pinnacle Wholly Owned Non- and Entertainment,
Entertainment, Guarantor Guarantor Eliminating Inc.
Inc. Subsidiaries(a) Subsidiaries(b) Entries Consolidated
(in thousands)

S $ 0 $425,850 $ 6,493 $ 0 $432,343
o 0 29,249 502 0 29,751
. 16,716 1,005 0 (17,721) 0
e 6,000 45,863 44 0 51,907
22,716 501,967 7,039 (17,721) 514,001

N 0 256,408 2,558 0 258,966
o 0 29,580 497 0 30,077
e 22,979 127,058 1,581 0 151,618
e 2,378 42,065 486 0 44929
25,357 455,111 5,122 0 485,590

e (2,641) 46,856 1,917 (17,721) 28,411
. 48,171 679) (10) 0 47,482
. (50,812) 47,535 1,927 (17,721) (19,071
e (19,046) 19,046 0 0 0
e (7,068) 0 922 0 (6,146)
o (24,698) 28,489 1,005 17,721 (12,925)
44,931 11,773 0 0 56,704
.. $(69,629) $ 16,716 $ 1,005 $(17,721) $(69,629)
.. $ (4413) $ 43,461 $ (18) $ 0 $ 39,030
.. (33,661) (43,186) (190) 0 (77,037)
e 1,751 (925) 0 0 826
e 0 0 (2,017) 0 (2,017)

(a) The following material subsidiaries are treated as guarantors of the 8.25% Notes, 8.75% Notes and 9.25%
Notes: Belterra Resort Indiana LLC, Boomtown, LLC, PNK (Reno), LLC, Louisiana—I Gaming, PNK
(Lake Charles), LLC, Casino Magic Corp., Biloxi Casino Corp., PNK (Bossier City), Inc., Casino One
Corporation, HP/Compton, Inc. and Crystal Park Hotel and Casino Development Company, LLC.

(b) The Company’s only material non-guarantors of the 8.25% Notes, 8.75% Notes and 9.25% Notes are Casino
Magic Neuguen S.A. and its subsidiary Casino Magic Support Services.
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Note 14—Segment Information

The following table reconciles the Company’s segment activity to its consolidated results of operations and
financial position as of and for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

For years ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

(in thousands)

Revenues and expenses
Boomtown New Orleans

REVEINUES . ..\ttt e e e e e e e e $ 111,129 $ 106,398 $ 100,403
Expenses, excluding depreciation, amortization and asset impairment
ChArgE . o e (78,915)  (77,059) (73,348)
Depreciation and amortization ... .. ........ .ottt (6,763) (6,525) (6,585)
Net operating income—Boomtown New Orleans ............. $ 25451 $ 22,814 % 20,470
Belterra Casino Resort
ReVenmUES ..o e $ 155,534 $ 133,704 $ 122,118
Expenses, excluding depreciation and amortization ................... (123,773) (110,462) (106,327)
Depreciation and amortization . ...........c..i ittt (16,265) (13,768) (13,175)
Net operating income —Belterra Casino Resort .............. $ 15496 $§ 9474 § 2616
Boomtown Bossier City
Revenues ... .. $ 99,821 $ 104,295 $ 102,680
Expenses, excluding depreciation, amortization and asset impairment
ol B T £ O P (79,144)  (87,798)  (89,717)
Depreciation and amortization . ............ .. .t (6,757) (8,131) (7,395)
Net operating income—Boomtown Bossier City ............. $ 13920 $ 8366 $ 5,568
Casino Magic Biloxi
Revenues .. ... $ 80,528 $ 83,603 $ 86,500
Expenses, excluding depreciation, amortization and asset impairment
Charge ... (64,299)  (67,574) (68,410)
Depreciation and amortization .. ...t (7,884) (7,902) (7,520)
Net operating income—Casino Magic Biloxi ................ $ 8345 § 8,127 $ 10,570
Boomtown Reno
REVENUES . . it e e e $ 84,506 $ 83,645 $ 89,021
Expenses, excluding depreciation, and amortization ................... (74,285) (69,978) (71,423)
Depreciation and amortization . .............vinvetennrennannen.. (6,964) (7,129) (7,390)

Net operating income—BoomtownReno ................... $ 3257 $§ 6,538 $ 10,208
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Casino Magic Argentina

Revenues . ... ... ..
Expenses, excluding depreciation and amortization ...................
Depreciation and amortization ............... ..t

Net operating income—Casino Magic Argentina .............

Card Clubs

Revenues .. ..... ...

Expenses, excluding depreciation, amortization and asset impairment
charge .. ... ..

Depreciation and amortization . ................. i

Net operating income—Card Clubs .. ......................

Total Reportable Segments

Revenues ... .

Expenses, excluding depreciation, amortization and asset impairment
ChaIgeS o

Depreciation and amortization .. .............it it

Net operating income—Total Reportable Segments ...........

Reconciliation to Consolidated Net Income

Total net operating income for reportable segments ...................

Unallocated income and expenses
COrporate @XPeNSE . . . v\ vt ettt e e
Pre-opening and development costs () .......... ... ... oo
Indiana regulatory and related benefit (costs) ....................
Gain on sale of assets, netof otheritems ........................
Goodwill and other asset impairment charges ....................
Corporate relocation benefit (costs) ........ ... ... ... .. ... ...,
Loss on early extinguishment of debt ..........................
[nterest iNCOME . . ..ot
Interest expense, net of capitalized interest ......................

Income (loss) before income taxes and cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle . ... ... .

(a) Includes $7,081,000 associated with L’ Auberge in 2004.

For years ended December 31

2004 2003 2002

(in thousands)

$ 15553 § 12517 $ 7,039
(8,662) (7,339) (5,097)
(928) (723) (486)

$ 5963 $ 4455 & 1456

$ 6240 $ 6240 § 6,240

(67) (166) (338)
(2,081) (2,457) (2,280)

$ 4092 $ 3,617 § 3,622

$ 553,311 $ 530,402 $ 514,001

(429,145) (420,376) (414,660)
(47,642)  (46,635)  (44,831)

$ 76,524 $ 63,391 $ 54,510

$ 76,524 § 63391 § 54,510

(23,098)  (18,511)  (13,188)
(14,399) (1,261) (1,948)
194 2,056 (6,609)

42,410 0 0
0 (7,832) (2,753)

0 199 (1,601)
(14,921)  (19,908) 0
3,584 2,111 2,206

(52,538)  (54,881)  (49,688)

$ 17,756 $ (34,636) $ (19,071)
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For years ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)

EBITDA(a)
Boomtown New Orleans .. ...t $ 32,214 $29,339 § 27,055
Belterra Casino Resort .. ... ...t 31,761 23,242 15,791
Boomtown Bossier City . ... ... i 20,677 16,497 12,963
Casino Magic Biloxi . ... . . 16,229 16,029 18,090
Boomtown REMO ... ..ottt 10,221 13,667 17,598
Casino Magic Argentina . .........uuuievrien e 6,891 5,178 1,942
Card Clubs . ... .o i 6,173 6,074 5,902
Corporate and other non-allocated (costs) benefits(b) ................ 5,652  (25,151) (26,001)
$129,818 $ 84,875 $ 73,340
(a) The Company defines EBITDA as earnings before interest expense and interest income, income taxes,

depreciation, amortization, loss on early extinguishment of debt and cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principles. Management uses EBITDA as a relevant and useful measure to compare operating
results among its properties and between accounting periods. The presentation of EBITDA has economic
substance because it is used by management as a performance measure to analyze the performance of the
Company’s business segments. EBITDA is specifically relevant in evaluating large, long-lived hotel casino
projects because it provides a perspective on the current effects of operating decisions separated from the
substantial, non-operational depreciation charges and financing costs of such projects. Additionally,
management believes some investors consider EBITDA to be a useful measure in determining a company’s
apparent ability to service or incur indebtedness and for estimating a.company’s underlying cash flow from
operations before capital costs, taxes and capital expenditures. EBITDA, subject to certain adjustments, is
also a measure used in debt covenants in the Company’s debt agreements. Unlike net income, EBITDA does
not include depreciation or interest expense and therefore does not reflect current or future capital
expenditures or the cost of capital. Management compensates for these limitations by using EBITDA as
only one of several comparative tools, together with the common GAAP measurements, to assist in the
evaluation of operating performance and to measure cash flow generated by ongoing operations. Such
GAAP measurements include operating income (loss), net income (loss), cash flows from operations and
cash flow data. EBITDA is not calculated in the same manner by all companies and accordingly, may not be
an appropriate measure of comparing performance among different companies. The following table is a

reconciliation of net income to EBITDA:
For the year ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)
Net Income (108S) . ..ottt e e e e e $ 9,16l $(28,242)  $(69,629)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of income tax benefit ........ 0 0 56,704
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle ........ 9,161 (28,242) (12,925)
Income tax expense (benefit) .. ... .. . 8,595 (6,394) (6,146)
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle and
INCOME LAXES .+ oot e et e et et e e e et e e ettt e et e e 17,756 (34,636) (19,071)
Loss on early extinguishmentofdebt ......... ... ... ... .. ... . .. o 14,921 19,908 0
Interest expense, net of capitalized interest and interest income ...................... 48,954 52,770 47,482
Operating INCOME . . . ... ottt e e ettt e 81,631 38,042 28,411
Depreciation and amortization . .. ...t int i e 48,187 46,833 44,929

EBIT DA L e $129,818  §$ 84,875  $73,340
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(b) Includes corporate expenses and the other non-allocated costs, including the gain on sale of assets (net of
other items) of $42,410,000 in 2004.
For years ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)

Capital Expenditures

Boomtown New Orleans ... ........... .. $ 6,040 $ 3,194 $ 4,657
Belterra Casino Resort . ...t 19,724 25,305 4,732
Boomtown Bossier City ........... ... ... i 4,501 4946 26,610
CasinoMagic Biloxi .. ... . . 7,521 6,754 3,888
Boomtown Reno . .. ... 4,813 3,549 4,958
Casino Magic Argentina . ... ......c.oiuiiiirneenenenn 6,085 1,255 190
Card Clubs ... ... . 0 0 0
L AUbEIZE . 155,108 31,539 3,151
Corporate and other (2) .......... oottt 5,805 6,389 410

Capital Expenditures .............. .. .. .. .. .. ... ... $209,597 $82,931 $48,596

(a) Includes St. Louis
December 31,

2004 2003

(in thousands)

Total Assets
Boomtown New Orleans .. ....... ..., $ 78,802 $ 80,569
Belterra Casino Resort . ......... i 236,286 227,409
- Boomtown Bossier City . ... ... 127,706 127,617
Casino Magic BiloXi. ... oo 101,325 103,181
Boomtown Reno . ... . 82,415 87,139
Casino Magic Argentina . . . ..... vttt et 15,850 10,662
Card Clubs . ... e 5,895 5,904
L AUDCIEE .ot 224,494 34,735
Corporate and other (a) ... i 335,995 277,720
Total ASSEtS ..o $1,208,768 $954,936

(a) Includes St. Louis
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Note 15—Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of unaudited quarterly financial data for the years ended December 31, 2004
and 2003:

2004
Dec. 31, Sept. 30, June 30, Mar. 31,
(in thousands, except per share data)
ReVENUES . ..ot $132,588 $146,508 $139,858 $134,357
Operating iNCOME ... .. ...ttt e 2,483 14,116 41,911 23,121
Netincome (I0SS) .. ..ottt e (4,774) (3,241) 15,743 1,433
Per Share Data
Net income (loss) per share—basic (a) .................. $ (0.13) $ (009 $ 044 $ 005
Net income (loss) per share—diluted (a) ................ $ (013§ ©09H $ 043 $ 0.04
2003
Dec. 31, Sept. 30, June 30, Mar. 31,
(in thousands, except per share data)
Revenues . .......... i $125,501 $139,743 $133,313 $131,845
Operating inCome .. ......oiunii e 9,853 8,550 8,917 10,722
Netloss ..o (8,614) (16,397) (2,384) (847)
Per Share Data
Net loss per share—basic and diluted (a) ................ $§ (034) 8% (©063) 8% (009 $ (0.03)

(a) Net income (loss) per share calculations for each quarter are based on the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the respective periods; accordingly, the sum of the quarters may not equal the full
year income (loss) per share.

The 2004 results include asset sale gains in the first and second quarter of $13,181,000 and $30,699,000,
respectively, pre-opening and development costs each of the quarterly periods of 2004 (including $5,702,000 and
$4,030,000 in the third and fourth quarters, respectively) and losses on the early extinguishment of debt of
$8,254,000, $3,164,000 and $3,503,000 in the first, third and fourth quarters, respectively. The 2003 results
include a $7,832,000 non-cash charge for goodwill impairment and $4,248,000 for certain non-cash tax charges
in the third quarter, and $8,744,000 and $11,164,000 for early extinguishment of debt in the third and fourth
quarters, respectively.



PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004

(in thousands)

As of 2002 As of 2003 As of 2004 As of

1/1/02 Additions Deductions 12/31/02 Additions Deductions 12/31/03 Additions Deductions 12/31/04

Reserve Description

Allowance for doubtful

aAcCcounts ... ......... $2,365 $ 917 $ (918) $2,364 $ 1,636 $ (1,263) $2,737 § 869 § (2,049) $1,557
Self-insurance reserves .. 4,558 342 (502) 4,398 25,426 (21,873) 7,951 26,594 (26,847) 7,698
Legalandother ........ 2,965 4,368 612) 6,721 3,770 (5,896) 4,595 8,617 (8,747 4,465
Asset sale reserves .. .. .. 6,451 — (2,402) 4,049 — (1,644) 2,405 — (810) 1,595
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Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc.
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Belterra Casino Resort
777 Belterra Drive
Florence, IN 47020
812.427.7777
www.belterracasino.com

Boomtown Bossier City

300 Riverside Drive

Bossier City, LA 71111
318.746.0711
www.boomtownbossier.com

Boomtown New Orleans

4132 Peters Road

Harvey, LA 70058

504.366.7711
www.boomtownneworleans.com

Boomtown Reng

|-80 Boomtown @ Garson Road
Reno, NV 83439

775.345.6000
www.boomtownreno.com

Casino Magic Biloxi

195 Beach Boutevard

Biloxi, MS 39530
228.387.3600
www.casinomagic-biloxi.com

Casino Magic Neugquén

Acceso Aeropuerto internacional
8300 - Neuguén- Argentina
54.299.447.0996

(d) Neminating Committee (g) Compliance Committee

Casino Magic San Martin

de Los Andes

Villegas y Elordi

8370 - San Martin de Los Andes
Neuguén — Argentina
54.2972.42.7142

Casino Magic Junin de Los Andes
Lamadrid 40

Junin de Los Andes

Neuquén — Argentina
54.2972.49.1461

Crystal Park Casino Hotel
123 East Artesia Boulevard
Compton, CA 90220
310.631.3838
www.crystalparkcasino.com

Hollywood Park Casino

3883 West Century Boulevard
Inglewood, CA 90303
310.330.2800
www.playhpc.com

'Auberge du Lac

3202 Nelson Road
Lake Charles, LA 70601
337.475.2900

St. Louis

Raeder Place

Suite #500

727 North First

St. Louis, M0 63102
314.450.5000

CEO and CFO Certifications - The Company has filed with the SEC as exhibits to its 2004 Annual Report on Form 10-K the certifications of the Company’s

Chief Executive Officer and its Chief Financial Officer required under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
regarding the Company's financial statements, disclosure controls and procedures and other matters. In addition, on August 8, 2004, the Company submitted to the NYSE
the annual certification of the Company's Chief Executive Officer required under Section 303A.12(a) of the NYSE Listed Company Manual, that he was not aware of any
violation by the Company of the NYSE's corporate governance listing standards.

Forward-Looking Statements - This Annual Report contains some forward-looking statements which are subject to change. Actual results may differ materially from those
described in any forward-looking statement. Additional information concerning potential factors that could affect our future results is included under the caption “Forward-
Looking Statements and Risk Factors” in ltem 7 of this Annual Report. This statement is provided as permitted by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
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